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Introduction 

Morton College (MC) is a comprehensive, public community college located in Cicero, Illinois. 
The second oldest community college in Illinois, Morton College was founded in 1924 as a 
public junior college under the auspices of J. Sterling Morton High School. In 1966, MC became 
an independent community college district. Serving approximately 160,000 residents in one of 
the 39 public community college districts in Illinois, MC is recognized by the Illinois Community 
College Board and serves District 527, comprised of six suburbs of Chicago. In 1975, MC 
iÃÌ>L��Ã�i`�>�V>�«ÕÃ�V�ÛiÀ��}�ÎÇ°£�>VÀiÃ�>�`�V��Ã�ÃÌ��}��v�wÛi�i`ÕV>Ì���>��LÕ��`��}Ã�>Ì�Înä£�-°�

i�ÌÀ>��ƂÛi�Õi����
�ViÀ�°�/�i�
���i}i��«i�i`��ÌÃ�wÀÃÌ��>��À�>``�Ì����Ì��Ì�i�V>�«ÕÃ����Ì�i�v>���
of 2016 by building a new wing to its “C” building. This new two-story wing features modern, 
ÌiV�����}Þ�i��>�Vi`�V�>ÃÃÀ���Ã�>�`�v>VÕ�ÌÞ��vwViÃ°��ÕÀ��}�Ì�i�Óä£È�Óä£Ç�>V>`i��V�Þi>À]��
�
i�«��Þi`�>««À�Ý��>Ìi�Þ�{Óx�v>VÕ�ÌÞ�>�`�ÃÌ>vv��i�LiÀÃ�>�`�i�À���i`�È]Èn£�VÀi`�Ì�ÃÌÕ`i�ÌÃ�>�`�
ÓÇÓ�����VÀi`�Ì�ÃÌÕ`i�ÌÃ�����>���Óä£Ç°�"ÛiÀ�nx�«iÀVi�Ì��v�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�ÃÌÕ`i�Ì�L�`Þ��Ã���Ã«>��V]�
making it the 7th largest Hispanic-serving community college in the nation by percentage. 
The mission of the College is “to enhance the quality of life of our diverse community through 
exemplary teaching and learning opportunities, community service, and life-long learning.”

 


��«Ài�i�Ã�Ûi�,i>vwÀ�>Ì�����v�čVVÀi`�Ì>Ì����*iiÀ�,iÛ�iÜ�/i>��,iV���i�`>Ì���Ã�
(10/2016)

In October 2016, a Comprehensive Evaluation was conducted by an HLC Peer Review Team. 
As stated in the Assurance Review of October 2016, the team recommended that “a Focused 
6�Ã�Ì��VVÕÀ���i�Þi>À�vÀ���Ì�i�w�>��>VÌ����LÞ���
�Ì��`iÌiÀ���i�Ì�i�iÝÌi�Ì�Ì��Ü��V��Ì�i�	�>À`�
of Trustees has: 1.) Developed and is engaged in a comprehensive professional development 
plan on policy governance; 2.) Developed and implemented a professional development 
plan for the President that includes clear goals and objectives with measurable outcomes and 
regular monitoring; 3.) [Provided] evidence that the College has developed a participatory 
governance structure founded upon a collaborative process grounded in open and transparent 
communication, trust, and shared vision; and, 4.) [Demonstrated] that it has developed and is 
implementing a comprehensive internal communication plan with evidence of improvement in 
employee morale.

Additionally, the team recommended that during the Focused Visit, the College “must 
`i���ÃÌÀ>Ìi�Ì�>Ì��Ì�Ì>�iÃ�ÃiÀ��ÕÃ�Þ��ÌÃ�w�>�V�>��>VV�Õ�Ì>L���ÌÞ�ÀiÃ«��Ã�L���Ì�iÃ]�«>ÀÌ�VÕ�>À�Þ����
light of the State of Illinois budget impasse. During the visit, the institution should provide 
iÛ�`i�Vi�Ì�>Ì�Ì�i���ÃÌ�ÌÕÌ���½Ã�L�>À`��Ã�i�}>}i`����>««À�«À�>Ìi�w�>�V�>��V��ÌÀ��Ã]��>Ã�VÀi>Ìi`�
>�«À�viÃÃ���>��`iÛi��«�i�Ì�«�>��v�À�L�>À`�V��ÌÀ����v�w�>�ViÃ]�>�`�`i���ÃÌÀ>ÌiÃ�Ì�i��>��iÀ�
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in which the Board is accountable to its constituents regarding sound and responsible 
�«iÀ>Ì��}�LÕ`}iÌÃ°»������Ü��}�Ì�i�ÀiVi�«Ì��v�Ì�i�,i>vwÀ�>Ì�����v�ƂVVÀi`�Ì>Ì����,i«�ÀÌ]�Ì�i�
HLC Institutional Actions Council (IAC) continued the accreditation of Morton College with the 
�iÝÌ�,i>vwÀ�>Ì�����v�ƂVVÀi`�Ì>Ì�������ÓäÓÈ�ÓÇ°����V���Õ�VÌ����Ü�Ì��Ì��Ã�>VÌ���]��Ƃ
�ÀiµÕ�Ài`�Ì�i�
following interim monitoring:

Focused Visit. Focused Visit by 1/31/18 to determine extent of Board engagement with policy 
development; professional development plan for the President; participatory governance; and 
>�V��«Ài�i�Ã�Ûi���ÌiÀ�>��V���Õ��V>Ì����«�>�°�Ƃ``�Ì���>��v�VÕÃ����w�>�V�>��>VV�Õ�Ì>L���ÌÞ�
responsibilities.

The following provides information about how Morton addressed concerns articulated by the 
2016 HLC Visiting Team and the IAC.

-iVÌ����£\�	�>À`�
�}>}i�i�Ì�Ü�Ì��*���VÞ��iÛi��«�i�Ì

��ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã�	�>À`��v�/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ��Ã�>�«ÕL��V�Þ�i�iVÌi`]�i�}�Ì�«iÀÃ���}�ÛiÀ���}�L�`Þ�Ì�>Ì�
includes a student trustee who possesses an “advisory vote.” As stated in its Mission Statement, 
the Board observes the standards and criteria set forth by the Illinois Community College 
Board (ICCB), “exercises as…approval authority over all duties and powers authorized by law of 
the State of Illinois,” and oversees the President, who, in turn, manages college operations by 
delegating responsibility to his executive leadership team.1

In November 2017, the Board of Trustees held a retreat and Special Meeting of the Board to 
V��`ÕVÌ�>�Ãi�v�iÛ>�Õ>Ì����>�`�Ì��Ài>vwÀ���ÌÃ�Õ�`iÀÃÌ>�`��}�>�`�V����Ì�i�Ì�Ì��ÃiÀÛ��}����>�
policy-governance role.2 To this end, the Board retained the services of Dr. Gary Davis, an 
experienced and highly regarded expert in board governance, having served as the Executive 
��ÀiVÌ�À��v�Ì�i��������Ã�
���Õ��ÌÞ�
���i}i�/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ�ƂÃÃ�V�>Ì����vÀ���£�nÈ�Ì�À�Õ}��Óääx°��ÕÀ��}�
that time, Dr. Davis served as a retreat facilitator for various boards throughout the United States. 
�À°��>Û�Ã�Ü>Ã�>�}À>`Õ>Ìi��v������
>ÀÛiÀ½Ã�*���VÞ���ÛiÀ�>�Vi�ƂV>`i�Þ�>�`��Ã�>�V��ÌÀ�LÕÌ�À�Ì��
�����
>ÀÛiÀ½Ã�	�>À`��i>`iÀÃ��«°��i��>Ã�«ÕL��Ã�i`�>ÀÌ�V�iÃ����ÃiÛiÀ>��«iÀ��`�V>�Ã]�>�`��i��>Ã�
contributed chapters on board governance and ethics in books published by Josey-Bass and the 
Association of Community College Trustees. He has worked as a retreat facilitator for ACCT as 
well as for the American Association of Community Colleges and the Association of Governing 
Boards. Dr. Davis wrote the chapter on “Issues in Community College Governance,” which was 
published jointly by ACCT and AACC in their New Expeditions series. Currently, Dr. Davis serves 
on the faculty of Benedictine University, where he teaches a class on “Policy, Politics, and Law 
of Higher Education.” Dr. Davis continues to be active in the association world. He was elected 
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President of the Illinois Society of Association Executives and served two terms as Chair of the 
American Society of Association Executives Ethics Committee. The Illinois Community College 
Trustees Association Ethics Award is named for Dr. Davis. 

As part of the Morton College Board of Trustees retreat, Dr. Davis drew upon his extensive 
experience and knowledge in board governance. He conducted a session at the retreat with the 
/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ�Ì�>Ì�v�VÕÃi`����Ì�i�`�ÃÌ��VÌ����LiÌÜii��Ì�i�	�>À`½Ã�«À��>ÀÞ�«���VÞ�}�ÛiÀ�>�Vi�À��i�>�`�
the responsibilities of the College President in the day-to-day operations of the College.

As Board Policy 2.1 states, the President recommends the “organizational structure of the 
College to the Board for approval and, as circumstances require, any changes that will improve 
the overall College operations.”3�/�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�iÝiVÕÌ�Ûi�Ìi>��V��Ã�ÃÌÃ��v�Ì�i�*À�Û�ÃÌ]�
Executive Director of Human Resources, Executive Director of Operations, Director of Public 
,i�>Ì���Ã�>�`�
���Õ��ÌÞ�"ÕÌÀi>V�]�>�`�Ì�i��iÛi��«�i�Ì�"vwViÀ�>Ã�Ãii�����Ì�i�Õ«`>Ìi`�
organizational chart.4 As Board Policy 2.1 explains, the Board encourages the “development of an 
>`����ÃÌÀ>Ì����Ü�Ì��V�i>À����iÃ��v�>ÕÌ��À�ÌÞ�>�`���i�Ü��V��i�V�ÕÀ>}iÃ�Ì�i�vÀii�y�Ü��v���v�À�>Ì����
between the President and staff and also among staff members.” The Board also appoints legal 
counsel, employs a treasurer, approves full-time and part-time personnel appointments, and 
“adopts and enforces all necessary policies” recommended by the President and his executive 
Ìi>��Ì�>Ì�>��}��Ü�Ì��Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã���ÃÃ���°��

With input from the executive team, varied internal stakeholders, and legal counsel, the Board of 
Trustees has developed a number of policies that reinforce its stated commitment to governing 
��ÀÌ���
���i}i�iÌ��V>��Þ�>�`�ivwV�i�Ì�Þ°�/�i�	�>À`½Ã�«���VÞ�`iV�Ã���Ã�>Ài���Ìi�`i`�Ì��>`Û>�Vi�
Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�v�ÕÀ�ÃÌÀ>Ìi}�V�}�>�Ã\�£°®��>�i�-ÌÕ`i�Ì�-ÕVViÃÃ�Ì�i�
�Ài�7�À���v���ÀÌ���
���i}iÆ�
Ó°®�-ÌÀi�}Ì�i��
vwV�i�V�iÃ����"«iÀ>Ì���ÃÆ�Î®��iÛi��«� iÜ�ƂV>`i��V�*À�}À>�Ã�>�`�,iÛ�Ì>��âi�
Existing Programs; and, 4.) Promote Economic and Community Vitality through Dynamic 
Relationships. The Board operates under a Code of Conduct that calls upon all Board members 
to actively participate in Board meetings and assignments, understand and evaluate College 
programs and business operations, and abide by Board policies as well as state and federal 
statutes and regulations.5

The Board of Trustees governs through the College President who, according to Board Policy 
2.3]��Ã�ºÌ�i�
��iv�
ÝiVÕÌ�Ûi�"vwViÀ»�>�`�º�Ã�`�ÀiVÌ�Þ�ÀiÃ«��Ã�L�i�>�`�>VV�Õ�Ì>L�i�Ì��Ì�i�	�>À`°»6 
	�>À`�*���VÞ�Ó°Î�vÕÀÌ�iÀ�ÃÌ>ÌiÃ�Ì�>Ì�Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�Ì>Ã���Ã�Ì��ºÀÕ��Ì�i�`>Þ�Ì��`>Þ��«iÀ>Ì���Ã��v�
Ì�i�
���i}i]��>�i�>���w�>���«iÀ>Ì���>��`iV�Ã���Ã]�>�`�>`����ÃÌiÀ�>�`�`�ÀiVÌ�Ì�i�>vv>�ÀÃ��v�Ì�i�

���i}i°»�/�i�	�>À`�*���VÞ����º*����Ã�«�Þ�>�`�"L�iVÌ�ÛiÃ»�`iw�iÃ�Ì�i�	�>À`½Ã�À��i�LÞ�ÃÌ>Ì��}�
that Board members are expected “to bear in mind under all circumstances that the primary 
function of the Board is to establish the policies by which the community college is to be 
administered, but that the administration of the educational program and the conduct of College 
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business shall be left to the President and the professional and non-professional staff.” Board 
Policy 1.9 also states that the “Board speaks to the President with one voice by consensus or 
majority vote.”7�/�i�
���i}i½Ã�	�>À`��v�/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ��Ã�V����ÌÌi`�Ì���iiÌ��}��ÌÃ�w`ÕV�>ÀÞ��L��}>Ì����
Ì��Ü�À��Ü�Ì��Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì�Ì���ÛiÀÃii�Ì�i���ÃÌ�ÌÕÌ���½Ã�ÃÌÀ>Ìi}�V�`�ÀiVÌ����>�`�Ì��`iÛi��«�«���V�iÃ�
Ì��>`Û>�Vi�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�«ÕL��V�>}i�`>°�ƂÃ�Board Policy 1.2.1 states, “the formulation and 
adoption of written policies is the method by which the Board exercises its leadership and 
responsibility.”n Board Policy 2.1 further explains that “all employees of the College shall be 
responsible to the Board through the President.”

The Board is committed to operating within the framework of the Illinois Public Community 
College Act, the Election Code, and the Illinois Public Meeting Act. Accordingly, the Board 
���`Ã�i�iVÌ���Ã�v�À��ÌÃ��vwViÀÃ�iÛiÀÞ�ÌÜ��Þi>ÀÃ]�i�iVÌÃ��vwViÀÃ�>�`�iÃÌ>L��Ã�iÃ�>����Ì��Þ��iiÌ��}�
calendar at a post-election organization meeting, publishes its agendas and minutes on the 
College website and portal, and invites community members to address them at all meetings.9 
Changes to meeting times are communicated by the Secretary or Board Clerk to “each trustee, 
the media, and the public as required by law.” The President prepares agendas for each of 
these meetings after conferring with the Board Chairperson. All items of business are publically 
voted on by all board members in attendance at any particular meeting. Four board members 
are required to constitute a quorum. The Board issued a memorandum on October 11, 2017, 
specifying that “pre-agenda meetings must occur no less than eleven calendar days before any 
scheduled meeting.”10 Additionally, the new board procedure required administrators to present 
Ì�i��Ü�Ì��>�w�>��>}i�`>�>�`�>}i�`>�«>V�iÌ�Ü�Ì��>���Ài�iÛ>�Ì�`�VÕ�i�ÌÃ�����iÃÃ�Ì�>��ÃiÛi��
calendar days before any Board meeting. The goal of the procedural change was to ensure that 
all Board members had enough time to properly review agenda items.

Board members engage in regular development to improve their knowledge of governance 
and higher education. For example, each year several board members represent the College at 
both of the Illinois Community College Trustees Association (ICCTA) meetings. Additionally, in 
October 2016, four board members attended the National Association of Community College 
Trustees (ACCT) Leadership Conference in New Orleans,11 and in April 2017, two board members 
attended the American Association of Community Colleges (AACC) annual conference to 
further develop their knowledge of community college trends related to governance, workforce 
development, and student success.

In September 2017, four members attended the ACCT Leadership Congress.12 Subsequent to the 
Leadership Congress, Board members who attended provided an in-depth presentation at the 
October 2017 Board Meeting on issues of college governance in the context of accreditation.13 
The Board also ensures that it keeps current with higher education practice by ensuring that the 

���i}i½Ã�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì�ÀiVi�ÛiÃ�Ài}Õ�>À�«À�viÃÃ���>��`iÛi��«�i�Ì]�>Ã��ÕÌ���i`����-iVÌ����Ó°�

http://www.morton.edu/Board_of_Trustees/
https://www.acct.org/Congress2016%20%20(p5)
https://www.acct.org/events/2017congress
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��ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã�	�>À`�ÀiiÝ>���iÃ��ÌÃ�}�>�Ã�>�`�«���V�iÃ�i>V��Þi>À�>Ì�>��>��Õ>��ÀiÌÀi>Ì°�/�i��>ÃÌ�
two Board retreats occurred on March 12, 2016, and June 7, 2017.14 The March 2016 retreat was 
a closed session pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (16) for “self-evaluation, practices and professional 
ethics, when meeting with a representative of a statewide association of which Morton College 
is a member,” and the June 2017 retreat was a closed session pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) to 
“consider the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of 
Ã«iV�wV�i�«��ÞiiÃ��v���ÀÌ���
���i}i°»

/�i���ÀÌ���
���i}i�	�>À`��v�/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ�Li}>��ÀiiÝ>�����}�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã��ÛiÀ>���}�ÛiÀ�>�Vi�
structure during the 2016-2017 academic year, employing the help of a consultant from the 
Collaborative Brain Trust (CBT). According to its mission statement, the Collaborative Brain 
Trust (CBT) attempts to “further the progress of higher education by contributing our expertise, 
leadership, and experience from over two hundred consultants who have served in community 
colleges and universities principally as presidents and chancellors, vice presidents, provosts, and 
deans at over three hundred institutions around the country.”15 

/�i��>�Õ>ÀÞ�ÓÎ]�Óä£Ç�	�>À`��v�/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ��iiÌ��}���V�Õ`i`�>�����Ì�>��«ÀiÃi�Ì>Ì�����v�Ì�i�w�>����
�
vii`L>V��Ài«�ÀÌ�>�`�w�`��}Ã, and an announcement that the Collaborative Brain Trust would 
�i�«�>�>�Þâi�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�}�ÛiÀ�>�Vi�ÃÞÃÌi��>�`�>�«�>��v�À�>�
���i}i�
�Õ�V���Ì�>Ì�Ü�Õ�`��i�«�
to address governance issues moving forward.16 On April 26, 2017, a proposed participatory 
}�ÛiÀ�>�Vi�«���VÞ�Ü>Ã���ÌÀ�`ÕVi`����>�wÀÃÌ�Ài>`��}�>Ì�>�	�>À`��v�/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ��iiÌ��}°�"��"VÌ�LiÀ�
23, 2017, the participatory governance policy was unanimously adopted by the Board of Trustees. 
/�i�«���VÞ�V��Ì>��Ã�ÃÌ>Ìi�i�ÌÃ�>L�ÕÌ�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�«����Ã�«�Þ�>�`�Û>�ÕiÃ]�À��iÃ�>�`�ÃÌÀÕVÌÕÀi]�
and general commitment to accountability. The policy, as outlined below, also outlines the role of 
Ì�i��iÜ�Þ�iÃÌ>L��Ã�i`�
���i}i�
�Õ�V���>�`�����ÀÃ�Ì�i�iÝ�ÃÌ��}��>VÕ�ÌÞ�ƂÃÃi�L�Þ�>Ã�Ì�i�º�vwV�>��
voice of the faculty in participatory governance.”  

-iVÌ����Ó\�*À�viÃÃ���>���iÛi��«�i�Ì�*�>��v�À�Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì

The President came to his position at the College two years ago with a doctorate in education, 
teaching experience, and decades of experience in educational administration. As Berwyn 
-�ÕÌ��-V�������ÃÌÀ�VÌ�£ää�-Õ«iÀ��Ìi�`i�Ì�>�`�v�À�iÀ�>ÃÃ�ÃÌ>�Ì�«À��V�«>���v���ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã�
only feeder high school, District 201, the President also arrived at his position with a deep 
Õ�`iÀÃÌ>�`��}��v�Ì�i�`�ÃÌÀ�VÌ½Ã���£Ó�i`ÕV>Ì���>��ÃÞÃÌi�]�Õ��µÕi�ÃÌÕ`i�Ì�«�«Õ�>Ì���]�>�`�`�ÛiÀÃi�
community stakeholders. Notwithstanding this long record of educational leadership and service 
to the community, the President has shown a commitment to develop a broader understanding 
of higher education and to grow in his role as President through a variety of professional 
development activities.

https://www.collaborativebraintrust.com/
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��ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì��>Ã�i�}>}i`�iÝÌi�Ã�Ûi�Þ�Ü�Ì����ÀÌ���
���i}i�ÃÌ>�i���`iÀÃ�
over the past two years through regular meetings with board members, faculty, staff, as well 
as community and business leaders. The President has also participated in varied external 
professional development opportunities at the local, state, and national levels. In March 2016, 
Dr. Fields attended the Illinois Community College Trustees Association (ICCTA) Presidents 
Council Meeting.17 Dr. Fields attended the League for Innovation in Community Colleges 
Annual Conference, where he attended sessions on Learning and Teaching, Leadership and 
Organization, and Student Development and Success.£n In April 2016, Dr. Fields attended an 
Education Advisory Board (EAB) community college Executive Leadership Forum.19 Topics 
included enrollment management, student success, the employment skills gap, and sexual 
misconduct training and reporting. Also in April 2016, Dr. Fields also attended the American 
Association of Community Colleges Annual Convention, where he attended sessions on 
structured pathways, college readiness, developmental education redesign, and various other 
subjects.20 Additionally, Dr. Fields attended the Higher Learning Commission Annual Conference 
that took place in Chicago in April 2017.21 At that conference, he participated in a variety of 
ÃiÃÃ���Ã]���V�Õ`��}���i�Ã«iV�wV>��Þ�`iÃ�}�i`�v�À�

"Ã��v���ÃÌ�ÌÕÌ���Ã��v���}�iÀ��i>À���}°��À���
June 1-3, 2017, Dr. Fields also attended the Illinois Community College Trustees Association 
(ICCTA) meeting in Bloomington-Normal, Illinois.22 The President also attended the American 
ƂÃÃ�V�>Ì�����v�
���Õ��ÌÞ�
���i}iÃ½�­AACC) Presidents Academy Summer Institute (PASI) in 
Summer 2017.23 The Academy is “an annual professional development program for CEOs and 
presidents of member community colleges, providing intensive focus on current challenges, 
emerging trends, and opportunities unique to that position…The institute also provides 
opportunities for newer presidents to develop mentor-mentee relationships with more seasoned 
presidents, focusing on immediate challenges and opportunities that these presidents are facing 
on their campuses.”

The President also attended the Hispanic Association of Colleges and Universities (HACU) 
conference in October 2017.24�ƂÃ�>���Ã«>��V�-iÀÛ��}���ÃÌ�ÌÕÌ����­��-®]���ÀÌ���
���i}i�Li�iwÌÃ�
directly as a member of HACU, whose mission is to promote “the development of member 
colleges and universities” and improves “access to and the quality of post-secondary educational 
opportunities for Hispanic students.” The President and the Director of Public Relations and 
Community Outreach participated in a panel at HACU entitled, “Chicagoland HSIs: Working 
Together” in the Executive Leadership for Presidents and CEOs conference track.  

The President has also supported professional development of the executive leadership team. 
The Provost, who has over 25 years of experience in a variety of teaching and administrative roles 
in community colleges in New York, Florida, and Illinois, has engaged in a number of professional 
development opportunities, including the National Alliance of Community and Technical College 
(NACTC) Board of Directors meeting and Winter Conference hosted by Tarrant County College 

http://www.communitycolleges.org/
https://league.org/inn2016
https://league.org/inn2016
https://www.aacc.nche.edu/
https://www.hacu.net/hacu/Annual_Conference1.asp
https://www.hacu.net/hacu/Annual_Conference1.asp
http://www.nactc.org/
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in Fort Worth, Texas.25 He also attended the NACTC Strategic Planning Board Meeting and 
Summer Conference hosted by Greenville Community and Technical College in Greenville, South 
Carolina. Dr. McLaughlin also attended the Higher Learning Commission annual conference and 
the American Association of Community Colleges annual conferences in 2017. 

The President has also supported professional development for the Executive Director of Human 
Resources, who has attended the Talent Review and Succession Planning Conference in February 
2016,26 the Illinois State Human Resources (ILSHRM) Illinois HR Conference and Exposition in 
April 2016,27 and the Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM) National Conference 
in June 2017.Ón Each of these conferences addressed important functions of Human Resource 
management. Other administrators, including deans and directors, have attended other higher 
education conferences each year.

ƂÃ��`i�Ì�wi`�>L�Ûi]�Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì��>`�>�Ài>`Þ�`i`�V>Ìi`����Ãi�v�Ì����Ã��Ü��«À�viÃÃ���>��
development and supported that of his executive team. During the July 20, 2017 Board meeting, 
the Board of Trustees adopted performance objectives for the President.29 These objectives 
focus on leadership in fundraising and developing a fundraising plan for the Friends of Morton 
Foundation; regular communication with individual Trustees to discuss board meeting agenda 
items; demonstrating transparency by including all stakeholders when providing updates to the 
Board; developing a Strategic Plan (Appendix A); demonstrating alignment with the budget; 
developing a Strategic Enrollment Management Plan (Appendix B); developing a plan to improve 
vÕ���Ì��i�v>VÕ�ÌÞ���À>�iÆ�w�>��â��}�>����ÌiÀ�>��
���Õ��V>Ì���Ã�*�>�Æ�>�`��>��Ì>����}�ÌÀ>�Ã«>Ài�VÞ�
�����ÀÌ��½Ã�«À�VÕÀi�i�Ì�«À�ViÃÃ�LÞ�v����Ü��}�ÃÌ>Ìi�>�`�V���i}i�«���VÞ°����ÀiÃ«��Ãi�Ì��Ì�iÃi�
Performance Objectives, the President submitted extensive documentation in support of 
meeting these objectives (Appendix C).

In looking to the future, the President is planning a robust schedule of professional development 
in the coming years. He will attend future HLC Annual conferences as well as HACU and 
AACC meetings and conferences. Dr. Fields is focused on continuing to meet the objectives 
determined by the Board.

https://www.conference-board.org/conferences/conferencedetail.cfm?conferenceid=2800
http://ilshrm.org/
https://www.shrm.org/pages/default.aspx
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-iVÌ����Î\�*>ÀÌ�V�«>Ì�ÀÞ���ÛiÀ�>�Vi

Morton College is committed to maintaining a stable, participative governance structure.30 The 

���i}i½Ã�>����Ã�Ì��VÀi>Ìi�>�VÕ�ÌÕÀi����Ü��V��>���V��ÃÌ�ÌÕi�V�iÃ��>Ûi�Ì�i��««�ÀÌÕ��ÌÞ�Ì��«À�Û�`i�
input on policies, procedures, issues, and management. The College attempts to balance 
ivwV�i�VÞ�Ü�Ì��ÀiÃ«iVÌ�v�À�>����v�Ì�i�`�vviÀi�Ì�ÃÌ>�i���`iÀÃ½�Û�iÜ«���ÌÃ°�Ƃ�Ì��Õ}��Ì�i�	�>À`��v�
Trustees governs through the College President, Morton College also has shared governance 
and collective bargaining traditions.  

The Faculty Assembly (FA) is responsible for decisions related to curriculum, academic standards, 
faculty development, and teaching and learning quality. According to Board Policy 3.10, the 
Faculty Assembly “is constituted as the organization authorized to deal with concerns of 
the entire faculty on any matter not covered by the Board-Union Agreement.”31 The Faculty 
ƂÃÃi�L�Þ½Ã�À��i��Ã�Ì��«>ÀÌ�V�«>Ìi����º��ÃÌ�ÌÕÌ���>��`iV�Ã�����>���}�>�`��ÌÃ�ÀiV���i�`>Ì���Ã]�
arrived at through normal parliamentary procedure.” The Faculty Assembly both responds 
to requests from administration concerning proposals under consideration and also initiates 
recommendations. 

The Faculty Assembly operates according to a charter�>�`�>`�iÀiÃ�Ì��,�LiÀÌ½Ã�,Õ�iÃ��v�"À`iÀ°32 
The Faculty Assembly Charter notes that “any member of the college community may attend 
a Faculty Assembly Committee meeting” and “any member of the Morton College community 
may present an idea to a Faculty Assembly standing committee in the form of a written motion.” 
The Faculty Assembly Charter further notes that if a motion is approved by the majority of a 
V����ÌÌii]�Ì�i���Ì����Ü�Õ�`�Li�v�ÀÜ>À`i`�Ì��Ì�i��>VÕ�ÌÞ�ƂÃÃi�L�Þ°���ÜiÛiÀ]��v�Ì�i���`�Û�`Õ>�½Ã�
motion is not approved by the majority of the committee, “the motion would be returned to the 
individual making the proposal with a written explanation.”

The Faculty Assembly is composed of the following standing committees: the Academic 
Standards, Policy and Procedures Committee; the Advisory Committee to the Administration; 
the Committee on Student Relations; the Curriculum Committee; and the Faculty Development 

����ÌÌii°�
>V��V����ÌÌii���V�Õ`iÃ�wÛi�i�iVÌi`�vÕ���Ì��i�v>VÕ�ÌÞ��i�LiÀÃ�>�`�>�V�>�À«iÀÃ���
who represents the committee at Faculty Assembly meetings. Committees meet regularly on 
their own schedules, the comprehensive schedule is distributed to faculty via email early in the 
fall semester.33

The Academic Standards Committee works with other college entities to “ensure that decisions 
>�`�«À�Vi`ÕÀiÃ�>vviVÌ��}�ÃÌÕ`i�Ì�«�>Vi�i�Ì]�«iÀv�À�>�Vi]�>�`�«À�}ÀiÃÃ�>���ÀiyiVÌ�Ì�i�V���i}i½Ã�
commitment to high standards.”34 In recent years, the Academic Standards Committee has 
helped to shape policy in a variety of areas, including distance learning, registration, and 
academic progress.
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The charge of the Curriculum Committee is to “recommend to the Administration via the Faculty 
Assembly the addition, deletion, or revision of programs and credit courses offered for study.35 
/�i�V����ÌÌii½Ã�}�>���Ã�Ì��>ÃÃ�ÃÌ�Ì�i�V���i}i����`iÛi��«��}�V�ÕÀÃiÃ�>�`�«À�}À>�Ã�Ì�>Ì�LiÃÌ�
serve the needs of students and meet state requirements.” (Curriculum Committee By-laws) 
Ƃ���V�>�}iÃ�Ì��Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�VÕÀÀ�VÕ�Õ��ÀiµÕ�Ài�>««À�Û>��LÞ�Ì�i�
ÕÀÀ�VÕ�Õ��
����ÌÌii�>�`�Ì�i�
�>VÕ�ÌÞ�ƂÃÃi�L�Þ�Liv�Ài�Ì�iÞ��>Þ�Li�V��Ã�`iÀi`�LÞ�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�*À�Û�ÃÌ]�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì]�>�`�	�>À`�
of Trustees. Select Morton College administrators, including the academic deans, are invited 
Ì��«>ÀÌ�V�«>Ìi����
ÕÀÀ�VÕ�Õ��
����ÌÌii��iiÌ��}Ã�LÕÌ��iÛiÀ�«>ÀÌ�V�«>Ìi����Ì�i�
����ÌÌii½Ã�w�>��
votes.  Indeed, they are not even present for those votes.

The Advisory Committee serves as a liaison between the Faculty Assembly and the 
administration and communicates ideas, concerns and suggestions to the administration as they 
are brought up by the Assembly.36 The Committee also serves as a vehicle for communication 
from the administration to the Faculty Assembly. The committee members represent both 
transfer and CTE areas and meet monthly with the President, Provost, and Executive Director 
of Human Resources. The Faculty Development Committee is in charge of determining the 
>���V>Ì�����v�*À�viÃÃ���>���iÛi��«�i�Ì�vÕ�`Ã�v�À�vÕ���Ì��i�v>VÕ�ÌÞ�­fÓä]äää�v�À�Ì�i�Óä£Ç�Óä£n�
academic year), planning the August in-service day in cooperation with the administration, and 
determining the full and part-time faculty-of-the-year award based on student nominations.

Additionally, the College has an independent faculty-led, cross-representational Academic 
ƂÃÃiÃÃ�i�Ì�*�>����}�
����ÌÌii�­ƂƂ*
®�Ì�>Ì�}i�iÀ>��Þ��iiÌÃ�Üii��Þ°�/�i�ƂƂ*
½Ã�vÕ�VÌ�����Ã�
to oversee all levels of academic assessment at the College. It also participates in the program 
review process. The Committee maintains a mission statement and job description for the Chairs 
and operates according to a Program Assessment Policy.37

The Board of Trustees and President also regularly dialogue with employee Unions. Although the 
Board of Trustees and the President exercise their authority to maintain executive management 
and administrative control of the College, collective bargaining agreements are an additional 
method of participation in College operations. The College currently maintains collective 
L>À}>����}�>}Àii�i�ÌÃ�­
°	°Ƃ°®�Ü�Ì��wÛi�`�vviÀi�Ì�i�«��Þii�}À�Õ«Ã]���V�Õ`��}�Ì�i�full-time 
faculty (Cook County Teachers Union, Local 1600, A.F.T.),În the part-time faculty (Adjunct Faculty 
Association, IEA-NEA),39 the V�>ÃÃ�wi`�ÃÌ>vv�­Ƃ°�°/°�
�>ÃÃ�wi`�-Ì>vv��i`iÀ>Ì���]�
����
�Õ�ÌÞ�
Local 1600),40 the service staff (Custodial/Maintenance Staff and Service Employees International 
Union, Local 73), and the campus police (Campus Safety Staff and Service Employees 
International Union, Local 73). These collective bargaining agreements give union members 
Ì�i�À�}�Ì�Ì���iiÌ�Ài}Õ�>À�Þ]�V���Õ��V>Ìi�Û�>�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�«�ÞÃ�V>���À�i�iVÌÀ���V��>���ÃÞÃÌi�Ã]�
ÀiVi�Ûi�V�«�iÃ��v�Ì�i�L�>À`�>}i�`>�>�`�L�>À`�LÞ�>ÜÃ�>�`�«���V�iÃ�­Û�>�Ì�i�À�1����½Ã�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì®]�
and be informed of any substantial changes in job duties or reorganization.
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The full-time faculty C.B.A. ensures that full-time faculty are allowed to participate in a variety 
of different decision-making processes.  For instance, the Full-Time Faculty C.B.A. requires 
the administration to provide the Union President with notice of all of its regular and special 
meetings and to provide him or her with a copy of the board packet of these meetings at 
approximately the same time as the board receives this information. The Full-Time Faculty C.B.A. 
also ensures that full-time faculty members are included in presidential search committees, cost 
containment committees, full-time faculty hiring committees, classroom renovation projects, 
class scheduling decisions, and any other process that substantially affects working conditions. 
The Full-Time Faculty C.B.A. also requires the President or designee to meet with Union 
President or designated alternate, at the request of either party to discuss matters related to the 
implementation of the contract or any other matter of mutual concern. Section 11.3 of the Full-
Time Faculty C.B.A. also provides the union the opportunity to grieve any alleged violation of 
the C.B.A. through a structured communication process that moves the grievant from an appeal 
to the immediate responsible supervisor, to the next administrative level, to the President, and 
w�>��Þ�Ì��Ì�i�	�>À`��v�/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ°41 If the matter remains unresolved, it may be submitted to a 
v�À�>��>ÀL�ÌÀ>Ì����«À�ViÃÃ°�/�i�*>ÀÌ�/��i��>VÕ�ÌÞ�
°	°Ƃ°�>�`�Ì�i�
�>ÃÃ�wi`�-Ì>vv�
°	°Ƃ°�V��Ì>���
many similar participatory governance provisions.  


���i}i�
�Õ�V��

The recent establishment of a College Council was intended to address Higher Learning 
Commission concerns over the status of participatory governance at the College. The College 
Council is composed of a cross-section of units of the College, including administration, staff, 
full and part-time faculty and union representatives, and a student representative.42 The Council 
draws from all units of the College, allowing for broad input in decision-making processes. The 
College has been working on issues related to student success, strategic planning, institutional 
effectiveness, and physical resources.  

In October 2016, the Administration convened the College Council (CC) to “improve 
communication between the various constituencies at Morton College,” develop a college-
wide vision statement and lay the framework for an expansion of participatory governance. In 
an effort to help determine how the Council could best contribute to the growth of the College, 
the President asked the members to respond to the following prompt: “If Morton College was 
the best community college in the state/nation, what would it look like and how would you 
know it was the best? This question was also posed to all constituency groups via email after the 
meeting. Responses from constituencies generally fell into the same four basic categories: 
1.) Improve campus cleanliness, green space, and overall welcoming appearance; 2.) Encourage 
all Morton College employees to assume responsibility for the overall success of all Morton 
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College students by providing them with a secure, welcoming atmosphere as their highest 
«À��À�ÌÞÆ�Î°®��>Ûi�vÕÌÕÀi�V���i}i���À��}�«À>VÌ�ViÃ�L>Ãi`����µÕ>��wV>Ì���Ã�>�`���Ì�«iÀÃ��>��
connections; and, 4.) Improve the spirit, enthusiasm, and will to “go the extra mile” for all Morton 
College constituencies.

Ƃ�}À�Õ«��v���ÀÌ���
���i}i�ÃÌÕ`i�ÌÃ�ÜiÀi�>�Ã��}�Ûi��Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�«À��«Ì°�-Õ��>ÀÞ�
responses included: 1.) Improve campus spirit; 2.) Improve the variety of food options at the 
college cafeteria and lower prices; 3.) Improve the green space at the college, possibly the 
area between the new “C” Building extension and the library; 4.) Provide tuition discounts for 
students who achieve academically; and, 5.) Hire more advisors for students.

During another early meeting of the College Council, the President stressed the need to have 
a vision and goals statement that was objective and measurable. Following the meeting, the 
President asked the Vice President of Institutional Planning and Effectiveness (now Provost) to 
assemble a complete list of possible vision/goals statement subjects. In an effort to begin the 
process of developing the vision/goals statement and in order to ensure inclusiveness, the Vice 
President sent emails to constituent groups asking for feedback regarding an appropriate means 
for measuring student success. The response indicated that retention and persistence and pass/
fail rates, with the goal of improving student success rates in Morton College classes, would be 
most meaningful and consequential. The College Council was provided with the following list of 
four options for the Vision-Goals Statement: 1.) By 2022, Morton College will have the highest 
fall-to-fall student persistence rates among community colleges in Illinois; 2.) By 2022, Morton 
College will lead in fall-to-fall full-time student persistence rates among community colleges in 
Illinois; 3.) By 2022, Morton College will have the highest graduation rates among community 
colleges in Illinois; and, 4.) By 2022, Morton College will lead the state in community college 
graduation rates. The Council members circulated the four options among their constituencies 
seeking feedback as to which would be the most worthwhile goal for Morton College to pursue 
v�À�Ì�i��iÝÌ�wÛi�Þi>ÀÃ°

The College Council met a total of six times over the course of the 2016-2017 academic year, and 
ÜÀ�ÌÌi��ÃÕ��>À�iÃ��v��iiÌ��}Ã�ÜiÀi�`�ÃÌÀ�LÕÌi`�Û�>�i�>���Ì����«À�Ûi�V���Õ��V>Ì����y�Ü�>�`�
ÌÀ>�Ã«>Ài�VÞ°�/�i�
���i}i�
���i}i½Ã�`�ÃVÕÃÃ���Ã��>Ûi��i`�Ì����«À�Ûi�i�ÌÃ����Û>À��ÕÃ�vÕ�VÌ���>��
areas. For example, the Student Development department adopted a new advising model and 
increased its staff, as outlined in Section IV of this report. The College Council also worked to 
develop a new Board policy on shared governance. A draft of the Morton College Board of 
Trustees Policy on Participatory Governance was disseminated to the college community by the 
Executive Director of Human Resources in April 2017.43 It was also introduced to the Board of 
/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ����>�wÀÃÌ�Ài>`��}����Ƃ«À���ÓÈ]�Óä£Ç�>�`�Ì�i��unanimously adopted by the Board on 
October 23, 2017.44 This policy expressly noted the function of the Faculty Assembly as different 
from that of the College Council. Instead of focusing on curriculum, academic standards, faculty 
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development, and teaching and learning quality, which is the purview of the Faculty Assembly, 
Ì�i�
���i}i�
�Õ�V��½Ã�«ÕÀ«�Ãi��Ã�Ì��v�VÕÃ����ÃÌÕ`i�Ì�ÃÕVViÃÃ]�ÃÌÀ>Ìi}�V�«�>����}]���ÃÌ�ÌÕÌ���>��
effectiveness, and the use of physical resources. 

During the third meeting of the College Council, the President announced that a consultant from 
Collaborative Brain Trust who visited Morton College in October 2016 would be returning to 
Morton College on February 15-16, 2017, seeking input about shared governance models from 
various Morton College constituencies. It was announced that the consultant would be holding 
meetings with various groups during his two-day visit. Subsequent to the visit, the consultant 
provided advice concerning the make-up of the Council; ways to improve communication and 
transparency; responsibilities of Council members; and other opportunities for developing a 
Li�iwV�>��«>ÀÌ�V�«>Ì�ÀÞ�}�ÛiÀ�>�Vi�ÃÌÀÕVÌÕÀi°45

During the February visit, the consultant from Collaborative Brain Trust presented the College 
Council with three different participatory government draft documents. The draft documents 
were put together by the consultant and his Collaborative Brain Trust colleagues as potential 
participatory government templates. The wÀÃÌ�`À>vÌ document was a template for a participatory 
government board policy discussed above.46 After receiving feedback from the Morton College 
Community as a whole, the College Council worked on this document in order to present 
it to the Board of Trustees for discussion and approval. The second draft document was a 
participatory governance procedure handbook template.47 The third draft document was a list of 
suggestions for creating a successful participatory government based on the experiences of the 
Collaborative Brain Trust associates. 

Written copies of the full-time faculty feedback to the previously circulated participatory 
governance draft documents created by Collaborative Brain Trust were distributed to the 
College Council for perusal and comment. Using the template provided by the consultant, the 
College Council revised a rough draft of the Participatory Governance board policy and created 
a College Council membership list that included representatives from all employee groups as 
well as a student government representative. 

/�i�
���i}i�
�Õ�V���>««À�Ûi`�Ì�i�>`����ÃÌÀ>Ì���½Ã�ÀiµÕiÃÌ�Ì��Ãi�`�Ì�i�*>ÀÌ�V�«>Ì�ÀÞ���ÛiÀ�>�Vi�
Board Policy to the Board of Trustees, although the Full-Time Faculty Union President dissented 
from the majority opinion, expressing concerns about potential overlap between the College 
Council and the Faculty Assembly. Other members of the College Council noted that the 
proposed Participatory Governance policy expressly acknowledged that the continuing 
inviolability of both Board Union Agreements (BUAs) or the Faculty Assembly, which would 
continue to be responsible for decisions related to curriculum, academic standards, faculty 
development and teaching and learning quality. Everyone agreed to work through their 
differences with open and continuing discussion. 
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As noted above, the Board Participatory Governance Policy includes philosophy and values, 
roles and structure, Accountability, College Council, and Faculty Assembly statements. The 
«���VÞ]�Ü��V��`iw�iÃ�«>ÀÌ�V�«>Ì�ÀÞ�}�ÛiÀ�>�Vi�>Ã�º>�V���>L�À>Ì�Ûi�«À�ViÃÃ�Ì�>Ì���Û��ÛiÃ�
Ì�i�>`����ÃÌÀ>Ì���]�«À�viÃÃ���>�]�v>VÕ�ÌÞ�­�/É*/®]�V�>ÃÃ�wi`�ÃÌ>vv]�>�`�ÃÌÕ`i�ÌÃ»�����>���}�
ÀiV���i�`>Ì���Ã�>�`�`iV�Ã���]�Ü>Ã��i>�Ì�Ì��i�«�>Ã�âi�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�V����Ì�i�Ì�
to recognizing “the value of involving college constituents in the process of making 
recommendations and decisions to further the mission of the college.”  

-iVÌ����{\�
��«Ài�i�Ã�Ûi���ÌiÀ�>��
���Õ��V>Ì����*�>�

Communication and Morale

Since the HLC Focused Visit of 2016, Morton College has developed a Comprehensive 
Communication Plan.{n Developed by the Provost, the Dean of Arts and Sciences, the Associate 
Dean of Arts and Sciences, the Department Chair of the Social and Behavioral Sciences, and 
the Director of Communications and Community Outreach, the plan is housed on the portal 
>�`��Ã�ÃV�i`Õ�i`�Ì��Li�`�ÃVÕÃÃi`�>Ì�Õ«V����}��iiÌ��}Ã��v�Ì�i�
���i}i�
�Õ�V��]�Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�

>L��iÌ]�Ì�i��>VÕ�ÌÞ�1��Ì��iiÌ��}]�>�`�>�ÃÌ>vv�Ì�Ü���>����iiÌ��}°���ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã���ÌiÀ�>��
communications plan consists of a mission statement, goals, and eight main components.  

First, the plan formalizes the role of the new Director of Communications and Community 
Outreach. The position of the Director is intended to operationalize Board Policy 2.7, which states 
that “the preparation and release of all information concerning the College intended for general 
`�ÃÌÀ�LÕÌ���]�Õ��iÃÃ��Ì�iÀÜ�Ãi�>ÕÌ��À�âi`�LÞ�Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì]�Ü����Li�ÃÕ«iÀÛ�Ãi`�LÞ�Ì�i�"vwVi��v�Ì�i�
President, which may work in conjunction with a publicist, and shall be used as a clearing house 
to avoid the duplication of materials that are released to the publicist and maintain a consistent 
policy with regard to the standard and quality of publicity and publications.” The establishment 
of the position was intended to implement a strategic, integrated communication plan that 
ÃÕ««�ÀÌÃ�>�`�>`Û>�ViÃ���ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã�LÀ>�`�>�`�LÕÃ��iÃÃ��L�iVÌ�ÛiÃ°�/�i�«�Ã�Ì����Ü>Ã�
further intended to establish a structure to provide cohesion and consistency to the preparation 
of all communications materials, whether they appear in feature articles, event listings, event 
publicity publications, promotions, print advertising, radio advertising, and online outlets. 

According to the job description]�Ì�i��iÜ�«�Ã�Ì����Ü�����>�>}i�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã��ÛiÀ>���
communications policy, ensuring that “all written and digital materials include and align with 
key messaging and the overall communications plan.”49 Further, the position is “responsible 
for setting and executing the media, community outreach, and communications strategy for 
Ì�i�
���i}i°»�Ƃ�Ì��Õ}��Ì�i���ÀiVÌ�À��Ã�ÀiÃ«��Ã�L�i�v�À�V���Õ��V>Ì��}���ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã�Û�Ã���]�
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}�>�Ã]�>�`�ÃÌÀ>Ìi}�iÃ�Ì��Ì�i�`�ÃÌÀ�VÌ½Ã�iÝÌiÀ�>��V��ÃÌ�ÌÕi�V�iÃ]��i��À�Ã�i�Ü����>�Ã��Li�ÀiÃ«��Ã�L�i�
for providing consistent and proactive messaging across the College and to create College 
procedures relating to all aspects of internal communications, as directed by the President. 
Further, the Director will be tasked with managing social media and developing proactive and 
timely communications related to areas of sensitivity or controversy. In practice, the Director 
Ü����V��ÌÀ�LÕÌi�Ì��Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã���ÌiÀ�>��V���Õ��V>Ì����«�>����}����Ì>�}�L�i�Ü>ÞÃ]�LÞ�Ü>Þ��v�
aggressive event-planning, email, public relations, and marketing efforts.

-iV��`]�Ì�i�>`����ÃÌÀ>Ì������Ìi�`Ã�Ì���>�i�L�Ì��Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì�>�`��i�LiÀÃ��v�Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�
cabinet visible to all internal stakeholders by holding regular open houses, open forums, faculty 
luncheons, and informal “drop in” meetings throughout the year and maintaining “open door” 
policies for all employees. This is in keeping with Board Policy 2.3, which calls for the President to 
“serve as a mediator between and among students, the public, the college staff, and the Board 
as appropriate.” To this end, the President and Provost both regularly participate in student 
activity, in service, community, and academic events, and sponsor staff town hall meetings twice 
a semester. The primary goal of the meetings is to give all staff employees the opportunity 
to voice their opinions and concerns, enhancing overall communication at the College.  What 
is more, the Provost attends monthly Faculty Unit meetings, sponsors regular open invitation 
“coffee hours,” and hosted a faculty luncheon on November 9, 2017.50 Finally, the President has 
met regularly with the President of the Faculty Assembly, and the Provost now also meets with 
the Faculty Union President on a weekly basis.

/��À`]�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�>`����ÃÌÀ>Ì����Ãi�`Ã��ÕÌ�monthly email administrative updates to the Board 
of Trustees and all constituencies.51�/�iÃi�i�>��Ã���}���}�Ì��>�Þ��v�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã��iÜ�>�`�
continued initiatives and also tout the achievements of faculty and staff members in the work 
�v�ÃÌÕ`i�Ì�ÃÕVViÃÃ°�/�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�V���i}i�Õ«`>Ìi�i�>��Ã�Li}>������Õ�Þ�Óä£Ç�>�`���V�Õ`i`�>�
��i����Ì��ÀiyiVÌ����>�`�>�Ì�Àii����Ì���ÕÌ����°�/�i�i�>��Ã���V�Õ`i���v�À�>Ì����«iÀÌ>����}�Ì��
>V>`i��V�>vv>�ÀÃ]�V���Õ��ÌÞ��ÕÌÀi>V�]��«iÀ>Ì���Ã]�>�`�ÀiV�}��Ì���°���Ài�Ã«iV�wV>��Þ]�Ì�iÞ��>Ûi�
included information about the success of the new advising initiative and a summary of activities 
designed to cultivate student engagement. These emails also summarize the activity of the 
College Council.

Fourth, the administration uses longstanding shared governance structures, including the Faculty 
ƂÃÃi�L�Þ�>�`��ÌÃ�wÛi�V����ÌÌiiÃ]�Ì��V���Õ��V>Ìi�Ü�Ì��v>VÕ�ÌÞ����>�Û>À�iÌÞ��v��ÃÃÕiÃ°�/��Ã��Ã����
keeping with Board Policy 2.5, which calls for administrators to “effectively interpret the College 
and its programs to its various constituencies” and to “serve on committees, as directed.” 
/�i�>`����ÃÌÀ>Ì����Õ�`iÀÃÌ>�`Ã�Ì�>Ì�>VÌ�Ûi�«>ÀÌ�V�«>Ì��������>�Þ��v�Ì�i��>VÕ�ÌÞ�ƂÃÃi�L�Þ½Ã�
committees can help to improve communication between faculty and staff members. For this 
reason, the President, Provost, and The Executive Director of Human Resources meet regularly 
Ü�Ì��Ì�i��>VÕ�ÌÞ�ƂÃÃi�L�Þ½Ã�Ƃ`Û�Ã�ÀÞ�
����ÌÌii]�>�`�`i>�Ã]�`�ÀiVÌ�ÀÃ]�>�`��Ì�iÀ�>««À�«À�>Ìi�
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staff members regularly participate in the Academic Standards, Curriculum Committee, and 
Student Relations Committees. Meeting minutes from Academic Standards and Curriculum 
Committee meetings are also regularly published and distributed. Additionally, deans and 
directors regularly participate in Academic Assessment and Planning Committee (AAPC) and 
other committee and task force meetings.

Fifth, the administration is expanding traditional participatory governance structures through 
Ì�i�
���i}i�
�Õ�V���LÞ�LÀ�>`i���}�Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�
>L��iÌ�Ì��LÀ��}�>`����ÃÌÀ>Ì�ÀÃ]�Õ�����
�vwViÀÃ]�>�`�v>VÕ�ÌÞ�>�`�ÃÌ>vv�Ài«ÀiÃi�Ì>Ì�ÛiÃ���Ì��Ài}Õ�>À�`�>��}Õi����Ì�i��ÃÃÕiÃ�Ì�>Ì�v>Vi�Ì�i�
college community. The administration believes that the College Council now affords almost all 
constituencies at Morton the opportunity to learn more about most major initiatives or decisions 
taking place at the College. All major groups on campus are represented on the College 
Council, and the Council members are able to communicate with their constituencies about its 
`i��LiÀ>Ì���Ã°�Ƃ``�Ì���>��Þ]�Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�
>L��iÌ]�Ü��V���iiÌÃ�ÌÜ�Vi����Ì��Þ]��>Ã�ÀiVi�Ì�Þ�
been expanded to include not only senior administrators such as the Provost and Executive 
��ÀiVÌ�À��v��Õ�>��,iÃ�ÕÀViÃ�LÕÌ�>�Ã��Õ�����Ài«ÀiÃi�Ì>Ì�ÛiÃ°�/�i�iÝ«>�Ã�����v�Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�
Cabinet is meant to ensure that all major stakeholders are able to receive updates from 
administers working in the various functional areas of the College.

Sixth, the administration uses technology, including the website, portal, radio, email, video 
monitors, and varied social media platforms, to help communicate with all stakeholders about 
Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�Û>À�i`����Ì�>Ì�ÛiÃ°�	�>À`�*���VÞ�n°Óä]�Ài}>À`��}�Ì�i���v�À�>Ì����/iV�����}Þ�1Ã>}i�
Policy, states that “Morton College provides access to information technology, including 
electronic mail, voice mail, electronic bulletin boards, personal computers, the Internet/Network, 
including Internet/Network through handheld devices, and cellular telephones, to assist its 
>`����ÃÌÀ>Ì�ÀÃ]�v>VÕ�ÌÞ]�ÃÌ>vv]�>�`�ÃÌÕ`i�ÌÃ�Ü�Ì��>V��iÛ��}�}Ài>ÌiÀ�ivwV�i�V�iÃ����V���Õ��V>Ì����
and information retrieval and dissemination.” The Information and Technology Usage Policy 
spells out in detail how and why faculty and staff members should employ information 
technology to communicate with one another.

In recent years, the College has attempted to use a variety of emerging technologies to facilitate 
internal communication among internal stakeholders. For example, the College uses Outlook™ 
meeting invitations, email blasts, shared drives, a portal, a redesigned website, hallway television 
screens, and social media to help to communicate with faculty, staff, and students. It also uses 
a web tool called POPin to allow Town Hall participants to anonymously post questions for 
administrators to address.

Currently, Morton College has 5,700 Facebook followers and 1,264 Twitter followers. Some 
departments and clubs on campus also use social media to communicate with their membership 
lists, including Student Activities, Student Advising, and Adult Education and Community 
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Outreach. The College posts on Facebook approximately four times a week. YouTube Live is 
used to broadcast sporting events. Major events and sporting events are advertised on the 

���i}i½Ã�i�iVÌÀ���V��>ÀµÕii°�/�i�
���i}i��>`�>�Ã��«ÕÀV�>Ãi`�>««À�Ý��>Ìi�Þ�{ä��
��ÃVÀii�Ã����
campus to advertise campus events and news. Screens can be customized to produce targeted 
information to different areas of the college. The College also recently launched Morton College 
Radio, Station WZQC 99.1 FM, which has various programs related to campus activities and 
events. For instance, WZQC 99.1 FM features Panther Central, a weekly show hosted by the 
current Student Trustee and the Student Government Association President; Stacked, a monthly 
show hosted by library staff; and various weekly student-hosted talk shows covering various 
topics.

/�i�>``�Ì�����v�>�vÕ���Ì��i�ÜiL�>ÃÌiÀ�Ì��Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã��>�>}i�i�Ì��v���v�À�>Ì����-ÞÃÌi�Ã�
­��-®��i«>ÀÌ�i�Ì��>Ã��>`�>���Ì�Vi>L�i�ivviVÌ����Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�>L���ÌÞ�Ì��V���iVÌ�Ü�Ì��L�Ì��
��ÌiÀ�>��>�`�iÝÌiÀ�>��V��ÃÌ�ÌÕi�V�iÃ°�ƂVV�À`��}�Ì��	�>À`�*���VÞ�n°Óä]�º/�i�
���i}i½Ã�ÜiLÃ�Ìi��Ã�
an important tool used to promote the College and its programs and services to prospective 
students, alumni, business, and members of the public.” The newly hired Web Content Specialist 
completely redesigned the college website, launching it in Fall 2016. The resigned website 
i�«��Þi`�>���>Ì���]�Û�`i�]�>�`�Ã�V�>���i`�>�vii`Ã]�>�`�>���ÜÃ�ÕÃiÀÃ�Ì��w�`���v�À�>Ì����
more easily. The new website also hosted vital academic, student services, human resources, 
Board policy, and campus safety information.52 Additionally, the new website allowed College 
stakeholders to manage their own content. The results of the resign can be measured by Google 
Analytic Reports, which demonstrate a 44% increase in user sessions or “hits,” a 16% increase in 
unique users, and a 16% increase in page views.  

/�i�
���i}i½Ã�ÜiLÃ�Ìi��Ã�ÃÕ««�i�i�Ìi`�LÞ�Ì�i���«À�Ûi�i�Ì��v��ÌÃ�«�ÀÌ>�]�Ü��V����ÕÃiÃ�>�Û>À�iÌÞ�
of data and facilitates internal communication on a number of levels. The Panther Portal is 
used to communicate with internal constituencies by disseminating information to employees 
regarding important HR items, meetings on campus (such as the staff Town Halls), various 
V>�«ÕÃ�yÞiÀÃ]�>�`��/�Ài�>Ìi`��>ÌÌiÀÃ�V��Ã�ÃÌ��}��v��iÜ�Ã�vÌÜ>Ài�>�`��>��Ìi�>�ViÉ̀ �Ü�Ì��i°53 
Notices involving campus closings due to weather and power outages are also posted on the 
portal. There is opportunity through the portal for various department and organizational teams 
to share information and documents within their own department and committees. Students 
have a dedicated portal page where they can view campus/sporting events information, 
informative session and workshop announcements, critical deadlines for registration, and 
Financial Aid and tuition payment plans. Information regarding Institutional Effectiveness & 
Accreditation matters, Professional Development In-Service session information, and Institutional 
Procedures is updated on a regular basis.

 Seventh, the administration intends to make a special effort to ensure that adjunct faculty 
members are included, whenever possible, in outreach and communication efforts. The College 

http://morton.edu/
https://fs.morton.edu/adfs/ls?wa=wsignin1.0&wtrealm=urn:my.morton.edu:443&wctx=https://my.morton.edu/_layouts/Authenticate.aspx?Source=%252F
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has already invited the Adjunct Union President to join the College Council, encouraged adjunct 
attendance at its in-service days (in part by paying members to attend), granted the adjunct 
v>VÕ�ÌÞ�iÝ«>�`i`��vwVi�Ã«>Vi]�VÀi>Ìi`�>��>`�Õ�VÌ�Ài�>Ì���Ã�V����ÌÌii]��i�`�>��Ƃ`�Õ�VÌ�1�����
requested employee appreciation day, and honored relatively new contractual language that 
invites adjuncts to attend all academic department meetings.

Eighth, the College intends to regularly survey stakeholders, including faculty, staff, and 
students, in order to get a better sense of how well its communication efforts are working. 
For this reason, the College continues to conduct the Personal Assessment of the College 
Environment (PACE) climate survey and various student surveys, including the Community 
College Survey of Student Engagement (CCSSE) and Noel-Levitz Student Satisfaction Survey on 
a regular cycle.

The Personal Assessment of the College Environment (PACE) survey is an instrument produced 
and administered by NILIE, the National Initiative for Leadership and Institutional Effectiveness 
(North Carolina State University), to gather employee feedback about campus climate. The 
feedback is useful to college stakeholders in strategic planning and decision-making to assess 
Ì�i���ÃÌ�ÌÕÌ���Ã�ÃÌÀi�}Ì�Ã�>�`�Üi>��iÃÃiÃ�>�`�Ì��iÛ>�Õ>Ìi�Ì�i�VÕÀÀi�Ì�V���>Ìi°� ���
½Ã�«Ài��Ãi�
�Ã�ºV>�«ÕÃ�V���>Ìi�>ÃÃiÃÃ�i�ÌÃ�>Ài�Û>�Õ>L�i���`�V>Ì�ÀÃ��v�V���i}i��i>`iÀÃ½�ÃÌÞ�iÃ]�i�«��Þii�
iÝ«iÀ�i�ViÃ]�>�`�Ì�i���ÃÌ�ÌÕÌ���½Ã��ÛiÀ>���V>«>V�ÌÞ�Ì��vÕ�w����ÌÃ���ÃÃ����>�`�}�>�Ã�>�`�i�ÃÕÀi�
student success.”54 The PACE survey is research-based. It has used by over 100 institutions over 
Ì�i�«>ÃÌ�wÛi�Þi>ÀÃ°��Ì��>Ã�Lii��>À�Õ�`�Ã��Vi�£��Ó�>�`��>Ã�Lii��ÀiÛ�Ãi`�Ì��ÃÌ>Þ�VÕÀÀi�Ì�Ü�Ì��
��ÃÌ�ÌÕÌ���>���ii`Ã°�*Ƃ

�«À���ÃiÃ�ÀiÃ«��`i�Ì�V��w`i�Ì�>��ÌÞ]�Ü��V���Ã��iÞ�Ü�i��Ãii���}����iÃÌ�
feedback and a good response rate.

The PACE survey was administered to Morton College employees in the 2012-2013 school year 
and again in 2015. The results of the 2012-2013 PACE survey were discussed by the College 

�Õ�V��]�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�
>L��iÌ]�>�`��Ì�iÀ�v�ÀÕ�Ã°�/�i�ÀiÃÕ�ÌÃ��v�Ì�i�Óä£Ç�*Ƃ

�-ÕÀÛiÞ�>Ài�
«i�`��}]�>�`�>�w�>��Ài«�ÀÌ��Ã�iÝ«iVÌi`�Ì��Li�>Û>��>L�i�LÞ��iVi�LiÀ�n]�Óä£Ç°�/�i�
���i}i��>Ã�
also recently surveyed all employees to collect feedback about the forthcoming strategic plan. 
Ƃ``�Ì���>��Þ]�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�Ài}Õ�>À�Town Halls ensure that staff members have an opportunity to 
«À�Û�`i�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�>`����ÃÌÀ>Ì����Ü�Ì��vii`L>V�����>�Ü�`i�Û>À�iÌÞ��v�Ì�«�VÃ°55

The College also maintains a formal complaint system, overseen by the Executive Director 
of Human Resources and Ombudsman. The Executive Director of Human Resources and 
"�LÕ`Ã�>��>�Ã��ÃiÀÛiÃ�>Ã�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�/�Ì�i��8�
��À`��>Ì�À°�/�i�/�Ì�i��8�
��À`��>Ì�À�i�ÃÕÀiÃ�
that the College enforces investigatory fairness on all relevant complaints or allegations. The 
V��«�>��Ì�«���VÞ��Ã�>Û>��>L�i����Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�V>Ì>��}]�ÃÌÕ`i�Ì��>�`L���]�>�`��Ì�iÀ���V>Ì���Ã°�
,iVi�Ì�Þ]�Ì�i��Õ���/��i��>VÕ�ÌÞ�1�����w�i`�>�}À�iÛ>�Vi�Ài�>Ìi`�Ì��Ì�i�V��«�>��Ì�«���VÞ°�/�i�ÀiÃÕ�Ì�
Ü>Ã�>�ºvÕ���>�`�w�>��ÃiÌÌ�i�i�Ì��v�Ì�i��ÃÃÕi»�Ì�À�Õ}��Ì�i�V���iVÌ�Ûi�L>À}>����}�>}Àii�i�Ì½Ã�

https://nilie.ncsu.edu/about-nilie
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v�À�>��V��«�>��Ì�ÀiÃ��ÕÌ����ÃÞÃÌi�°�/�i�>}Àii�i�Ì�V>��i`�v�À�V�>À�wV>Ì����Ì�>Ì�}À>`i�>««i>�Ã�
Ü�Õ�`�V��Ì��Õi�Ì��v����Ü�Ì�i�
°	°Ƃ°�>�`�	�>À`�*���VÞ�LÞ�}���}�Ì�À�Õ}��"vwVi��v�Ì�i��i>��>�`�
Ì�i�"vwVi��v�Ì�i�*À�Û�ÃÌ�À>Ì�iÀ�Ì�i�"vwVi��v�Ì�i�"�LÕ`Ã�>�°��

Ninth, the College maintains a transparent attitude toward information whenever it is appropriate 
to do so. For example, Board Policy 3.3 notes that all full-time faculty members should be 
given copies of Board Policy, the Board-Union Agreement, the Handbook for Faculty and other 
`�VÕ�i�ÌÃ°�	�>À`�*���VÞ�{°Î�ÀiµÕ�ÀiÃ�Ì�>Ì�>��>�`L����v�À�
�>ÃÃ�wi`�-Ì>vv�Ã�>���Li�ÀiÛ�Ãi`�
>��Õ>��Þ�>�`�«À�Û�`i`�Ì��>���V�>ÃÃ�wi`�ÃÌ>vv°�/�i�v>VÕ�ÌÞ��>�`L���Ã�>Ài���ÕÃi`����Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�
portal. The Provost also ensures that “certain categories of College records are available for 
inspection” according to Chapter 5, Act 140, of the Freedom of Information Act. All budgets are 
also available on the college website. Budget planning documents are available on the portal, as 
are the Strategic Plan and varied Institutional Research reports.  

-iVÌ����x\����>�V�>��čVV�Õ�Ì>L���ÌÞ�,iÃ«��Ã�L���Ì�iÃ

���Óä£n]���ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã�Ì�Ì>���«iÀ>Ì��}�ÀiÛi�ÕiÃ�>��Õ�Ìi`�Ì��fÓÇ]ÓÇ£]£Èä°�"v�Ì�i��ÛiÀ>���
operating revenues, tuition and fees accounted for approximately 42%, local support (mainly 
in the form of property taxes) amounted to 31%, and state support amounted to 27%. These 
revenues are divided into an Education Fund, an Unrestricted Operations and Maintenance 
Fund, a Restricted Operations and Maintenance Fund, and several other smaller funds outlined 
in the �9Óä£n�	Õ`}iÌ.56�/�i��>��À�ÌÞ��v�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�iÝ«i�`�ÌÕÀiÃ�­f£È]��È]£ÓÓ����Óä£n®�V>��
Li�>ÌÌÀ�LÕÌi`�Ì��Ã>�>À�iÃ�>�`�Li�iwÌÃ°�/�i��iÝÌ���}�iÃÌ�V>Ìi}�ÀÞ��v�iÝ«i�`�ÌÕÀi]�
��ÌÀ>VÌÕ>��
Services, is approximately $3,091,779. Broken down by budgetary object or functional area, 
Ì�i�
���i}i�Ã«i�`Ã�>L�ÕÌ�ÎÇ¯��v��ÌÃ��ÛiÀ>���iÝ«i�`�ÌÕÀiÃ������ÃÌÀÕVÌ���]�>�`�>��Ì�iÀ�n°£¯����
academic support services.

 �ÌÜ�Ì�ÃÌ>�`��}�ÃiÛiÀ>��Þi>ÀÃ��v�LÕ`}iÌ>ÀÞ�Õ�ViÀÌ>��ÌÞ����Ì�i�ÃÌ>Ìi½Ã�V>«�Ì>���v�-«À��}wi�`]�
��ÀÌ���
���i}i��>Ã�Lii��>�`�Ài�>��Ã����>�Ài�>Ì�Ûi�Þ�}��`�w�>�V�>��«�Ã�Ì���°�-��Vi�Ì�i�
��
½Ã�/i>��6�Ã�Ì]���ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã�wÃV>��«�Ã�Ì�����>Ã�Lii��Ài��v�ÀVi`�LÞ����}�>Ü>�Ìi`�
state appropriations. Additionally, the College has been implementing administrative cost-
saving initiatives. Finally, the College maintains strong internal controls that ensure budgetary 
conservatism in an uncertain state and federal budgetary climate.

��ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã�ÀiÛi�Õi��>Ã�iÝVii`i`��ÌÃ�iÝ«i�`�ÌÕÀi�i>V��Þi>À�v�À�Ì�i��>ÃÌ�ÃiÛiÀ>��Þi>ÀÃ°�
��ÀÌ���
���i}i�>�Ã���>��Ì>��Ã�>�ÃÌÀ��}�vÕ�`�L>�>�Vi°�/�i�
���i}i½Ã�	ÕÃ��iÃÃ�"vwVi�iÃÌ��>ÌiÃ�
that the ending FY2017 education fund balance will be $5.5M.  Morton ensures that the 
i`ÕV>Ì����vÕ�`��Ã�«À�«iÀ�Þ�vÕ�`i`�Ì��vÕ�w���Ì�i�>V>`i��V���ÃÃ�����v�Ì�i�
���i}i°�"ÛiÀ�Ì�i�«>ÃÌ�



Morton College Focused Report / December 2017     20

wÛi�wÃV>��Þi>ÀÃ]�Ì�i�i`ÕV>Ì����vÕ�`��>Ã�>VV�Õ�Ìi`�v�À�>��>ÛiÀ>}i��v�xÓ¯��v�>���Ã«i�`��}�LÞ�Ì�i�
College.

��ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã�w�>�V�>���i>�Ì���>Ã�ÀiVi�Ì�Þ�Lii��Ài��v�ÀVi`�LÞ�Ì�i�ÀiVi�«Ì��v��ÛiÀ`Õi�ÃÌ>Ìi�
expenditures. After three years of political gridlock, for FY2017 the State of Illinois passed a 
-Ì�«}>«�	Õ`}iÌ]�Ü��V��>««À�«À�>Ìi`�vÕ�`Ã�v�À�Ì�i�wÀÃÌ�Ã�Ý����Ì�Ã��v�Ì�i�wÃV>��Þi>À°�/�Ì>��LÕ`}iÌ�
>���V>Ìi`�Ì����ÀÌ���
���i}i�Ü>Ã�fÓ]nÈ�]ÇnÈ�>�`�£ää¯��v�Ì�>Ì�>���V>Ì����Ü>Ã�ÀiVi�Ûi`°�/�i�ÃÌ>Ìi�
>�Ã��«>ÃÃi`�-	È�����Õ�Þ�È]�Óä£Ç]�>««À�«À�>Ì��}�fÓ°n������������ÃÕ««�i�i�Ì>��vÕ�`��}�v�À��9Óä£Ç°�
/�i�ÃÌ>Ìi½Ã�LÕ`}iÌ�>VÌ���Ã�i�ÃÕÀi`�Ì�>Ì�ÃÌ>Ìi�>««�ÀÌ����i�Ì�vÕ�`Ã�Ü�Õ�`�Li}���Ì��V��«i�Ã>Ìi�
Morton College for educational services it had delivered to credit students throughout the years 
�v�Ì�i�ÃÌ>Ìi½Ã�LÕ`}iÌ���«>ÃÃi°�/�i��iÜ�ÃÌ>Ìi�LÕ`}iÌ�>�Ã��i�ÃÕÀi`�Ì�>Ì�Ì�i�ÃÌ>Ìi�Ü�Õ�`�V��Ì��Õi�
to award adult education grants as it had prior to the budget crisis.

In light of state budget politics, Morton College has been reviewing administrative costs over 
the past two years. In FY2017, Morton College cut costs in several expenditure categories, 
including capital projects, meeting expenses, and contractual services. Without reducing faculty 
lines or other vital educational services, Morton College also created plans to make serious cuts 
into administrative salary expenses if state apportionment funds remained uncertain. In June 
2017, with news that the state budget crisis would continue into a third year, the Morton College 
Administration proposed cost-cutting measures that would reduce college expenses by almost 
one million dollars. This plan included a re-organization and consequential cuts to administration 
and staff that did not include faculty. The proposed cuts were, understandably, controversial. The 
*À�Û�ÃÌ�iÝ«�>��i`�Ì��Ì�i�V���i}i�V���Õ��ÌÞ�Ì�>Ì�Ì�i�ºÌi�Ì>Ì�Ûi��9£n���ÀÌ���
���i}i�LÕ`}iÌ�
is based on a conservative projection of revenues from state aid at 50% of FY15 levels” and 
Ì�>Ì�Ì�i�
���i}i�º�ÕÃÌ�«Ài«>Ài�v�À�>�w�>�V�>��ÃVi�>À����v����ÃÌ>Ìi�vÕ�`��}�v�À�>����À�«>ÀÌ��v�Ì�i�
�iÝÌ�wÃV>��Þi>À°»�/�>Ì�Ã>�`]�Ì�i�	�>À`��v�/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ�ÀiÛiÀÃi`��ÌÃ����Ì�>��`iV�Ã����Ì��ÃÕ««�ÀÌ�>�ÃÌ>vv�
reorganization plan that was designed to respond to the state budget crisis. A full description 
of existing new administrative savings (executed cuts in staff) and a plan for new savings has 
been presented to varied internal stakeholders, including the Board of Trustees, but will likely 
be altered as a result of stakeholder feedback and the new state budget with its resulting 
resumption of apportionment funding sources.

Rather than merely exploring cost cutting initiatives, Morton College is actively exploring new 
LÕ`}iÌ>ÀÞ�Ã�ÕÀViÃ]���V�Õ`��}�}À>�ÌÃ]�vÕ�`À>�Ã��}]�>�`�«À�wÌ>L�i�V��Ì��Õ��}�i`ÕV>Ì�����«iÀ>Ì���Ã°�
With respect to grants, Morton College has dramatically increased its grant proposal-writing 
�«iÀ>Ì���Ã����ÀiVi�Ì�Þi>ÀÃ°���ÃÌ�Ã�}��wV>�Ì�Þ]�Ì�i�
���i}i�Ü�À�i`�Ü�Ì�� >Ì���>����Õ�Ã�1��ÛiÀÃ�ÌÞ�
on a Department of Education HIS STEM Grant for $3.6 million, with Morton College scheduled 
Ì��ÀiVi�Ûi�>««À�Ý��>Ìi�Þ�fÇxä]äää��ÛiÀ�Ì�i�V�ÕÀÃi��v�wÛi�Þi>ÀÃ°�/�i��-��-/
��}À>�Ì�v�VÕÃi`�
on: 1.) Increasing enrollment of Hispanic students into STEM pathways, namely a Computer 
Information System (CIS) degree; 2.) Increasing retention and graduation numbers for those 
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students; and, 3.) Increasing faculty and staff understanding and use of culturally relevant 
teaching and coaching strategies. The grant pays for Morton to create two positions: a full-time 
STEM-focused student advisor and a part-time STEM tutor at the ILC. The grant also sets funds 
aside for faculty and staff professional development opportunities and marketing materials for 
CIS programs at the College. 

��ÀÌ���
���i}i�>�Ã��ÀiVi�Ûi`�>�}À>�Ì�vÀ���Ì�i��������Ã�
���Õ��ÌÞ�
���i}i�	�>À`�­�

	®½Ã�Ƃ`Õ�Ì�
Education and Family Literary (AEFL) division in the amount of $1.2 million. The division also 
ÀiVi�Ûi`�>�fÎä]äää�}À>�Ì�vÀ���Ì�i�-iVÀiÌ>ÀÞ��v�-Ì>Ìi½Ã�"vwVi�v�À�>�Û��Õ�Ì>ÀÞ���ÌiÀ>VÞ�«À�}À>��
called Project Care. Additionally, Morton College received a state Preschool for All grant for 
f£nx]{ää�v�À��9Óä£n°�/��Ã�}À>�Ì�>���ÜÃ���ÀÌ���
���i}i�Ì��>VV����`>Ìi�Èä�«ÀiÃV�����>}i�
V���`Ài�]�>}iÃ�Î�x]����Ì�Àii�V�>ÃÃiÃ°�
>V����i��v�Ì�iÃi�V�>ÃÃiÃ��Ã�Ó°x���ÕÀÃ�>�`>Þ]�wÛi�`>ÞÃ�>�
week, as regulated by the grant. The program is for children at risk of academic failure and from 
v>����iÃ�Ü�Ì����Ü���V��iÃ�>�`�
�}��Ã��«À�wV�i�VÞ°�/��Ã�}À>�Ì��Ã�`iÌiÀ���i`����wÃV>��Þi>À�L>Ã�Ã°�
��À�Ì�i��iÝÌ�wÃV>��Þi>À]�Ì�i�«À�ViÃÃ�Ü����Li���Ài�V��«Ài�i�Ã�Ûi]�>�`�Ì�i�
���i}i��Ã�«Ài«>À��}�
Ì��i�ÌiÀ�>���Ài�V��«iÌ�Ì�Ûi�}À>�Ì�Ãi�iVÌ����«À�ViÃÃ°���ÀÌ���
���i}i��Ã�>�Ã��Ì�i�wÃV>��>}i�Ì�
for the annual Preschool Expansion Grant in the amount of $620,400. The grant was awarded 
v�À�Ó�Þi>ÀÃ]��9Óä£Ç�>�`��9Óä£n°��Ì��Ã�`�ÃÌÀ�LÕÌi`�Ì�� �ÀÌ��>�`�-�ÕÌ��*ÕL��V�-V�������ÃÌÀ�VÌÃ���n�
>�`��£ää]�Ü��V����ÃÌ�ÌÜ��«ÀiÃV�����V�>ÃÃÀ���Ã�i>V��­v�ÕÀ�Ì�Ì>�®°�/��Ã�vÕ���`>Þ���V�ÕÃ�Ûi�«À�}À>��
>VV����`>ÌiÃ�nä�V���`Ài���v�v>����iÃ�Ü�Ì����V��iÃ�>Ì�Óää¯�Li��Ü�Ì�i�«�ÛiÀÌÞ��iÛi�°����>��Þ]�
Morton College has applied for other grants in the past several years, including a Title V grant 
that was not successful.

"��>�Ã�>��iÀ�ÃV>�i]���ÀÌ���
���i}i�>�Ã��ÀiVi�Ûi`�Ì�i��

	���ÃV>��9i>À�Óä£n�Special Populations 
Support grant on July 26, 2017 for $10,000. That Nursing Department grant promised to use 
>�V>Ãi�ÃÌÕ`Þ��iÌ��`���}Þ�Ì��iÝ«��Ài�>�`�iÛ>�Õ>Ìi�Ì�i���yÕi�Vi��v�>��>V>`i��V�V�>V���}�
intervention on student success and performance. Moreover, the Adult Education Division 
>««��i`�v�À�vÕ�`��}�vÀ���Ì�i�-iVÀiÌ>ÀÞ��v�-Ì>Ìi½Ã�"vwVi�>�`�ÀiVi�Ûi`�>��>``�Ì���>��fÎä]äää�v�À�
Project Care, the aforementioned voluntary literacy program. On October 20, 2017, the Nursing 
�i«>ÀÌ�i�Ì�>�Ã��>««��i`�v�À�Ì�i��������Ã�	�>À`��v���}�iÀ�
`ÕV>Ì���½Ã��9Óä£n���«À�Ûi�i�Ì��À>�Ì]�
which awards $37,000.

Morton College has also worked with Purdue University, and now also with the University of 
Illinois at Chicago and Chicago State University, to collaborate on several successful NSF grants. 
Although these large STEM grants were primarily focused on educational cooperation and did 
not therefore lead to direct budgetary support for Morton College STEM activities, they did 
build grant-proposal competency within the Morton College staff. Of course, noncompetitive 
}À>�ÌÃ]���V�Õ`��}�*iÀ���Ã]�Ü��V��>��Õ�ÌÃ�Ì��fÎx{]È{Î�v�À��9Óä£n]�>�`�Ì�i�*À�}À>����«À�Ûi�i�Ì�
�À>�Ì]�Ü��V��>��Õ�ÌÃ�Ì��>««À�Ý��>Ìi�Þ�f£{]äää]�>Ài�>�Ã��Û�Ì>����}Ài`�i�ÌÃ������ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã�
�ÛiÀ>���w�>�V�>���i>�Ì�°��i�«vÕ��Þ]�Ì�i�VÕÀÀi�Ì�*iÀ���Ã�w}ÕÀi�Ài«ÀiÃi�ÌÃ�>�Îä¯���VÀi>Ãi�vÀ���Ì�i�
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2016 number due to a change in the methodology used by the state to calculate the annual 
award.

/�i�
���i}i�>�Ã���>��Ì>��Ã�>���LLÞ�ÃÌ����-«À��}wi�`�Ü��Ãi�ivv�ÀÌÃ��i`�Ì��Ì�i�fx���������ÃÌ>Ìi�
vÕ�`��}��v�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã��iÜ�
�	Õ��`��}�Ü��}]�>���Õ�Vi`����V>�«ÕÃ�LÞ�v�À�iÀ�}�ÛiÀ��À�*>Ì�
Quinn on October, 25, 2010.  

In addition to grant proposal writing and lobbying, Morton College has increased its fundraising 
activity in recent years by signing a contract in 2011 with Nyhan and Friends, LLC. The contract 
calls for Nyhan and Friends to establish a donor research program; gather, create and grow 
donor base; and work with corporations to solicit funds for the College. After the establishment 
of the fundraising contract, Morton College launched annual fundraising campaigns and held 
fundraising special events. It also established the Friends of Morton College Foundation and 
created various naming opportunities in the new C Building wing. In recent years, the Annual 
Giving Campaign has also funded a gymnasium scoreboard, two high-tech classrooms, a 
cafeteria sound system, a theater projector, and student union furniture. The College also works 
with the Morton College Foundation]�>���Ì�v�À�«À�wÌ��À}>��â>Ì����Ì�>Ì�À>�ÃiÃ����iÞ�v�À�ÃÌÕ`i�Ì�
scholarships.xn

Morton College is also experimenting with new noncredit ventures that may, over time, lead to 
�iÜ�ÀiÛi�Õi�ÃÌÀi>�Ã°�-«iV�wV>��Þ]���ÀÌ���
���i}i��>Ã�Lii��«>ÀÌ�iÀ��}�Ü�Ì���,8�]�>����VÀi`�Ì�
vendor that provides noncredit students with Pharmacy Technician and Veterinarian Assistant 
courses.

	�>À`�*���VÞ�x°Î���ÌiÃ�Ì�>Ì�>�
��iv����>�V�>��"vwViÀ��Ã�Ì�i�º>}i�Ì��v�Ì�i�
���i}i�>ÕÌ��À�âi`�
Ì���À`iÀ�ÃÕ««��iÃ]��>ÌiÀ�>�Ã]�>�`�iµÕ�«�i�Ì°»�/�i�
��iv����>�V�>��"vwViÀ�­Ü���>�Ã�����`Ã�Ì�i�
Ì�Ì�i��v���ÀiVÌ�À��v�	ÕÃ��iÃÃ�-iÀÛ�ViÃ®�ÃiÀÛiÃ����Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�
>L��iÌ�>�`�>ÌÌi�`Ã�>���	�>À`�
�v�/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ��iiÌ��}Ã°�/�i�«�Ã�Ì���½Ã�job description calls for this administrator to “serve as the 
«À��>ÀÞ�V��Ì>VÌ�v�À�>���`i«>ÀÌ�i�ÌÃ�Ài�>Ì��}�Ì����ÃÌ�ÌÕÌ���>��w�>�V�>���>�>}i�i�Ì���V�Õ`��}�Ì�i�
development and preparation of the annual budget, grant and internal control compliance, and 
w�>�V�>��Ài«�ÀÌ��}°»59�/�i�
��iv����>�V�>��"vwViÀ�>�Ã���ÛiÀÃiiÃ�>��>��Õ>��>Õ`�Ì�>�`�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�
«À�«iÀÌÞ]���>L���ÌÞ]�Ûi��V�i]�Ü�À�iÀ½Ã�V��«i�Ã>Ì���]�>�`�Ã«�ÀÌÃ���ÃÕÀ>�Vi�«À�}À>�Ã°����>��Þ]�Ì�i�

��iv����>�V�>��"vwViÀ�Ài��v�ÀViÃ�wÃV>��V��ÃiÀÛ>Ì�Ã��LÞ��ÛiÀÃii��}�V���i}i���ÛiÃÌ�i�Ì�vÕ�`�
`iV�Ã���Ã�>�`�ÃiÀÛ��}����>����v�Ì�i�V���i}i�>`����ÃÌÀ>Ì���½Ã�V���iVÌ�Ûi�L>À}>����}�Ìi>�Ã°��

The College has a tradition of orderly, transparent budget preparation cycles. Morton College 
>�Ã���>Ã�>�ÃÞÃÌi���v���ÌiÀ�>��V��ÌÀ��Ã�Ì�>Ì�i>À�i`��Ì�>�
iÀÌ�wV>Ìi��v�ƂV��iÛi�i�Ì�v�À�
ÝVi��i�Vi����
���>�V�>��,i«�ÀÌ��}�LÞ�Ì�i���ÛiÀ��i�Ì����>�Vi�"vwViÀÃ�ƂÃÃ�V�>Ì�����v�Ì�i�1°-°�>�`�
>�>`>�v�À�
the last several years. All expenditures are processed through a voucher system to ensure proper 
ÛiÀ�wV>Ì����>�`�>ÕÌ��À�â>Ì�����v�>���«>Þ�i�ÌÃ°�
Ý«i�`�ÌÕÀiÃ�>Ài�>««À�Ûi`����Þ�v�À�>ÕÌ��À�âi`�

http://www.mortoncollegefoundation.org/
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budget appropriations and do not exceed their budgeted allocations. To limit liabilities, all 
contracts are examined by a lawyer from the Delgado Law Group.

��ÀÌ���
���i}i½Ã�VÕÀÀi�Ì�LÕ`}iÌ�Ü>Ã�«ÀiÃi�Ìi`�Ì��Ì�i�	�>À`��v�/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ�>Ì�Ì�i�À��Õ�i��iiÌ��}°�
The tentative budget was displayed for public inspection for a period of 30 days. A public 
�i>À��}����Ì�i�LÕ`}iÌ�Ü>Ã��i�`����ƂÕ}ÕÃÌ�ÓÎ]�Óä£Ç]�>�`�Ì�i�w�>��LÕ`}iÌ�Ü>Ã�>««À�Ûi`�LÞ�Ì�i�
	�>À`��v�/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ�>Ì�Ì�i�À�ƂÕ}ÕÃÌ��iiÌ��}°����Ì��Þ�LÕ`}iÌÃ�>�`�w�>�V�>��Ài«�ÀÌÃ�>Ài�«ÀiÃi�Ìi`�
at each Board of Trustees meeting and made available on the Morton College website. Annual 
LÕ`}iÌÃ�>�`�>��Õ>��w�>�V�>��ÃÌ>Ìi�i�ÌÃ�>Ài�>�Ã��>Û>��>L�i�>Ì�Ì�i���ÀÌ���
���i}i�ÜiLÃ�Ìi°

On the departmental or unit level, after consulting relevant colleagues, all department chairs or 
unit leaders present Academic Unit Annual Planning (AUAP) forms or Support Unit Annual (SUAP) 
forms to academic deans or other supervisors. The forms tie all budgetary requests to Strategic 
Plan goals. These plans are posted on the portal. Approved budgetary requests are then vetted 
LÞ�Ì�i�*À�Û�ÃÌ]�
��iv����>�V�>��"vwViÀ]�>�`��Ì�iÀ��i�LiÀÃ��v�Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�
>L��iÌ°�/��Ã�
internal process is meant to provide both transparency and multiple levels of administrative 
ÃVÀÕÌ��Þ�Ì��LÕ`}iÌ>ÀÞ�ÀiµÕiÃÌÃ°�/�i�
���i}i½Ã��ÛiÀ>���«�>����}�VÞV�i�Li}��Ã�Ü�Ì��`i«>ÀÌ�i�Ì�
chairs and unit leaders in February and generally concludes with the Board of Trustees in August 
or shortly thereafter. 

/��V��V�Õ`i]�Ì�i�v����Ü��}�ÃÕ��>À�âiÃ�Ì�i���«>VÌ��v�Ì�i�ÃÌ>Ìi½Ã�LÕ`}iÌ�VÀ�Ã�Ã������ÀÌ���

���i}i½Ã�w�>�V�>��«�Ã�Ì���\

/�i�
���i}i�w��Ã�i`��9Óä£x�Ü�Ì��{°£����Ì���v�ÀiÃiÀÛiÃ�Ì���iiÌ����Ì��Þ�i`ÕV>Ì���>��vÕ�`�
expenses. In FY2016, due to the state budget impasse, Morton College only received $1.3M 
�À�Óx¯��v�Ì�i�ÃÌ>Ìi½Ã��9Óä£x�>���V>Ì���°�ƂÌ�Ì�i�i�`��v��9Óä£È]�Ì�i�i`ÕV>Ì����vÕ�`�L>�>�Vi�Ü>Ã�
$2.9 million dollars. Due to the state budget impasse, Morton College estimated that only 75% 
of the FY2015 operating budget allocation would be received for FY2017, which amounted to 
$3,593,959. For FY2017, the State of Illinois passed a Stopgap Budget that appropriated funds for 
Ì�i�wÀÃÌ�Ã�Ý����Ì�Ã��v�Ì�i�wÃV>��Þi>À°�/�Ì>��LÕ`}iÌ�>���V>Ìi`�Ì����ÀÌ���
���i}i�Ü>Ã�fÓ]nÈ�]ÇnÈ�
and 100% of that allocation was received. On July 6, 2017, the state passed SB6 appropriating 
fÓ°n�����ÃÕ««�i�i�Ì>��vÕ�`��}�v�À��9Óä£Ç°�/�i�
���i}i�iÃÌ��>ÌiÃ�Ì�>Ì��ÌÃ��9Óä£Ç�i�`��}�
i`ÕV>Ì����vÕ�`�L>�>�Vi�Ü����Li�fx°x�°�-	È�>�Ã��>««À�«À�>Ìi`�ÃÌ>Ìi�vÕ�`��}�v�À��9Óä£n����Ì�i�
>��Õ�Ì��v�fx°���������°�/�i��9Óä£n�Ìi�Ì>Ì�Ûi�LÕ`}iÌ�Ü>Ã�«ÀiÃi�Ìi`�Ì��Ì�i�	�>À`����Ì�i��Õ�i�
Óä£Ç�L�>À`��iiÌ��}°���À��9Óä£n]�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�>`����ÃÌÀ>Ì�����>`�iÃÌ��>Ìi`�Ì�>Ì����Þ�xä¯��v�
the FY2015 operating budget allocation would be received, which only amounted to $2.5M. 
The College did not increase any expenditures after the appropriation of SB6 and will use those 
funds to build up institutional reserves to FY2015 numbers. 

/�i�
���i}i½Ã�
��«Ài�i�Ã�Ûi�Ƃ��Õ>�����>�V�>��,i«�ÀÌ�v�À���ÃV>��9i>À�
�`i`��Õ�i�Îä]�Óä£Ç]�Ü>Ã�



Morton College Focused Report / December 2017     24

>««À�Ûi`�LÞ�Ì�i�	�>À`��v�/ÀÕÃÌiiÃ���� �Ûi�LiÀ�£Î]�Óä£x]�>�`��Ã�>����`�V>Ì�����v�Ì�i�
���i}i½Ã�
�ÛiÀ>���wÃV>���i>�Ì�°��Ì�>�Ã��>ÌÌiÃÌÃ�Ì��Ì�i�v>VÌ�Ì�>Ì�Ì�i�
���i}i��>Ã�v>�À�Þ�>�`�>VVÕÀ>Ìi�Þ�ÌÀ>V�i`�
�ÌÃ�w�>�V�>����v�À�>Ì����>VV�À`��}�Ì��}i�iÀ>��Þ�>VVi«Ìi`�>VV�Õ�Ì��}�«À��V�«�iÃ°�/�i�ƂÕ`�Ì�À½Ã�
Report (Appendix D) includes a positive note about the improved higher education funding 
climate.60��Ì���ÌiÃ�Ì�>Ì�v�À��9Óä£Ç]�ºÌ�i�ÃÌ>Ìi�>««À�Ûi`�Ì�i�¼ÃÌ�«}>«½�LÕ`}iÌ]�>�Ã�Ý����Ì��LÕ`}iÌ�
Ü�Ì��>««À�«À�>Ì���Ã��v�fÓ°n��v�À�Ì�i�	>Ãi�"«iÀ>Ì��}�>�`�
µÕ>��â>Ì�����À>�ÌÃ°�����Õ�Þ]�-	È�Ü>Ã�
«>ÃÃi`�Ü�Ì��>���V>Ì���Ã�v�À�fÓ�����ÃÕ««�i�i�Ì>��vÕ�`��}�v�À��9Óä£Ç°��Õ�`��}�v�À��9Óä£n�Ü>Ã�
also allocated.”  


��V�ÕÃ���

Morton College believes that it has made substantive progress in all of the areas highlighted by 
Ì�i���}�iÀ��i>À���}�
����ÃÃ���½Ã���VÕÃi`�6�Ã�Ì�Ài«�ÀÌ]���V�Õ`��}�L�>À`�}�ÛiÀ�>�Vi]�«ÀiÃ�`i�Ì�>��
professional development opportunities, participatory governance, internal communications, 
>�`�w�>�V�>��>VV�Õ�Ì>L���ÌÞ°����>����v�Ì�iÃi�>Ài>Ã]���«À�Ûi�i�ÌÃ��>Ûi�Lii���>`i�>Ã��ÕÌ���i`�
previously. To be sure, Morton College does not believe any of these broad institutional 
mandates can be either completely or permanently resolved in any short-term framework. 
However, the College has focused its attention on making tangible improvements within the 
context of newly established, ongoing reform methodologies. Thus, the Board of Trustees has 
renewed its commitment to its own policies by holding retreats, hiring a reputable governance 
consulting company, attending relevant trustee association conferences, and providing 
the President with broad goals. The President has continued to participate in an ambitious 
professional development program. The College has created a College Council and broadened 
Ì�i�*ÀiÃ�`i�Ì½Ã�
>L��iÌ�Ì���>�i��Ì���Ài���V�ÕÃ�Ûi��v�V>�«ÕÃ�ÃÌ>�i���`iÀÃ°�/�i�
���i}i��>Ã�>�Ã��
created and implemented a comprehensive internal communications policy. Morton College is 
eager to receive feedback on each of these components insofar as it believes that each of these 
Àiv�À�����Ì�>Ì�ÛiÃ�Ü����Li�iwÌ�vÀ���V��Ì��Õi`�����Ì�À��}�>�`�vii`L>V��vÀ���L�Ì����ÌiÀ�>��>�`�
external actors in the months to come.
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SUPPORTING EVIDENCE FILES
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1. Mission Statement (p3)
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Ϯ͘��ŐĞŶĚĂ�ŽĨ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�dƌƵƐƚĞĞƐ�ZĞƚƌĞĂƚͬ^ƉĞĐŝĂů�DĞĞƟŶŐ�;p3)
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3. Board Policy 2.1 (p4)
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ϰ͘�DŽƌƚŽŶ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�KƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶĂů��ŚĂƌƚ�;p4)
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5. Code of Conduct (p4)
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6. Board Policy 2.3 (p4)
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7. Board Policy 1.9 (p5)
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8. Board Policy 1.2.1 (p5)
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ϵ͘�ŚƩƉ͗ͬͬ ǁǁǁ͘ŵŽƌƚŽŶ͘ĞĚƵͬ�ŽĂƌĚͺŽĨͺdƌƵƐƚĞĞƐͬ��;p5)

ϭϭ͘�ŚƩƉƐ͗ͬͬ ǁǁǁ͘ĂĐĐƚ͘ŽƌŐͬ�ŽŶŐƌĞƐƐϮϬϭϲ��;p5)

10. Board of Trustees (p5)
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ϭϯ͘�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ��ŽĂƌĚ�DĞĞƟŶŐ��ŐĞŶĚĂ�;p5)

ϭϮ͘�ŚƩƉƐ͗ͬͬ ǁǁǁ͘ĂĐĐƚ͘ŽƌŐͬĞǀĞŶƚƐͬϮϬϭϳĐŽŶŐƌĞƐƐ�;p5)



Morton College Focused Report / December 2017     36



Morton College Focused Report / December 2017     37



Morton College Focused Report / December 2017     38

ϭϰ͘�:ƵŶĞ�ϳ͕ �ϮϬϭϳ�^ƉĞĐŝĂů��ŽĂƌĚ�DĞĞƟŶŐ��ŐĞŶĚĂ�;p6)

ϭϱ͘�ŚƩƉƐ͗ͬͬ ǁǁǁ͘ĐŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟǀĞďƌĂŝŶƚƌƵƐƚ͘ĐŽŵͬ��;p6)

ϭϲ͘�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ĂŶĚ�&ŝŶĚŝŶŐƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�Ϯϯ͕�ϮϬϭϳ��ŽĂƌĚ�DĞĞƟŶŐ��;p6)

;&Žƌ�&Ƶůů��ŐĞŶĚĂ͗�ŚƩƉ͗ͬͬ ǁǁǁ͘ŵŽƌƚŽŶ͘ĞĚƵͬƵƉůŽĂĚĞĚ&ŝůĞƐͬǁǁǁͬ�ŽĂƌĚͺŽĨͺdƌƵƐƚĞĞƐͬĚŽĐͬZĞŐƵůĂƌйϮϬDŝŶƵƚĞƐйϮϬϬϭͺϮϯͺϭϳͿ
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ϭϳ͘ � DĂƌĐŚ�ϭϭͲϭϮ͕�ϮϬϭϲ
� /ůůŝŶŽŝƐ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�dƌƵƐƚĞĞ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ�;/��d�Ϳ
� /��d��^ĞŵŝŶĂƌͬ WƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�DĞĞƟŶŐ
 Lombard, IL 

ϭϴ͘� DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬͲϮϯ͕�ϮϬϭϲ
� >ĞĂŐƵĞ�ĨŽƌ�/ŶŶŽǀĂƟŽŶ͗�/ŶŶŽǀĂƟŽŶƐ��ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ��
� �ŚŝĐĂŐŽ͕�/>
� KƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůƐ�ŝŶ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĞůĞďƌĂƚĞ�ĐƌĞĂƟǀĞ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ� 
� ŝŵƉƌŽǀŝŶŐ�ƐƚƵĚĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶĂů�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ͘��
� �ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ƚŽƉŝĐƐ͗�
� ͻ�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�dĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ
� ͻ�>ĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĂŶĚ�KƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶ
� ͻ�tŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ�WƌĞƉĂƌĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ
� ͻ�^ƚƵĚĞŶƚ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�^ƵĐĐĞƐƐ
� ͻ��ĂƐŝĐ�^ŬŝůůƐ�ĂŶĚ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚĂů��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ

19. April 8, 2016
� �ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ��ĚǀŝƐŽƌǇ��ŽĂƌĚ�;���Ϳ
� �ŵďƌĂĐŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�hŶƉƌĞĐĞĚĞŶƚĞĚ�DŽŵĞŶƚ͗���ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�>ĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ�^Ƶŵŵŝƚ
� �ŚŝĐĂŐŽ͕�/>�
� ����EĂƟŽŶĂů�DĞĞƟŶŐ��Ɖƌŝů�ϴ�ϮϬϭϲ͘ƉĚĨ
� �ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ƚŽƉŝĐƐ͗�
� ͻ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�^ƚĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ĞĐƚŽƌ
� ͻ�dŚĞ�^ŚŝŌŝŶŐ��ŶƌŽůůŵĞŶƚ�>ĂŶĚƐĐĂƉĞ
� ͻ�'ĞƫŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�EĞǆƚ�WŚĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�^ƚƵĚĞŶƚ�^ƵĐĐĞƐƐ
� ͻ�DĞĞƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�^ŬŝůůƐ�'ĂƉ��ŚĂůůĞŶŐĞ
� ͻ�^ĞǆƵĂů�DŝƐĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ�dƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ

ϮϬ͘� �Ɖƌŝů�ϵͲϭϮ͕�ϮϬϭϲ
� �ŵĞƌŝĐĂŶ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ŽůůĞŐĞƐ�;����Ϳ
� ϵϲƚŚ��ŶŶƵĂů�������ŽŶǀĞŶƟŽŶ͗�KƵƌ��ĂŵĞůŽƚ�DŽŵĞŶƚ͗���ŶĞǁ�ĚĂǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĐŽůůĞŐĞƐ͘
� �ŚŝĐĂŐŽ͕�/>
� �����ϵϲƚŚ��ŶŶƵĂů��ŽŶǀĞŶƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ǀĞŶƚƐ͘ƉĚĨ
� �ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�dŽƉŝĐƐ͗
� ͻ�^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞĚ�ƉĂƚŚǁĂǇƐ
 • College readiness
� ͻ��ƌĞĂƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ŚŝŐŚͲƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĐƵůƚƵƌĞƐ
� ͻ�/ŶƐƟƚƵƟŽŶĂů�ƚƌĂŶƐĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ
� ͻ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚĂů�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞĚĞƐŝŐŶ
� ͻ�>ĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ
� ͻ�/ŶĚƵƐƚƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ�ĐŽŵƉĞƚĞŶĐŝĞƐ

Ϯϭ͘� ,ŝŐŚĞƌ�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ��ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ
� ϮϬϭϳ��ŶŶƵĂů��ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ͗��EĂǀŝŐĂƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�&ƵƚƵƌĞ
� �ŚŝĐĂŐŽ͕�/>�
� ŚƩƉ͗ͬͬ ĚŽǁŶůŽĂĚ͘ŚůĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ͘ŽƌŐͬĂŶŶƵĂůͲĐŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞͬϮϬϭϳͬ WƌŽŐƌĂŵ�ŽŽŬͺϮϬϭϳͺ/E&͘ ƉĚĨ
� ͻ�WĞĞƌ��ŽƌƉƐ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵ͗�&ŽĐƵƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĚŝĸĐƵůƚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ƉĞĞƌ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ͘���ǀĂůƵĂƟŶŐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƐƟƚƵƟŽŶƐ� 
� ���ŐŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĮŶĂŶĐĞƐ͕�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ŝƚƐ�ĞīŽƌƚƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞͲĂŶĚ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞʹƐƚƵĚĞŶƚ�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐ
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� ͻ�WĂƚŚǁĂǇƐ�tŽƌŬƐŚŽƉ͗��ƐƐŝƐƚ�ŝŶƐƟƚƵƟŽŶĂů�ĨĂĐƵůƚǇ͕�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟǀĞ�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ��ĐĐƌĞĚŝƚĂƟŽŶ�>ŝĂŝƐŽŶ� 
� ���KĸĐĞƌƐ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĐĐƌĞĚŝƚĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁƐ�ŝŶ�Ăůů�ƉĂƚŚǁĂǇƐ

ϮϮ͘� /ůůŝŶŽŝƐ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�dƌƵƐƚĞĞ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ�;/��d�Ϳ
� /ůůŝŶŽŝƐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŽĨ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�WƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�DĞĞƟŶŐ
� �ŶŶƵĂů��ŽŶǀĞŶƟŽŶ�
� �ůŽŽŵŝŶŐƚŽŶͲEŽƌŵĂů͕�/>�
� /��d���ŶŶƵĂů��ŽŶǀĞŶƟŽŶ�:ƵŶĞϭͲϯ�ϮϬϭϳ͘ ƉĚĨ

Ϯϯ͘� :ƵůǇ�ϮϮͲϮϱ͕�ϮϬϭϳ
� �ŵĞƌŝĐĂŶ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ŽůůĞŐĞƐ�;����Ϳ
� WƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ��ĐĂĚĞŵǇ�^ƵŵŵĞƌ�/ŶƐƟƚƵƚĞ͗�dŚĞ�^ƚŽƌŝĞƐ�tĞ�dĞůů͘��dŚĞ�/ŵƉŽƌƚĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�WƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƟĂů�>ĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ
� EĞǁ�zŽƌŬ��ŝƚǇ
� ŚƩƉ͗ͬͬ ǁǁǁ͘ĂĂĐĐ͘ŶĐŚĞ͘ĞĚƵͬŶĞǁƐĞǀĞŶƚƐͬ�ǀĞŶƚƐͬƉĂƐŝͬWĂŐĞƐͬĚĞĨĂƵůƚ͘ĂƐƉǆ
� �ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�dŽƉŝĐƐ͗
� ͻ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ŽůůĞŐĞƐ�ZĞĂĐŚ�dŚĞ�EĞǁ�&ƌŽŶƟĞƌ͗��ƐŬŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ŵŽŶĞǇ
� ͻ�dŚĞ�WƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�dƌƵƐƚĞĞƐ͗�,Žǁ�ƚŽ�ďƵŝůĚ�ĂŶ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�dĞĂŵ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐĂŶ�ƉƌŽŵŽƚĞ�Ă�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ƐƚŽƌǇ� 
    of student success
� ͻ�^ŽĐŝĂů�ŵĞĚŝĂ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĨŽƌ�WƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ͗��dĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ�ƐƚŽƌǇ

Ϯϰ͘� KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϴͲϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϳ
� ,ŝƐƉĂŶŝĐ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ŽůůĞŐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�hŶŝǀĞƌƐŝƟĞƐ�;,��hͿ
� ,��h�ϯϭƐƚ��ŶŶƵĂů��ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ͗��ŚĂŵƉŝŽŶŝŶŐ�,ŝƐƉĂŶŝĐ�,ŝŐŚĞƌ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�^ƵĐĐĞƐƐ͗��ƌŝǀŝŶŐ��ŵĞƌŝĐĂ Ɛ͛� 
 Prosperity
� ^ĂŶ��ŝĞŐŽ͕���
� ŚƩƉƐ͗ͬͬ ǁǁǁ͘ŚĂĐƵ͘ŶĞƚͬŚĂĐƵͬ�ŶŶƵĂůͺ�ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞͺ�ŐĞŶĚĂ͘ĂƐƉ

Ϯϱ͘�ŚƩƉ͗ͬͬ ǁǁǁ͘ŶĂĐƚĐ͘ŽƌŐͬ��;ƉƉϳͲϴ)

Ϯϲ͘�ŚƩƉƐ͗ͬͬ ǁǁǁ͘ĐŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞͲďŽĂƌĚ͘ŽƌŐͬĐŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐͬĐŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞĚĞƚĂŝů͘ĐĨŵ͍ĐŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞŝĚсϮϴϬϬ��;p8)

Ϯϳ͘ �ŚƩƉ͗ͬͬ ŝůƐŚƌŵ͘ŽƌŐͬ��;p8)

Ϯϴ͘�ŚƩƉƐ͗ͬͬ ǁǁǁ͘ƐŚƌŵ͘ŽƌŐͬƉĂŐĞƐͬĚĞĨĂƵůƚ͘ĂƐƉǆ��;p8)
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Ϯϵ͘�:ƵůǇ�ϮϬ�ϮϬϭϳ��ŽĂƌĚ�DĞĞƟŶŐ��ŐĞŶĚĂ�;p8)
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30. Morton College Governance Structure  (p9)
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31. Board Policy 3.1 (p9)
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ϯϮ͘�&ĂĐƵůƚǇ��ƐƐĞŵďůǇ��ŚĂƌƚĞƌ�;p9)
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ϯϯ͘��ŽŵƉƌĞŚĞŶƐŝǀĞ�&ĂĐƵůƚǇ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ�DĞĞƟŶŐƐ�;p9)
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ϯϰ͘��ĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞ�;p9)
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ϯϱ͘��ƵƌƌŝĐƵůƵŵ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ�;p10)
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ϯϲ͘��ĚǀŝƐŽƌǇ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ�;p10)
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37. Program Assessment Policy (p10)
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ϯϴ͘�&ƵůůͲdŝŵĞ�&ĂĐƵůƚǇ��ŽůůĞĐƟǀĞ��ĂƌŐĂŝŶŝŶŐ��ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�;p10)
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ϯϵ͘�WĂƌƚͲdŝŵĞ�&ĂĐƵůƚǇ��ŽůůĞĐƟǀĞ��ĂƌŐĂŝŶŝŶŐ��ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�;p10)
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ϰϬ͘��ůĂƐƐŝĮĞĚ�^ƚĂī��ŽůůĞĐƟǀĞ��ĂƌŐĂŝŶŝŶŐ��ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�;p10)
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ϰϭ͘��ƌƟĐůĞ�ϭϭ͘ϯ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�&ƵůůͲdŝŵĞ�&ĂĐƵůƚǇ��ŽůůĞĐƟǀĞ��ĂƌŐĂŝŶŝŶŐ��ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ��;p11)
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42. College Council  (p11)
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ϰϯ͘��ƌĂŌ�DŽƌƚŽŶ��ŽůůĞŐĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�dƌƵƐƚĞĞƐ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ŽŶ�WĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƚŽƌǇ�'ŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ��;p12)
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ϰϰ͘��ĚŽƉƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�WĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƚŽƌǇ�'ŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�Ăƚ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�Ϯϯ͕�ϮϬϭϳ��ŽĂƌĚ�DĞĞƟŶŐ��;p12)
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ϰϱ͘��ĚǀŝĐĞ��ŽŶĐĞƌŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�DĂŬĞͲƵƉ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů��;p13)
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PRESIDENT’S RESPONSE TO PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES
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Following is my complete response to the performance objectives approved by the Board, July 20, 2017. 

 

Objective #1 – Demonstrate leadership in fundraising major gifts for Morton, as evaluated by the Board. 

  

Action 1.1 Establish and staff (minimum 1.5 FTE) a Development Office for the College to 
coordinate and implement a cohesive and sustainable comprehensive development plan 
focused on short and long-term fundraising objectives that would support scholarships 
and capital projects through: 

•         Alumni Relations 

•         Special Events 

•         Annual Fundraising 

•         Major Gifts 

•         Planned Gifts 

•         Corporate Sponsorships 

Action 1.2 Extend the food services contract to continue capital investment in the Kitchen, 
Commons and Theatre facilities.  

Action 1.3 Privatize the management and operations of the campus bookstore to secure a significant 
initial capital investment in the facility. 

Action 1.4 Review and confirm priorities in the Board approved, 9.28.16, Master Plan  

Action 1.5 Organize a “Rocket-Property” focus group to present prioritized recommendations for 
property development to the Board. 

  

Objective #2: Regular calls to each Trustee of the Board prior to each monthly Board meeting to discuss the 
upcoming agenda. 

  

Action 2.1 Following the monthly BoardBook review meeting with the Board Chair and legal  
counsel, the final draft of the Board meeting agenda will be distributed to each Trustee  
followed by a phone conference to review the agenda. 

  

Objective #3:  Increase transparency by including all stakeholders when providing updates to the Board, 
including, but not limited to the Business Office and Faculty Union President. 

  

Action 3.1 Excepting confidential information, all communication distributed to the Board will be  
provided to Administration and the College Council. 

Action 3.2            At the request of Michele Mohr, Full-Time Faculty Union President, to join the Cabinet, 
the following positions have been added to the Cabinet. 

•         Faculty Assembly President, Steve Ginley 

•         Adjunct Faculty Union President, Marilyn Craig 

•         Classified Staff Union President, Eric Porod 

•         Faculty Union President, Michele Mohr 



Action 3.3 MC Update 

  

Objective #4: Develop strategic plan for Board review, with consideration given to budget.  

  

Action 4.1 Morton College 2022 Moving Forward 2018-2022 Strategic Plan (See 
Attachment)                        

  

Objective #5: Develop an enrollment plan to increase student enrollment by 2%.  The enrollment plan shall 
be specifically targeted to enrollment of underserved communities. 

  

Action 5.1 Strategic Enrollment Management Plan Academic Years 2019-2021 (See Attachment) 

  

Objective #6:  Develop a fundraising plan for the Friends of Morton Foundation that includes the President 
having a substantive role in the fundraising plan and fundraising for the Friends of Morton Foundation. 

  

Action 6.1 Establish and staff (minimum 1.5 FTE) a Development Office for the College to 
coordinate and implement a cohesive and sustainable comprehensive development plan 
focused on short and long-term fundraising objectives that would support scholarships 
and capital projects through: 

•         Alumni Relations 

•         Special Events 

•         Annual Fundraising 

•         Major Gifts 

•         Planned Gifts 

•         Corporate Sponsorships 

Action 6.2 Extend the food services contract to continue capital investment in the Kitchen, 
Commons and Theatre facilities.  

Action 6.3 Privatize the management and operations of the campus bookstore to secure a significant 
initial capital investment in the facility. 

Action 6.4 Review and confirm priorities in the Board approved, 9.28.16, Master Plan.  

Action 6.5 Organize a “Rocket-Property” focus group to present prioritized recommendations for 
property development to the Board. 

 

Objective #7: Develop plan to improve full-time faculty morale which shall result in an increase in Morton’s 
Personal Assessment of the College Environment (“PACE”) score from the last PACE survey conducted in 
2015. 

 

Action 7.1 College Council 

Action 7.2 MC Update  

Action 7.3 At the request of Michele Mohr, Full-Time Faculty Union President, to join the Cabinet, 
the following positions have been added to the Cabinet. 



•         Faculty Assembly President, Steve Ginley 

•         Adjunct Faculty Union President, Marilyn Craig 

•         Classified Staff Union President, Eric Porod 

•         Faculty Union President, Michele Mohr 

Action 7.4 CommUNITY Group 

Action 7.5 Expand employee engagement opportunities  

•         Town Hall Meetings facilitated by Human Resources 

•         Provost Coffee 

•         Welcome Week 

•         Annual Holiday Party 

•         Staff Nomination Ceremony 

•         New Employee Orientation Luncheon 

•         Bring Your Son/Daughter to Work Day   

•         Employee Appreciation Day 

•         Semester Faculty Luncheon 

•         Community Outreach 

•         College Fairs 

•         Community festivals 

•         Community parades  

Action 7.6 Increased Professional Development Fund for Faculty from $30,000 to $50,000 for 
FY18. 

  

Objective #8: Finalize internal Communication Plan, which shall include a substantive role for the 
President.  The plan shall also specifically include a process that facilitates and fosters better communication 
by the President with the Board.  

  

Action 8.1 Established and staffed (1.0 FTE) a Public Relations and Community Outreach Office for 
the purpose of promoting the vision (pending Board approval), mission and core values 
of the College, and foster a culture of transparent communication in the College 
Community.  

Action 8.2 Conducted a culture, climate needs assessment. 

Action 8.3 Eliminated the Marketing, Graphic Design Department. 

Action 8.4 Review and determination of school colors and mascot. 

Action 8.5 Developed branding guide (pending). 

Action 8.6 Reviewed and revised internal and external communication procedures to ensure strict 
adherence to the stated purpose. 

Action 8.7 Utilize all digital and print communications platforms. 

•         Social Media  



•         Newspaper 

•         Radio 

•         TV 

•         Print marketing 

•         Press releases 

•         Media alerts 

•         Tangible marketing materials 

Action 8.8 Expand College Community engagement opportunities 

•         College Council 

•         Cabinet  

•         Student Advisory to the President 

•         MC Update 

•         CommUNITY Committee 

•         Town Hall Meetings facilitated by Human Resources 

•         Provost Coffee 

•         Welcome Week 

•         Annual Holiday Party 

•         Staff Nomination Ceremony 

•         New Employee Orientation Luncheon 

•         Bring Your Son/Daughter to Work Day   

•         Employee Appreciation Day 

•         Semester Faculty Luncheon 

•         College Fairs 

•         Community festivals 

•         Community parades 

Action 8.9 Utilize a full service printing company for any additional graphic design requests not 
included in the branding guide. 

Action 8.10 Assign the procurement of all advertising projects to Public Relations and Community 
Outreach Director. 

Action 8.11 Review rebranding proposal. 

Action 8.12 Promote community use of campus facilities.   

  

Objective #9 – Maintain transparency in Morton’s procurement process by following the Illinois Community 
College Act and Morton Board Policy and maintain evidence of the same.  

  

Action 9.1 Frank Marzullo, Executive Director of Operations, has assumed responsibility for vendor 
relations and contract management effective July 1, 2017. 



Action 9.2 Mireya Perez, CFO and Director of Business Services, and Anthony Ray, Executive 
Director of Human Resources/Ombudsman, will review and recommend appropriate 
staffing for the Business Office to ensure that adequate time and resources are available 
to monitor all internal controls.  
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Morton College, Community College District No. 527 
 
 
October 16, 2017 
 
To Members of the Board of Trustees of Morton College,  
  Community College District No. 527: 
 
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) of Morton College, (“the College”), Community 
College District No. 527, County of Cook, State of Illinois, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, is hereby 
submitted.  Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the 
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with management of the College. To the best of our knowledge 
and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to 
present fairly the financial position and changes in financial position of the College. All disclosures 
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the College’s financial activities in relation to 
its mission have been included. 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This letter of transmittal should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis, which focuses on current activities, accounting changes, and currently known facts. 
 
VISION, MISSION AND GOALS 
 
The District’s Vision Statement:   
 
Our Vision is to be the leader among educational institutions in the delivery of quality academic and 
workforce development programs that enhance the quality of life for the towns of Berwyn, Cicero, Forest 
View, Lyons, McCook, and Stickney. 
 
The District’s Mission Statement: 
 
As a comprehensive Community College, recognized by the Illinois Community College Board (“ICCB”), 
the mission of Morton College is to enhance the quality of life of our diverse community through exemplary 
teaching and learning opportunities, community service, and life-long learning. 
 
Consistent with our mission, Morton College’s educational philosophy conforms to requirements set forth 
in state law and stresses the importance of helping individuals live and work as better informed citizens in 
a dynamic society.  This philosophy is reflected in the College’s programs that model core values of truth, 
compassion, fairness, responsibility and respect. 
 
The following strategic goals define the framework within the District’s annual operating and capital budgets 
are formulated and considered for the next three to five years. 
 

1. Make student success the core work of Morton College. 
2. Develop new programs and strengthen existing programs to respond to projected economic trends. 
3. Promote the health and economic vitality of the community through dynamic partnerships, 

coalitions and collaboration. 
4. Build on relationships with school districts to create a seamless education experience in Morton 

College’s service area. 
5. Expand program delivery options, including the use of instructional technology in student learning. 
6. Foster an entrepreneurial environment to create new revenue sources and operational efficiencies. 
7. Make better use of existing data and information and create new actionable information to support 

College operations and strategic planning. 
8. Expand professional growth opportunities for faculty and staff to cultivate an environment of 

continuous quality improvement. 



 
 
 

ii. 

DIVERSITY STATEMENT 
 
Diversity at Morton College is more than just a variety of people with different backgrounds.  It is the core 
of who we are as an educational culture and it supports our goals as an organization.  Consistent with its 
mission of social responsibility and community development, Morton College continually works “to enhance 
the quality of life of our diverse community.” 
 
GENERAL 
 
The College prepares its financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America (“GAAP”) as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(“GASB”). The College maintains its accounts in accordance with guidelines set forth by the National 
Association of College and University Business Officers (“NACUBO”) and the ICCB. The ICCB requires 
accounting by funds in order that limitations and restrictions on resources can be easily accounted for. The 
financial records of the College are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting whereby all revenues 
are recorded when earned and all expenses are recorded when incurred.  
 
ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 
 
The following table illustrates enrollments over the last five years: 
 

Student Enrollment Headcount 
Fiscal Year 

 

PROGRAM TYPE 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Transfer Program 1,957  1,894 1,885 1,936 2,052 
Career Programs 2,023  1,989 1,622 1,554 1,674 
Liberal Studies 538     532    439 454    467    
Course Enrollees 966     930    1,456 1,682 1,976 
Adult Education/ESL 1,164  1,597 1,714 1,883 1,814 
Total 6,648  6,942 7,116 7,509 7,983 

Total FTE 2,716  2,996 3,009 3,114 3,229 

Fiscal Year

 
 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Internal Controls. Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
controls designed to protect the assets of the College, prevent loss from theft or misuse and to provide 
adequate accounting data to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Internal controls are designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable 
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived: and 
(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 
 
Budgetary Controls.  The objective of the College budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal 
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the College’s Board of Trustees.   
  



 
 
 

iii. 

Activities of the following fund groups and individual funds are included in the annual budget.  These funds 
are required for ICCB reporting purpose only. 
 

FUND GROUP  FUND 
Current Unrestricted  Education 
  Operating and Maintenance 
  Auxiliary / Enterprise 
   
Current Restricted  Restricted Purpose 
  Working Cash 
  Liability, Protection, and Settlement 
  Audit 
   
Plant and Other  Bond and Interest 
  Investment in Plant 
  Operating and Maintenance (Restricted) 

 
The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot exceed the appropriated 
amount) is established for each individual fund of the College. The College also maintains an encumbrance 
accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at 
the end of each fiscal year.   
 
As demonstrated by the statements included in financial section of this report, the College meets its 
responsibility for sound financial management. 
 
Property Taxes.  The following table illustrates the College’s final property tax levy rates over the last five 
years: 
 
Levy Rates (Per $100 of assessed valuations): 
 

Property Tax Year 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Assessed valuation (in millions) Legal Limit 1,442   1,393   1,434   1,538   1,641   

Tax Rates
Education Fund 0.7500        0.4860 0.4999 0.4711 0.4226 0.3866 
Operation and Maintenance Fund 0.1000        0.0926 0.1000 0.1000 0.1000 0.1000 
Operation and Maintenance 
  Fund (restricted) 0.0500        -           
Bond and interest -                  0.0448 0.0463 0.0448 0.0413 0.0273 
Life Safety Fund 0.0500        
Liability Insurance Fund -                  0.0370 0.0373 0.0399 0.0321 0.0263 
Social Security Fund -                  0.0150 0.0149 0.0145 0.0115 0.0105 
Audit Fund 0.0050        0.0046 0.0048 0.0050 0.0050 0.0050 
Total 0.9550        0.6800 0.7032 0.6753 0.6125 0.5557 

 
 
The assessed value of taxable property for 2016, for taxes collectible in 2017, is $1,442,272,976. 
 
The College’s average collection rate over the past five years, including collection of back taxes, has been 
approximately 98.0%, as Cook County extends the College’s levies up to 103.0% depending on the tax cap 
limitation. 
  



 
 
 

iv. 

PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE 
 
For FY2017, the state approved the “Stopgap” budget, a six month budget with appropriations of $2.8M for 
the Base Operating and Equalization Grants.  In July 2017, SB6 was passed with allocations of $2.8M in 
supplemental funding for FY2017.  Funding for FY2018 was also allocated.   
 
Public Act 89-1 placed limitations on the annual growth of property tax collections of most local 
governments, including the College. 
 
DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
The College has two General Obligation Bond series outstanding for projects. As of June 30, 2017, 
$3,455,000 was outstanding and during fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, $440,000 in principal was retired.  
See Note 4.   
 
OTHER INFORMATION 
 
Awards.  The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (“GFOA”) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the College for its 
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  The Certificate of 
Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for 
preparation of state and local government financial reports. 
 
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable 
and efficiently organized CAFR whose contents conform to program standards.  Such CAFR must satisfy 
both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal 
requirements.   
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe our current report continues 
to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA.   
 
Independent Audit.  State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public auditors. The 
Morton College’s Board of Trustees selected BKD, LLP as the College’s auditors. The auditors’ report on 
the financial statements and schedules is included in the financial section of the report. 
 
Acknowledgements. The preparation of the CAFR was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire 
staff of the finance department.  Each member of the department has our sincere appreciation for the 
contributions made in the preparation of this report.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
/S/ Mireya Perez 

 
Mireya Perez 
Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
/S/ Dr. Stanley Fields 

 
Dr. Stanley Fields 
President 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Morton College - Community College 
District No. 527 
Cicero, Illinois 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Morton College, Community College 
District No. 527 (College), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and in accordance with the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Morton College, Community College District No. 527 as of June 30, 
2017 and 2016, and the respective changes in its financial position and cash flows, for the years 
then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, Schedule of the College’s Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability and Schedule of College’s Contributions, as identified in the table of contents, 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part 
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Morton College - Community College District No. 527’s basic financial 
statements.  The introductory section, statistical section and special reports section are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
The special reports section is required by the Illinois Community College Board and is presented 
on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

The special reports section is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  In our opinion, the special reports section is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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The introductory section and statistical section in the table of contents have not been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 16, 2017, on our consideration of Morton College’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Morton College’s internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Morton College’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 
October 16, 2017 
 



 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
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This section of Morton College’s Financial Report presents Management’s Discussion and analysis of the College’s 
financial activity during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016.  Since this Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on current year’s activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, it 
should be read in conjunction with the transmittal letter (pages i-iv), the College’s basic financial statements (pages 10-
13) and the footnotes (pages 14-35). Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this information rests with the 
College. 
 
Using This Annual Report 
 
The financial statements prepared under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 focus 
on the College as a whole.  The College’s basic financial statements (see pages 10-13) are designed to emulate 
corporate presentation models whereby all College activities are consolidated into one total column.  The Statements 
of Net Position presents information on all the College’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two 
reported as net position.  These statements combine and consolidate current and long-term financial resources and 
capital assets. The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position focus on both the gross costs 
and the net costs of College activities, which are supported mainly by property taxes, state and other revenues.  This 
approach is intended to summarize and simplify the user’s analysis of costs of various College services to students 
and the public. 
 

Financial Highlights 
Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole 

Net Position 
As of June 30, (In millions) 

 
Increase

2017 2016 (Decrease)

Current assets 27.6$       25.4$        $         2.2 
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and long-term investments -             0.1                      (0.1)
Capital assets, net of depreciation 25.6         27.0         (1.4)           

Total assets 53.2         52.5         0.7            

Deferred outflows of resources - unamort loss on refunding 0.1           0.2           (0.1)           

Current liabilities 4.9           4.8           0.1            
Noncurrent liabilities 3.4           3.9           (0.5)           
Total liabilities 8.3           8.7           (0.4)           

Deferred inflows of resources - unearned property taxes 5.1           5.0           0.1            

Net position:
Investment in capital assets 21.8         22.8         (1.0)           
Restricted 11.0         10.9         0.1            
Unrestricted 7.1           5.3           1.8            

Total net position 39.9$       39.0$       0.9$          
 

 
This schedule was prepared from the College’s statements of net position (page 10), which is presented on an accrual 
basis of accounting.   
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2017 
Total net position, at June 30, 2017, increased by $1.0 million compared to fiscal year 2016 bringing it to $39.9 million.  
The increase is primarily caused by the increase in Government Claims receivable of $2.8 million.  The following are 
key changes by fund: an increase in instruction for $5.2 million and a decrease in operations and maintenance of plant 
for $3.4 million. 
 
 
2016 
Total net position, at June 30, 2016, decreased by $1.5 million compared to fiscal year 2015 bringing it to $39.0 million.  
The decrease is primarily caused by the beginning net position restatement due to the College’s reassessment of 
allowance for uncollectible accounts related to tuition and fees; see Note 10 for more information.  The following are 
key changes by fund:  a decrease in instruction for $2.1 million and an increase in operations and maintenance of plant 
for $3.2 million. 
 
The change in net position is explained on page 8 after the Analysis of Net Position schedule. 

 
Operating Results  

For the Years Ended June 30, (In millions) 
 

Increase
2017 2016 (Decrease)

Operating revenues:
Tuition and fees 9.8$         10.0$       (0.2)$         
Scholarship allowance (5.1)          (5.4)          0.3            
Auxiliary and other 1.7           1.7           -              

Total 6.4           6.3           0.1            

Less operating expenses 42.2         39.6         2.6            

Net operating loss (35.8)        (33.3)        (2.5)           

Nonoperating revenues and expenses:
Property taxes 9.7           9.1           0.6            
State grants and contracts 18.5         15.1         3.4            
Federal grants and contracts 8.7           8.9           (0.2)           
Investment income 0.1           -             0.1            
Interest expense (0.2)          (0.2)          -              

Total 36.8         32.9         3.9            

Increase (decrease) in net position 1.0           (0.4)          1.4            
Net position, beginning of year 38.9         39.3         (0.4)           

Net position, end of year 39.9$       38.9$       1.0            

Total revenues 43.4$       39.4$       4.0$          

Total expenses 42.4$       39.8$       2.6$          
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2017 
Net operating loss, for the twelve months ended June 30, 2017, increased to $35.8 million from $33.3 million in 2016 
mainly due to changes in expenses which include:  an increase in instruction for $5.2 million and a decrease in 
operations and maintenance of plant for $3.4 million. 
 
 
2016 
Net operating loss, for the twelve months ended June 30, 2016, increased to $33.3 million from $32.5 million in 2015 
mainly due to changes in expenses which include:  a decrease in Instruction for $2.1 million and an increase in 
operations and maintenance of plant for $3.2 million. 
 
 
Revenues by Source (2017):  
 

 
 

Operating Expenses 
For the Years Ended June 30, 

(In millions) 
 

Increase
2017 2016 (Decrease)

Instruction 15.7$            10.5$            5.2$              
Academic support 2.6                2.6                -                 
Student services 3.1                2.7                0.4                
Public service 1.1                0.6                0.5                
Institutional support 7.0                6.6                0.4                
Operations and maintenance of plant 4.6                8.0                (3.4)              
Depreciation 1.9                2.0                (0.1)              
Scholarships and fellowships 3.7                4.1                (0.4)              
Auxiliary enterprises 2.5                2.5                -                 
Total 42.2$            39.6$            2.6$               

 
 
  

Local property 
taxes 22%

Investments, 
net 0%

Auxiliary and 
other 4%

Tuition and 
fees, net 11%State 

appropriation
43%

Federal grants 
and contracts

20%

Local grants and 
contracts 0%
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The following is a graphic illustration of operating expenses: 
 
Operating Expenses by Function (2017): 
 

Instruction 37%

Academic 
support 6%

Student 
services 7%

Public service
3%

Institutional 
support 17%

Operations and 
maintenance of 

plant 11%

Depreciation
4%

Scholarships 
and expenses

9%

Auxiliary 
enterprises 6%

 
 
 

Comparison of Operating Expenses Fiscal Years 2017 and 2016 (in millions): 
 

 -  2.00  4.00  6.00  8.00  10.00  12.00  14.00  16.00  18.00

Instruction

Academic support

Student services

Public service

Institutional support

Operations and maintenance of plant

Depreciation

Scholarships and expenses

Auxiliary enterprises

2016

2017

 
 
2017 
Total operating expenses increased to $42.2 million from $39.6 million mainly due to the following:  an increase in 
Instruction for $5.2 million and a decrease in operations and maintenance of plant for $3.4 million. 
 
2016 
Total operating expenses increased to $39.6 million from $38.4 million mainly due to the following:  a decrease in 
Instruction for $2.1 million and an increase in operations and maintenance of plant for $3.2 million. 
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Analysis of Net Position 
June 30, 

(In millions) 
 

Increase
2017 2016 (Decrease)

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 21.8$            22.8$            (1.0)$            
Restricted expendable 11.0              10.9              0.1                
Unrestricted 7.1                5.3                1.8                

Total 39.9$            39.0$            0.9$               
 
2017 
Total net position, at June 30, 2017 increased by $.9 million compared to fiscal year 2016 bringing it to $39.9 million. 
The increase is primarily caused by the increase in state grants and contracts of $3.4M, increase in property taxes of 
$.6M and increase in net operating loss of $2.5M.  The following key changes by fund also contributed in the decrease 
in net position for FY 2016:  an increase in Instruction for $5.2 million and a decrease in Operations and Maintenance 
of plant for $3.4 million. 
 
2016 
Total net position, at June 30, 2016 decreased by $1.5 million compared to fiscal year 2015 bringing it to $39.0 million. 
The decrease is primarily caused by the beginning net position restatement due to the College’s reassessment of 
allowance for uncollectible accounts related to tuition and fees, see Note 10 for more information. The following key 
changes by fund also contributed in the decrease in net position for FY 2016:  a decrease in Instruction for $2.1 million 
and an increase in Operations and Maintenance of plant for $3.2 million. 
 
The following is a graphic illustration of net position. 
 

Net Position 
June 30, 2017 

 

 
 

  

Restricted
28%

Net 
Investment in 
Capital Assets

55%

Unrestricted
18%
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Analysis of Capital Assets 
June 30, (In millions) 

 
Increase

2017 2016 (Decrease)
Capital assets:

Land improvements  $            2.6  $            2.6  $               -  
Construction in progress                   -                 4.6              (4.6)
Building              35.5              30.6                4.9 
Equipment                7.7                7.5                0.2 

Total              45.8              45.3                0.5 

Less: accumulated depreciation            (20.2)            (18.4)              (1.8)
Net capital assets  $          25.6  $          26.9  $          (1.3)  

 
2017 
Net capital asset decrease of $1.3 million mainly relates to $4.6 million decrease in construction in progress, $4.9 million 
increase in building and $0.2 million increase in equipment, offset by $1.8 million net increase in accumulated 
depreciation.  For more detail information on capital asset activity please see Note 4. 
 
2016 
Net capital asset increase of $2.1 million mainly relates to $3.8 million increase in construction in progress, $0.2 million 
increase in building and $0.2 million increase in equipment, offset by $2.1 million net increase in accumulated 
depreciation.  For more detail information on capital asset activity please see Note 4. 
 

Long Term Debt 
June 30, 

(In millions) 
 

Increase
2017 2016 (Decrease)

Long-term debt:
General obligations 3.4$              3.9$              (0.5)$            
Capital lease payable 0.1                0.1                -               

Total 3.5$              4.0$              (0.5)$            
 

 
 
2017 
The $0.5 million decrease in long-term debt is due to the annual debt payment on Series 2006 for $0.4 and annual debt 
payment on Series 2014 for $0.1.  For more detail information on long-term debt activity please see Note 5. 
 
2016 
The $0.4 million decrease in long-term debt is due to the annual debt payment on Series 2006 for $0.3 and annual debt 
payment on Series 2014 for $0.1.  For more detail information on long-term debt activity please see Note 5. 
 
Other Factors 
There are currently no other known facts, decisions or conditions that will have a significant effect on the financial 
position (net position) or results of operation (revenues, expenses and changes in net position) of the College. 



 

  

Basic Financial Statements 
 



Morton College, Community College District No. 527 
Statements of Net Position 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 10 

Assets
2017 2016

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 16,116,193$    17,071,140$    
Receivables, net

Property taxes and corporate personal property
   replacement taxes, net allowances of  $1,435,905 in 
   2017 and $1,895,271 in 2016, respectively 3,663,290 3,365,810
Government claims 4,607,819 1,788,086
Tuition and fees, net of allowances for doubtful
   accounts of $4,688,919  in 2017 and $4,251,423 
   in 2016 2,034,086 1,862,929
Other 302,151 318,622

Inventories 765,880 608,998
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 124,233 392,375

Total current assets 27,613,652      25,407,960      

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                       138,138
Long-term investments 1,858 13,058
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 

where applicable 25,552,103 26,971,418

Total noncurrent assets 25,553,961      27,122,614      

Total assets 53,167,613      52,530,574      

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Unamortized loss on refunding 158,380 215,370  



Morton College, Community College District No. 527 
Statements of Net Position 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 11 

Liabilities
2017 2016

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 294,010$         334,573$         
Accrued salaries and vacation 747,954 711,257
Unearned revenue

Tuition and fees 2,508,788 2,293,415
Grants 91,101 125,947

Other current liabilities 165,363 344,019
Long-term obligations - current

Current portion of capital lease payable 56,035 53,017
Current portion of general obligation bonds 460,000 440,000

Deposits held in custody for others 575,005           543,639           

Total current liabilities 4,898,256        4,845,867        

Noncurrent Liabilities
Capital lease payable, net of current portion 37,440 78,446
General obligation bonds, net of current portion 3,309,910        3,819,264        

Total noncurrent liabilities 3,347,350        3,897,710        

Total liabilities 8,245,606        8,743,577        

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Property taxes 5,121,053        5,066,888        

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 21,847,098      22,796,061      
Restricted for

Capital projects 549,584           483,236           
Working cash 9,442,448 9,392,979
Debt service 966,420           1,011,459        

Unrestricted 7,153,784        5,251,744        

Total net position 39,959,334$    38,935,479$    
  

 



Morton College, Community College District No. 527 
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 
 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 12 

2017 2016

Operating Revenues
Tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances 

of $5,150,587 and $5,357,071 for 2017 and 2016, respectively 4,684,983$      4,596,204$      
Sales and services of auxiliary activities 1,696,682        1,720,315        

Total operating revenues 6,381,665        6,316,519        

Operating Expenses
Instruction 15,728,370 10,517,895
Academic support 2,585,214 2,766,990
Student services 3,072,864 2,552,963
Public service 1,134,636 558,055
Auxiliary enterprises 2,463,156 2,482,407
Operations and maintenance of plant 4,607,377 7,959,932
Institutional support 7,036,574 6,589,007
Scholarships and fellowships 3,684,305 4,095,799
Depreciation 1,870,339        2,068,042        

Total operating expenses 42,182,835      39,591,090      

Operating Loss (35,801,170)     (33,274,571)     

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)
Federal grants and contracts 8,651,665 8,852,948
State grants and contracts 18,480,322 15,145,280
Local grants and contracts 11,625 3,300
Property taxes 9,763,900 9,128,821
Interest expense on bonds (177,874)          (204,466)          
Investment income 95,387             27,677             

Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 36,825,025      32,953,560      

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 1,023,855        (321,011)          

Net Position, Beginning of Year 38,935,479      39,256,490      

Net Position, End of Year 39,959,334$    38,935,479$    
 

 



Morton College, Community College District No. 527 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 
 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 13 

2017 2016
Operating Activities

Tuition and fees 4,729,199$      4,551,541$      
Payments to suppliers (13,385,037)     (13,129,143)     
Payments to employees (16,611,015)     (16,606,833)     
Auxiliary enterprise charges, net 1,696,682        1,720,315        

Net cash used in operating activities (23,570,171)     (23,464,120)     

Noncapital Financing Activities
Local property taxes 9,520,585        9,349,931        
Grants and contracts 8,621,952        8,607,303        
State appropriations 5,327,212        4,276,642        

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 23,469,749      22,233,876      

Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of capital assets (434,179)          (4,317,637)       
Principal paid on capital debt (494,834)          (469,761)          
Interest paid on capital debt (170,237)          (197,112)          

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (1,099,250)       (4,984,510)       

Investing Activities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 11,200             22,602             
Interest received on investments 95,387             27,677             

Net cash provided by investing activities 106,587           50,279             

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,093,085)       (6,164,475)       

Cash, and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 17,209,278      23,373,753      

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 16,116,193$    17,209,278$    
  

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash 
Used in Operating Activities

Operating loss (35,801,170)$   (33,274,571)$   
Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net cash

used in operating activities
Depreciation 1,870,339        2,068,042        
State payment in kind for retirement 10,356,340      7,891,824        

(Increase) decrease in assets
Tuition and fees receivable (171,157)          (137,861)          
Inventories (156,882)          4,388               
Prepaid expenses 268,142           (133,266)          

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable (40,563)            (103,762)          
Accrued salaries and vacation 36,697             (25,725)            
Unearned tuition and fees 215,373           93,198             
Other current liabilities (178,656)          137,075           
Amounts held in custody for others 31,366             16,538             

Net cash used in operating activities (23,570,171)$   (23,464,120)$   
  

Noncash Transactions
Capital lease acquisitions 16,846$           8,848$             
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Note 1: Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Morton College, Community College District No. 527 is a separate taxing body created under the 
Illinois Public Community College Act of 1965, serving the towns of Berwyn, Cicero, Forest View, 
Lyons, McCook and Stickney.  Established in 1924, it is the second oldest two-year college in 
Illinois providing baccalaureate-oriented, career-oriented and continuing education courses.  The 
Board of Trustees, which is elected by residents of the District, is the College’s governing body that 
establishes the policies and procedures by which the College is governed. 

Reporting Entity 

The accompanying financial statements include all entities for which the Board of Trustees of the 
College has financial accountability.  In defining the financial reporting entity, the College has 
considered whether there are any potential component units.  The decision whether to include a 
potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 39, Determining Whether 
Certain Organizations are Component Units, and GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus.  These statements amend Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting 
Entity, to provide guidance to determine whether certain organizations for which the College is not 
financially accountable should be reported as a component unit based upon the nature and 
significance of the relationship with the College.  Generally, it requires reporting as a component 
an organization that raises and holds significant economic resources for the direct benefit of a 
government unit.  Based on the above criteria, the College does not have any significant component 
units. 

Basis of Accounting 

The College’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles as applicable to public colleges and universities outlined in GASB Statement 
No. 35 as well as those prescribed by the Illinois Community College Board (ICCB). 

The College reports as a business-type activity, as defined by GASB Statement No. 35.  Business-
type activities are those that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for 
goods or services. 

Accrual Basis 

The financial statements of the College have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, 
whereby revenue is recognized when earned and expenditures are recognized when the related 
liabilities are incurred and certain measurement and matching criteria are met. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with 
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 



Morton College, Community College District No. 527 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 
 

 15 

Investments 

Investments are reported at fair value, based upon quoted market prices.  Changes in the carrying 
value of investments, resulting in unrealized gains or losses, are reported as a component of 
investment income in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.  The Illinois 
Funds is an external investment pool administered by the Illinois State Treasurer.  The fair value of 
the College’s investment in the fund is the same as the value of the pool shares. 

Inventories 

Inventories are reported at the lower of cost or market principally determined by the retail 
inventory method.  Inventories primarily represent items held for resale by the College’s bookstore. 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash that is externally restricted to purchase or construct capital assets is classified as a restricted 
asset in the statement of net position. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are reported at cost at the date of acquisition or their estimated acquisition value at 
the date of donation.  For movable property, the College’s capitalization policy includes all items 
with a unit cost of $5,000 or more.  Renovations to buildings and land improvements that exceed 
$50,000 and significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the structure are 
capitalized. 

Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense in the year in which the expense 
was incurred.  Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets, generally 50 years for buildings and 5 years for equipment. 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities include principal amounts of general obligation bonds and capital leases with 
contractual maturities greater than one year. 

Unearned Tuition and Fee Revenue 

Tuition and fee revenues collected during the fiscal year which relate to the period after June 30, 
2017 and 2016, have been recognized as unearned revenues.  Unearned revenues arise when 
resources are received by the College before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are 
received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures.  In subsequent periods, when both 
revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the College has a legal claim to the resources, the 
liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet or statement of net position and 
revenue is recognized. 
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Bond Premium 

Bond premiums are capitalized and amortized over the term of the bonds using the effective 
interest method.  Bond premiums are presented as an increase of the face amount of the bonds 
payable. 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 

This represents the College’s total investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by outstanding debt obligations related to acquisition, construction or improvement of 
those capital assets. 

Restricted Net Position 

Restricted expendable net position include resources that the College is legally or contractually 
obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties.  Net position 
restricted for capital projects includes unspent grant proceeds that are restricted by the grantor for 
future capital projects.  Net position for debt service is resources accumulated for retirement of 
debt service that is restricted via the College’s annual property tax levy.  The Working Cash 
restriction represents the principal balance of the Working Cash subfund, which pursuant to 
College Board of Trustees resolution and Illinois law, is held in perpetuity.  When both restricted 
and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the College’s policy to use restricted resources 
first, then unrestricted resources when they are needed. 

Unrestricted Net Position 

Unrestricted net position represents net positions that are not subject to externally imposed 
constraints.  Unrestricted net position may be designated for specific purposes by action of 
management or the governing board. 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Revenue and expense transactions are normally classified as operating revenue and expenses when 
such transactions are generated by the College’s principal ongoing operations.  However, most 
revenue that is considered to be nonexchange, such as tax revenue, federal Pell Grant revenue and 
state appropriations, is nonoperating revenue. 

Personal Property Replacement Taxes 

Personal property replacement taxes are recognized as revenue when these amounts are deposited 
by the State of Illinois in its Replacement Tax Fund for distribution. 
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Revenue Recognition of Tuition and Fees 

The academic programs are offered in traditional fall and spring semesters.  Revenue from tuition 
and student fees is recognized during the academic term.  Revenue from the summer semester, 
which commences in May and ends in August, is split and recognized proportionally to the number 
of days of the semester within the fiscal year.  Tuition revenue is reported at established rates net of 
institutional financial aid and discounts provided directly by the College to students. 

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances 

Financial aid to students is reported in the financial statements under the alternative method as 
prescribed by the National Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO).  
Certain aid, such as loans, funds provided to students as awarded by third parties and Federal 
Direct Lending, is accounted for as a third-party payment (credited to the student’s account as if the 
student made the payment).  All other aid is reflected in the financial statements as operating 
expenses or scholarship allowances, which reduce revenues.  The amount reported as operating 
expense represents the portion of aid that was provided to the student in the form of cash. 
Scholarship allowances represent the portion of aid provided to the student in the form of reduced 
tuition.  Under the alternative method, these amounts are computed on a university basis by 
allocating the cash payments to students, excluding payments for services, on the ratio of total aid 
to the aid not considered to be third-party aid. 

Grant Revenue 

Revenue from grant and contract agreements is recognized as it is earned through expenditure in 
accordance with the agreement. 

Federal Financial Assistance Programs 

The College participates in federally funded Pell grants, SEOG grants, Federal Work Study and 
Federal Direct Lending programs.  Federal programs are audited in accordance with Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the compliance supplement. 

During the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, the College distributed $513,267 and $609,437, 
respectively, for direct lending through the U.S. Department of Education, which is not included as 
revenue and expenditures on the accompanying financial statements. 

Income Taxes 

The College as a governmental body is not subject to state or federal income taxes. 
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Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimate and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents a consumption 
of net position that applies to future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then.  The College only has one item that qualifies for reporting in this 
category.  It is the deferred charge on refunding reported in the statement of net position.  A 
deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and 
its reacquisition price.  This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the 
refunded or refunding debt. 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition 
of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time.  The College has only one item that qualifies for reporting in 
this category:  deferred revenue, which is derived from property tax.  These amounts are deferred 
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 

 

Note 2: Property Taxes 

The College’s property taxes are levied each calendar year on all taxable real property located in 
the College’s district.  Property taxes are collected by the County Collector and are submitted to the 
County Treasurer, who remits to the units their respective shares of the collections.  Taxes levied in 
2016 become due and payable in two installments (March 1, 2017 and August 1, 2017).  The first 
installment is an estimated bill and is one half of the prior year’s tax bill.  The second installment is 
based on the current levy, assessment and equalization. 

Any changes from the prior year will be reflected in the second installment bill.  Taxes must be levied 
by the last Tuesday in December for the following levy year.  The levy becomes an enforceable lien 
against the property as of January 1 immediately following the levy year. 

In accordance with the College Board resolution, 50% of property taxes extended for the 2016 tax year 
and collected in 2017 are recorded as revenue in the year ended June 30, 2017.  The remaining revenue 
related to the 2016 tax year extension has been deferred and will be recorded as revenue in the 
subsequent fiscal year.  However, for Bond and Interest Fund, the levy is intended to pay for the 
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principal and interest payments due during 2017.  The deferred revenue is related to bonds and interest 
payments.  Based upon collection histories, the College records real property taxes at approximately 
50% of the 2016 extended levy. 

A reserve of approximately $1,435,000 and $1,895,000 for the fiscal years 2017 and 2016, 
respectively, has been set up for the estimated amount of unpaid amounts related to prior years’ taxes. 

The statutory maximum tax rates and the respective rates for the 2016 and 2015 tax levies, per 
$100 of assessed valuation, are as follows: 

Statutory
Maximum

Rate 2016 2015

Current
Education Fund 0.7500             0.4860             0.4999             
Operation and Maintenance Fund 0.1000             0.0926             0.1000             
Operation and Maintenance Fund (Restricted) 0.0500             -                       -                       
Bond and Interest -                       0.0448             0.0463             
Life Safety Fund 0.0500             -                       -                       
Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund -                       0.0370             0.0373             
Social Security Fund -                       0.0150             0.0149             
Audit Fund 0.0050             0.0046             0.0048             

0.9550             0.6800             0.7032             

Tax Levy Year

 

Note 3: Cash and Investments 

State statutes authorize the College to make deposits in commercial banks and savings and loan 
institutions, and to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, obligations of 
states and their political subdivisions, savings accounts, credit union shares, repurchase agreements 
(under certain statutory restrictions), commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications 
by at least two standard rating services, the Illinois Funds and the Illinois School District Liquid 
Asset Fund Plus. 

Illinois Funds is an investment pool managed by the State of Illinois, Office of the Treasurer, 
which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes.  Illinois 
Funds is not registered within the SEC as an investment company, but does operate in a manner 
consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.  Investments in Illinois Funds are 
valued at Illinois Funds’ share price, which is the price at which the investment could be sold. 

Deposits 

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the carrying amounts of the College’s deposits were $1,400,979 and 
$1,054,498, respectively, with bank balances of $1,755,314 and $1,947,804, respectively.  It is the 
College’s policy that 105% of the bank balances be collateralized by securities held in the pledging 
bank’s trust department or by its agent in the College’s name when not federally insured.  At 
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June 30, 2017, none of the College’s deposits were exposed to custodial credit risk.  The Illinois 
Funds are not subject to collateralization. 

Investments 

The investments which the College may purchase are limited by Illinois law to the following  
(1) securities which are fully guaranteed by the U.S. government as to principal and interest; 
(2) certain U.S. Government Agency securities; (3) certificates of deposit or time deposits of banks 
and savings and loan associations which are insured by a Federal corporation; (4) short-term 
discount obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association; (5) certain short-term 
obligations of corporations (commercial paper) rated in the highest classifications by at least two of 
the major rating services; (6) fully collateralized repurchase agreements; (7) the State Treasurer’s 
Illinois and Prime Funds and (8) money market mutual funds and certain other instruments. 

The College’s deposits and investments are included on the statement of net position under the 
following classifications at June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

2017 2016

Cash and cash equivalents 16,116,193$    17,071,140$    
Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                       138,138           
Investments 1,858               13,058             

Total cash and investments 16,118,051$    17,222,336$    
 

The amounts in the previous chart are classified in the following categories for disclosure purposes: 

2017 2016

Deposits 1,400,979$      1,054,498$      
Investments in securities and 
   similar instruments 14,716,554      16,167,320      
Petty cash on hand 518                  518                  

Total cash and investments 16,118,051$    17,222,336$    
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As of June 30, 2017, the College had the following investments and maturities: 

Fair Less Than More Than
Investment Type Value 1 Year 1 - 5 Years 6 - 10 Years 10 Years

GNMAs (government
   guaranteed) 1,858$             1,858$             -$                     -$                     -$                     
State Treasurer
   Illinois Funds 14,714,696      14,714,696      -                       -                       -                       

14,716,554$    14,716,554$    -$                     -$                     -$                     

Investment Maturities

 
 
As of June 30, 2016, the College had the following investments and maturities: 

Fair Less Than More Than
Investment Type Value 1 Year 1 - 5 Years 6 - 10 Years 10 Years

GNMAs (government
   guaranteed) 13,058$           3,111$             9,947$             -$                     -$                     
State Treasurer
   Illinois Funds 16,154,262      16,154,262      -                       -                       -                       

16,167,320$    16,157,373$    9,947$             -$                     -$                     

Investment Maturities

 
 
Interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for operating funds and 
maximizing yields for funds not needed within a two year period, the investment policy does not 
strictly limit the maximum maturity lengths of investments but limits long-term investment to 
33.3%. 

State Treasurer Illinois Funds are reported as cash and cash equivalents on the statement of net 
position.  The credit rating is AAAm as described by the Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s at 
June 30, 2017 and 2016.  The Government National Mortgage Association Pools (GNMAs) are 
explicitly guaranteed by the United States Government and are not considered to have credit risk.  
No disclosure of credit rating is necessary for these investments.  The GNMAs make up 100% of 
the fiscal year’s investment balance. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

At June 30, 2017, the College had greater than 5% of its overall portfolio investment in State 
Treasurer Illinois Funds.  This is in accordance with the College’s investment policy, which does 
not contain any specific guidelines on the diversification of the investment portfolio. 

The State Treasurer maintains the Illinois Funds Money Market at cost and fair value through daily 
adjustment in interest earnings.  The State Treasurer also maintains the average duration of the pool 
at less than 25 days.  The fair value of the College’s investment in the funds is the same as the 
value of the pool shares.  The pool is audited annually by independent auditors and copies of the 
auditors’ report are distributed to participants.  The College’s investments in the Illinois Funds are  
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not required to be categorized because these are not securities.  The relationship between the 
College and the investment agent is a direct contractual relationship and the investments are not 
supported by a transferable instrument that evidence ownership or creditorship. 

 

Note 4: Capital Assets 

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Balance Additions Disposals Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land and improvements 2,600,248$      -$                     -$                     2,600,248$      
Construction in progress 4,602,737        -                       (4,602,737)       -                       

Total capital assets not being
depreciated 7,202,985        -                       (4,602,737)       2,600,248        

Capital assets being depreciated
Building and building improvements 30,648,155      259,603           4,602,737        35,510,495      
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 7,534,528        191,421           -                       7,725,949        

Total capital assets being
depreciated 38,182,683      451,024           4,602,737        43,236,444      

Total 45,385,668      451,024           -                       45,836,692      

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and building improvements 14,118,355      1,254,623        -                       15,372,978      
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 4,295,895        615,716           -                       4,911,611        

Total accumulated depreciation 18,414,250      1,870,339        -                       20,284,589      

Capital assets, net 26,971,418$    25,552,103$     
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The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2016: 

Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Balance Additions Disposals Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land and improvements 2,600,248$      -$                     -$                     2,600,248$      
Construction in progress 807,330           3,902,774        (107,367)          4,602,737        

Total capital assets not being
depreciated 3,407,578        3,902,774        (107,367)          7,202,985        

Capital assets being depreciated
Building and building improvements 30,355,520      185,268           107,367           30,648,155      
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 7,296,085        238,443           -                       7,534,528        

Total capital assets being
depreciated 37,651,605      423,711           107,367           38,182,683      

Total 41,059,183      4,326,485        -                       45,385,668      

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and building improvements 12,606,188        1,512,167          -                         14,118,355      
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3,740,020        555,875           -                       4,295,895        

Total accumulated depreciation 16,346,208      2,068,042        -                       18,414,250      

Capital assets, net 24,712,975$      26,971,418$       
 

Note 5: Long and Short-Term Liabilities 

On July 13, 2006, Morton College issued $3,375,000 of General Obligation Limited Tax Bonds, 
Series 2006.  The bonds will mature on December 1 for the years and in the amounts shown below.  
The bonds bear interest at a rate of 3.93% to 4.25% and are payable on December 1 and June 1 in 
each year.  The bonds mature December 1, 2017. 

On March 13, 2014, the College refunded the remaining $3,195,000 balance of the $5,105,000 
Taxable General Obligation College Building Bonds, Series 2009 (Alternate Revenue Source, Build 
America Bonds).  The 2014 Series bonds have interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%.  These 
bonds have annual maturities of $70,000 to $560,000 starting in 2014 and ending in 2023.  The 
bonds will mature on December 15 for the years and in the amounts shown below. 

In fiscal year 2013, the College entered into two new capital lease agreements for equipment.  
Aggregate monthly payments are approximately $243 and are due through April 2018.  These 
agreements have approximate interest rates of 9%.  The copier/printer was recorded at a cost of 
$11,682 and accumulated depreciation is $11,682 as of June 30, 2017. 

In fiscal year 2014, the College entered into one new capital lease agreement, which has monthly 
payments of $1,748 and are due through July 2018.  This agreement has an approximate interest rate 
of 8.5%.  The copier/printer was recorded at a cost of $85,200 and accumulated depreciation is 
$68,160 as of June 30, 2017.  The College also entered into one new vehicle lease agreement, with 
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monthly payments of $1,805 and are due through September 2018.  This agreement has an interest 
rate of 5.77%.  The vehicles were recorded at a cost of $94,340 and accumulated depreciation is 
$75,472 of June 30, 2017. 

In fiscal year 2015, the College entered into three new lease agreements, which have aggregate 
monthly payments of approximately $787 and are due through March 2020.  These agreements have 
approximate interest rates of 3.9%.  The copier/printers were recorded at a cost of $42,824 and 
accumulated depreciation is $25,695 as of June 30, 2017. 

In fiscal year 2016, the College entered into one new copier lease agreement, with monthly 
payments of $179 that are due through December 2020.  This agreement has an approximate 
interest rate of 8%.  The copier/printer was recorded at a cost of $8,848 and accumulated 
depreciation is $3,540 of June 30, 2017. 

In fiscal year 2017, the College entered into a new copier lease agreement.  With monthly 
payments of $337 and are due through December 2021.  This agreement has approximate interest 
rate of 7%.  The copier/printer was recorded at a cost of $16,846 and accumulated depreciation of 
$3,369 as of June 30, 2017. 

A summary of long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Deletions Balance Portion

Bonds payable
Serial bonds, 2006 series 810,000$         -$                     395,000$         415,000$         415,000$         
Serial bonds, 2014 series 3,085,000        -                       45,000             3,040,000        45,000             

Leases payable
Capital leases 131,463           16,847             54,835             93,475             56,035             

Other long-term liabilities
Unamortized bond premium 364,264           -                       49,354             314,910           -                       

4,390,727$      16,847$           544,189$         3,863,385$      516,035$          
 
A summary of long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Deletions Balance Portion

Bonds payable
Serial bonds, 2006 series 1,190,000$      -$                     380,000$         810,000$         395,000$         
Serial bonds, 2014 series 3,125,000        -                       40,000             3,085,000        45,000             

Leases payable
Capital leases 172,376           8,848               49,761             131,463           53,017             

Other long-term liabilities
Unamortized bond premium 411,669           -                       47,405             364,264           -                       

4,899,045$      8,848$             517,166$         4,390,727$      493,017$         
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Total principal and interest maturities on the bonds and leases payable as of June 30, 2017, is as 
follows: 

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2018 516,035$         154,877$         670,912$         
2019 466,355           133,196           599,551           
2020 472,817           114,274           587,091           
2021 489,844           92,402             582,246           
2022 508,424           67,397             575,821           

Thereafter 1,095,000        55,375             1,150,375        

3,548,475$      617,521$         4,165,996$      

Debt Obligation

 

A computation of the legal debt margin of the College is as follows: 

2017 2016

Assessed valuation 1,442,272,976$  1,393,851,949$  

Legal debt limit - 2.875% of assessed valuation 41,465,348         40,073,244         
Debt applicable to debt limit (3,769,910)         (4,259,264)         

Legal debt margin 37,695,438$       35,813,980$        

The legal debt limit is imposed by the Illinois Community College Board. 

Defeased Debt 

On March 13, 2014, the College issued Series 2014 General Obligation (Taxable Refunding) 
College Building Bonds in the amount of $3,195,000.  Proceeds of these bonds were placed in 
escrow to purchase government securities which will be sufficient to partially defease $3,195,000 
of Series 2009 General Obligation (Refunding) Bonds.  The refunding was undertaken to extend 
the term of the debt service payments.  As a result of the restructuring, the Series 2009 Bonds are 
considered to be partially defeased and the liability has been removed from the statement of net 
position.  At June 30, 2017, $1,660,000 of the defeased 2009 Bonds remain outstanding. 

Cash Paid for Interest 

Cash paid for interest for the fiscal year was approximately $170,000 and $177,000 for the years 
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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Note 6: Compensated Absences 

Sick leave for classified staff members is continuously accumulated at the rate of one day per 
month; administrative personnel accumulate sick leave at the rate of 20 days per year.  
Accumulated sick leave is not subject to a maximum number of days and can be taken in the event 
of illness or doctor’s appointments.  Upon employee termination, the College has no commitment 
for accumulated sick leave and, therefore, no liability is recorded.  Employees who retire are given 
credit for unused sick leave toward years of service in the State Universities Retirement System. 

Vacation leave is accrued at a minimum rate of 5/6 day per month up to a maximum of 21 days.  
All vacation leave must be used by the end of the benefit year, except if written approval is 
obtained.  All unused vacation leave is computed at the daily rate of compensation and is paid to 
the employee or beneficiary in the event of termination, retirement or death.  Accumulated vacation 
leave is recorded as expenditure and as a liability. 

The activity related to the accrued compensated absences for the years ending June 30, 2017 and 
2016, is as follows: 

2017 2016

Beginning balance 177,303$         168,117$         
Additions 178,169           177,303           
Deletions (177,303)          (168,117)          

Ending balance 178,169$         177,303$          

 

Note 7: Retirement Plan 

Plan Description 

The College contributes to the State Universities Retirement System (SURS) of Illinois, a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan with a special funding situation whereby the State 
of Illinois (State) makes substantially all actuarially determined required contributions on behalf of 
the participating employers.  SURS was established July 21, 1941, to provide retirement annuities 
and other benefits for staff members and employees of state universities, certain affiliated 
organizations, and certain other state educational and scientific agencies and for survivors, 
dependents and other beneficiaries of such employees.  SURS is considered a component unit of the 
State of Illinois’ financial reporting entity and is included in the State’s financial reports as a pension 
trust fund.  SURS is governed by Section 5/15, Chapter 40 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes.  SURS 
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information.  That report may be obtained by accessing the website at 
www.SURS.org. 

 

http://www.surs.org/
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Benefits Provided 

A traditional benefit plan was established in 1941.  Public Act 90-0448 enacted effective January 1, 
1998, established an alternative defined benefit program known as the portable benefit package.  
The traditional and portable plan Tier I refers to members that began participation prior to 
January 1, 2011.  Public Act 96-0889 revised the traditional and portable benefit plans for members 
who begin participation on or after January 1, 2011, and who do not have other eligible Illinois 
reciprocal system services.  The revised plan is referred to as Tier 2.  New employees are allowed 
six months after their date of hire to make an irrevocable election.  A summary of the benefit 
provisions as of June 30, 2016, can be found in the System’s comprehensive annual financial report 
(CAFR) Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Contributions 

The State of Illinois is primarily responsible for funding the System on behalf of the individual 
employers at an actuarially determined amount.  Public Act 88-0593 provides a Statutory Funding 
Plan consisting of two parts:  (i) a ramp-up period from 1996 to 2010 and (ii) a period of 
contributions equal to a level percentage of the payroll of active members of the System to reach 
90% of the total actuarial accrued liability by the end of fiscal year 2045.  Employer contributions 
from ‘trust, federal, and other funds’ are provided under Section 15-155(b) of the Illinois Pension 
Code and require employers to pay contributions which are sufficient to cover the accruing normal 
costs on behalf of applicable employees.  The employer normal cost for fiscal year 2016 and 2017 
was 12.69% and 12.53%, respectively of employee payroll.  The normal cost is equal to the value 
of current year’s pension benefit and does not include any allocation for the past unfunded liability 
or interest on the unfunded liability.  Plan members are required to contribute 8.0% of their annual 
covered salary.  The contribution requirements of plan members and employers are established and 
may be amended by the Illinois General Assembly.  Participating employers make contributions 
toward separately financed specific liabilities under Section 15.139.5(e) of the Illinois Pension 
Code (relating to contributions payable due to the employment of affected annuitants or specific 
return to work annuitants) and Section 15.155(g) (relating to contributions payable due to earning 
increases exceeding 6% during the final rate of earnings period).  Contributions as of June 30, 
2017, were $10,292,012. 

Net Pension Liability 

At June 30, 2016, SURS reported a net pension liability (NPL) of $25,965,271,744.  The net 
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015. 

Employer Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 

The amount of the proportionate share of the net pension liability to be recognized by the College 
is $0.  The proportionate share of the State’s net pension liability associated with the College is 
$104,137,848 or 0.4011%.  This amount should not be recognized in the financial statement, due to 
the special funding situation.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the 
total pension used to calculate the net pension liability was determined based on the June 30, 2015 
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actuarial valuation rolled forward.  The basis of allocation used in the proportionate share of net 
pension liability is the actual reported pensionable earnings made to SURS during fiscal year 2016. 

Pension Expense 

At June 30, 2016, SURS reported a collective net pension expense of $2,566,164,865. 

Employer Proportionate Share of Pension Expense 

The employer proportionate share of collective pension expense should be recognized similarly to 
on behalf payments as both revenue and matching expenditure in the financial statements.  The 
basis of allocation used in the proportionate share of collective pension expense is the actual 
reported pensionable earnings made to SURS during fiscal year 2016.  As a result, the College 
recognized on-behalf revenue and pension expense of $10,292,012 for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources are the consumption of net position by the system that is applicable 
to future reporting periods.  A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net position by the 
system that is applicable to a future reporting period. 

SURS Collective Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Sources 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience 14,215,882$       2,298,574$         
Change in assumptions 655,463,758       -                         
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
  on pension plan investments 1,431,081,306    635,552,976       

2,100,760,946$  637,851,550$     
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SURS Collective Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Year to 
be Recognized in Future Expenses 

Year Ending
June 30, Amount

2017 539,536,680$     
2018 275,426,885       
2019 401,520,624       
2020 246,425,207       
2021 -                         

Thereafter -                         

1,462,909,396$   

Employer Deferral of Fiscal Year 2017 Pension Expense 

The College paid $0 in federal, trust or grant contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  
These contributions were made subsequent to the pension liability measurement date of June 30, 
2016, and are recognized as deferred outflows of resources as of June 30, 2017. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period June 30, 2010-2014.  The total pension liability in the 
June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, 
applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases 3.75% to 15.00%, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.25% beginning with the actual valuation

   as of June 30, 2014  

Mortality rates were based on the RP2014 Combined Mortality Table with projected generational 
mortality and a separate mortality assumption for disabled participants. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building 
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 
expected inflation.  Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return were adopted by the plan’s 
trustees after considering input from the plan’s investment consultant(s) and actuary(s).  For each  
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major asset class that is included in the pension plans target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016, 
these best estimates are summarized in the following table: 

Long-term
Expected

Target Real Rate
Asset Class Allocation of Return

U.S. Equity 23% 6.08%
Private Equity 6% 8.73%
Non-U.S. Equity 19% 6.95%
Global Equity 8% 6.78%
Fixed Income 19% 1.17%
Treasury-Inflation Protected Securities 4% 1.41%
Emerging Market Debt 3% 4.44%
Direct Real Estate 6% 4.62%
REITS 4% 5.75%
Commodities 2% 4.23%
Hedged Strategies 5% 4.00%
Opportunity Fund 1% 6.54%

100%  

Discount Rate 

A single discount rate of 7.010% was used to measure the total pension liability.  This single 
discount rate was based on an expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.250% and a 
municipal bond rate of 2.85% (based on the weekly rate closest to but not later than the 
measurement date of the 20-Year Bond Buyer Index as published by the Federal Reserve).  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate were the amounts of 
contributions attributable to current plan members and assumed that plan member contributions 
will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates 
equal to the statutory contribution rates under the System’s funding policy.  Based on these 
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position and future contributions were sufficient to 
finance the benefit payments through the year 2073.  As a result, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through the year 
2073, and the municipal bond rate was applied to all benefit payments after that date. 
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Sensitivity of the System’s Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

Regarding the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the single discount rate, the 
following presents the plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a single discount rate of 
7.010%, as well as what the plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a single 
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher: 

Current
Single

Discount
Rate 

1% Decrease Assumption 1% Increase
6.01% 7.01% 8.01%

31,348,831,631$  25,965,271,744$  21,502,421,700$   

Additional information regarding the SURS basic financial statements including the plan net 
position can be found in the SURS comprehensive annual financial report by accessing the website 
at www.SURS.org. 

Changes of Benefit Terms 

There were no benefit changes recognized in the Total Pension Liability as of June 30, 2016.   

Changes of Assumptions 

In accordance with Illinois Compiled Statues, an actuarial review is to be performed at least once 
every three years to determine the reasonableness of actuarial assumptions regarding the 
retirement, disability, mortality, turnover, interest and salary of the members and benefit recipients 
of SURS.  An experience review for the years June 30, 2010 to June 30, 2014, was performed in 
February 2015, resulting in the adoption of new assumptions as of June 30, 2015.  

x Mortality rates.  Change from the RP 2000 table projected 2017, sex distinct, to the RP-2014 
mortality tables with projected generational mortality improvement.  Change to a separate 
mortality assumption for disabled participants. 

x Salary increase.  Change assumption to service-based rates, ranging from 3.75% to 15.00% 
based on years of service, with underlying wage inflation of 3.75%. 

x Normal retirement rates.  Change to retirement rates at ages younger than 60, age 66 and 
ages 70-79 to reflect observed experiences. 

x Early retirement rates.  Change to a slight increase to the rates at ages 55 and 56. 

x Turnover rates.  Change to produce lower expected turnover for members with less than  
10 years of service and higher turnover for members with more than 10 years of service than 
the currently assumed rates. 

http://www.surs.org/
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x Disability rates.  Decrease rates and have separate rates for males and females to reflect 
observed experience. 

x Dependent assumption.  Mainly the current assumption on marital status that varies by age 
and sex and the assumption that males are three years older than their spouses. 

 

Note 8: Risk Management 

The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; injuries to employees and natural disasters.  The College participates in the Illinois 
Community College Risk Management Consortium, which was established in 1981 by several 
Chicago area community colleges as a means of reducing the cost of general liability insurance.  
The Consortium is a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and 
insurance program for the member colleges.  The main purpose of the Consortium is to jointly self-
insure certain risks up to an agreed upon retention limit and to obtain excess catastrophic coverage 
and aggregate stop-loss reinsurance over the selected retention limit. 

As of June 30, 2017, the loss limits for the Consortium were $125,000 for property, $250,000 for 
liability and $500,000 for workers’ compensation for each occurrence.  The members of the 
Consortium pool may share in the cost of losses and surpluses.  The Consortium purchased excess 
insurance for $500 million on the property and $25.7 million on liability.  The interest percentage 
calculated for each of the community colleges varies each year and is different for each type of 
coverage.  One representative from each member serves on the Board of the Consortium, and each 
board member has one vote on the board.  None of the members of the Consortium have any direct 
interest in the Consortium.  The College, along with other members, has a contractual obligation to 
fund any deficit attributable to a membership year during which it was a member.  Supplemental 
contributions may be required to fund these deficits, but none have been required in any of the past 
three fiscal years. 

 

Note 9: Commitments and Contingencies 

Environmental Remediation 

During the fiscal year 1995, the College purchased 12.58 acres of land, which is contiguous to the 
College’s current campus, from the Town of Cicero for $600,000 for use as a multipurpose athletic 
field.  An additional $150,000 was paid for the demolition and cleanup of the land.  Prior to 
completing the purchase of the land, the College engaged a consultant to perform an environmental 
study to determine what contaminants, if any, existed on the site and what would be needed to 
remediate the condition.  Based primarily on this environmental study, the College accrued 
$277,200 for estimated environmental cleanup costs at the site during fiscal year 1995. 

Prior to the closing date on the purchase of the land, soil was dumped on the property by an 
unknown party.  Subsequent environmental testing revealed the presence of additional soil 
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contaminants, the source of which management believes to be, in part, the fill dumped on the 
property prior to closing. 

During 1996, the College obtained an additional environmental study related to cleanup of the site, 
including removal of the added fill and remediation of the surrounding soil, which estimated the 
cleanup costs to be as high as $2,042,000. 

In October 1997, the Board of Trustees voted to initiate a lawsuit against the Town of Cicero for 
environmental contamination of this property.  The College is continuing to work with 
environmental consultants to determine the extent of environmental and pollution related problems.  
In response to the College’s suit, the Town of Cicero filed countersuits against the College 
contending that the property presents a public nuisance and alleging that the College had violated 
the Illinois Freedom of Information Act by failing to disclose documents relating to the property. 
These countersuits have been dismissed. 

The College and the Town of Cicero had pursued settling the outstanding litigation and cooperating 
in the cleanup of the property.  Another study of the property has been conducted by the College’s 
environmental engineers, who have determined that there may be cleanup costs in the amount of 
$2,000,000.  This property has been enrolled in the site remediation program of the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Agency. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the College and the Town of Cicero entered into a 
settlement agreement that requires the Town of Cicero to remit up to $1 million to the College to 
be used for costs associated with the cleanup.  The $1 million has been collected in fiscal year 
2005.  The funds were used toward clean-up costs in fiscal year 2005 totaling approximately $1.6 
million. 

The College has been advised to perform additional testing to determine the current status of the 
property.  In addition, the final phase of the remediation process will be dependent on the use of the 
property.  Accordingly, management is unable to reasonably estimate the final remediation costs 
for financial reporting purposes. 

Other Commitments 

The College has commitments for the implementation of ongoing Enterprise Resource Planning 
(ERP) System totaling approximately $181,000 for fiscal year 2017. 

Management is not aware of any claims or lawsuits against the College that are not covered by 
insurance or whose settlement would materially affect the financial statements at June 30, 2017. 

 

Note 10: Upcoming Pronouncements 

Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pension (GASB 75):  GASB 75 replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.   
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GASB 75 requires governments to report a liability on the face of the financial statements, in 
accordance with the following: 

x Employers that are responsible only for OPEB liabilities for their own employees and that 
provide OPEB through a defined benefit OPEB plan administers through a trust that meets 
specified criteria will report a net OPEB liability (the difference between the total OPEB 
liability and the assets accumulated in trust to make the benefit payments). 

x Employers that participate in a cost-sharing OPEB plan that is administered through a trust 
that meets specified criteria will report a liability equal to the employer’s proportionate share 
for the collective OPEB liability for all employers participating in the plan. 

x Employers that do not provide OPEB through a trust that meets specified criteria will report 
the total OPEB liability for their own employees. 

GASB 75 requires more extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI) 
about the OPEB liabilities.  GASB 75 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017 and 
requires restatement of any prior years presented, if practical. 

While not effective in the short term, we recommend the College begin assessing the potential 
impact on the financial statements of both of these statements and begin the process of 
communicating this impact with those charged with governance and other stakeholders.  Similar to 
the adoption of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, the 
adoption of 75 will require advance coordination with plans and actuaries so that the required 
information is available. 

GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues (GASB 82):  GASB 82 provides amendments to pension 
guidance in GASB 67 and 68 based on three issues raised during implementation of those 
standards.  It changes the payroll amount presented in required supplementary information back to 
covered payroll, being the amount on which contributions to the pension plan are based.  It 
specifies that an actuarial valuation is not inconformity with the pension standards if it includes a 
deviation from the Actuarial Standards of Practice in the selection of assumptions.  GASB 82 also 
specifies that payments made by employers to satisfy employee contribution requirements should 
be considered employee contributions and recognized as expense or expenditure in the same 
manner as other compensation.   

GASB 82 is effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016, with 
the exception of the provision related to a deviation from Actuarial Standards of Practice, which 
will be effective for fiscal years in which the measurement date is on or after June 15, 2017.  
Earlier application is encouraged. 

GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017 (GASB 85):  GASB 85 addresses practice issues that have 
arisen during implementation of other GASB standards.  Among the topics addressed are blending 
of component units for a business-type activity that reports in a single column, presentation of 
goodwill from acquisitions that occurred prior to GASB 69, valuation of money market and certain 
other investments, and certain issues relating to pensions and other postemployment benefits.  
These updates either provide clarification, correction, or additional guidance on the topics covered. 
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GASB 85 is effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017.  
Earlier application is encouraged.  Governments do have the option to early adopt by topic, rather 
than the entire standard, as long as all provisions for that topic are adopted at the same time. 

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB 87):  GASB 87 establishes a single approach to 
accounting for and reporting leases by state and local governments. 

The main rules of GASB 87 with respect to government entities that are lessees require that the 
lessees:  

x Recognize the following:  (a) a lease liability and (b) an intangible asset representing the 
lessee’s right to use the leased asset; and  

x Report in its financial statements:  (a) amortization expense for using the lease asset over the 
shorter of the term of the lease or the useful life of the underlying asset, (b) interest expense 
on the lease liability and (c) note disclosures about the lease.  

Under GASB 87, government entities that are lessors must:  

x Recognize:  (a) a lease receivable and (b) a deferred inflow of resources and continue to 
report the leased asset in its financial statements; and  

x Report in its financial statements:  (a) lease revenue, recognized over the term of the lease, 
corresponding with the reduction of the deferred inflow, (b) interest income on the 
receivable; and (c) note disclosures about the lease.  

GASB 87 provides exceptions from the single-approach for short-term leases, financial purchases, 
leases of assets that are investments, and certain regulated leases.  GASB 87 also addresses 
accounting for lease terminations and modifications, sale-leaseback transactions, nonlease 
components embedded in lease contracts (such as service agreements), and leases with related 
parties.  

GASB 87 is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, with earlier 
application encouraged.  

While not effective in the short term, the College will begin assessing the potential impact on the 
financial statements of these statements and begin the process of communicating the impact with 
those charged with governance and other stakeholders. 
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Components of Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 

Schedule of the College’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014

(a) Proportion percentage of the collective net pension 0% 0% 0%
pension liability

(b) Proportion of amount of the collective net pension liability -$                     -$                     -$                     
(c) Portion of non-employer contributing entities’ total proportion

of collective net pension liability associated with employer 104,137,848    93,240,864      104,174,465    

Total (b) + (c) 104,137,848$  93,240,864$    104,174,465$  

Employer covered - employee payroll 14,439,567$    14,278,533$    -$                     

Portion of collective net pension liability associated with
   employer as a percentage of covered employee payroll 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
SURS plan net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability 39.57% 42.37% 44.39%  

Schedule of the College’s Contributions 

FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014

Federal, trust, grant and other contribution -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Contribution in relation to required contribution -                       -                       -                       -                       
Contribution deficiency (excess) -                       -                       -                       -                       
Employer covered - employee payroll 14,530,503      14,439,567      14,278,533      15,035,775      
Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%  
 
Note: The Illinois State University Retirement System implemented GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015.  

The information above is presented for as many years as available.  The Schedule is intended 
to show information for 10 years.  The Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Employee 
Payroll Schedule comprised of both SURS and the District’s information while the Federal, 
Trust, Grant and Other Contribution Schedule is only comprised of the District’s information. 

Covered Employee Payroll 

The payroll of employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. 

Changes of Benefit Terms 

There were no benefit changes recognized in the total pension liability as of June 30, 2017. 
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Changes of Assumptions 

In accordance with Illinois Compiled Statues, an actuarial review is to be performed at least once 
every three years to determine the reasonableness of actuarial assumptions regarding the 
retirement, disability, mortality, turnover, interest and salary of the members and benefit recipients 
of SURS.  An experience review for the years June 30, 2010 to June 30, 2014, was performed in 
February 2015, resulting in the adoption of new assumptions as of June 30, 2015.  

x Mortality rates.  Change from the RP 2000 table projected 2017, sex distinct, to the RP-2014 
mortality tables with projected generational mortality improvement.  Change to a separate 
mortality assumption for disabled participants. 

x Salary increase.  Change assumption to service-based rates, ranging from 3.75% to 15.00% 
based on years of service, with underlying wage inflation of 3.75%. 

x Normal retirement rates.  Change to retirement rates at ages younger than 60, age 66 and 
ages 70-79 to reflect observed experiences. 

x Early retirement rates.  Change to a slight increase to the rates at ages 55 and 56. 

x Turnover rates.  Change to produce lower expected turnover for members with less than  
10 years of service and higher turnover for members with more than 10 years of service than 
the currently assumed rates. 

x Disability rates.  Decrease rates and have separate rates for males and females to reflect 
observed experience. 

x Dependent assumption.  Mainly the current assumption on marital status that varies by age 
and sex and the assumption that males are three years older than their spouses. 
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The statistical section of the College’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note 
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the College’s overall financial health. 

 
Contents 
 

Financial Trends ................................................................................................................. 38 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
College’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

 
Revenue Capacity .............................................................................................................. 44 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the College’s most 
significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

 
Debt Capacity ..................................................................................................................... 53 

These schedules contain information about College’s ability to meet its current levels 
of outstanding debt, and, the College’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

 
Demographic and Economic Information ......................................................................... 58 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the College’s financial activities take place. 

 
Operating Information ........................................................................................................ 60 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
how the information in the College’s financial report relates to the services the 
College provides and the activities it performs. 

 

 

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial reports for the relevant year. 
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Fiscal Year 2017 2016 2015 2014

Net Investment in Capital Assets 21,847,098$    22,796,061$    19,481,082$    19,976,342$    

Restricted
Capital projects 549,584           483,236           1,128,601        14,274             
Working cash 9,442,448        9,392,979        9,384,486        9,384,486        
Debt service 966,420           1,011,459        1,154,821        1,162,982        

Unrestricted 7,153,784        5,251,744        9,416,289        9,590,316        

Total net position 39,959,334$    38,935,479$    40,565,279$    40,128,400$    

Data Source

College records
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

16,826,457$    15,907,741$    15,844,272$    16,397,137$    16,847,808$    16,993,089$    

1,149,200        511,865           736,089           1,734,387        82,755             1,025,341        
9,384,615        9,382,285        9,382,285        9,382,285        9,362,109        8,838,001        
1,108,691        1,121,588        1,218,466        1,196,142        1,527,297        1,586,742        

9,889,204        9,487,652        9,242,269        5,940,693        6,017,875        4,215,635        

38,358,167$    36,411,131$    36,423,381$    34,650,644$    33,837,844$    32,658,808$    

 

 



Morton College, Community College District No. 527 
Financial Trends (Unaudited) 

Changes in Net Position 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
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Fiscal Year 2017 2016 2015 2014

Operating Revenue
Student tuition and fees, net 4,684,983$      4,596,204$      4,040,567$      3,361,086$      
Other 1,696,682        1,720,315        1,850,764        1,982,775        

Total operating revenue 6,381,665        6,316,519        5,891,331        5,343,861        

Operating Expenses
Instruction 15,728,370 10,517,895      12,568,259      13,683,816      
Academic support 2,585,214 2,766,990 2,364,630        2,300,300        
Student services 3,072,864 2,552,963 2,552,583        2,463,099        
Public service 1,134,636 558,055 528,553           517,563           
Institutional administration 7,036,574 6,589,007 7,022,773        5,602,019        
Physical plant operations 4,607,377 7,959,932 4,787,610        2,702,346        
Depreciation 1,870,339 2,068,042 1,797,419        1,761,597        
Scholarship expense 3,684,305 4,095,799 4,391,965        4,380,563        
Auxiliary expense 2,463,156        2,482,407        2,440,249        2,649,892        

Total operating expenses 42,182,835      39,591,090      38,454,041      36,061,195      

Operating Loss (35,801,170)     (33,274,571)     (32,562,710)     (30,717,334)     

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)
Local property taxes 9,763,900 9,128,821 9,310,381        8,337,495        
State appropriations 18,480,322 15,145,280 14,449,848      14,453,707      
Federal grants and contracts 8,651,665 8,852,948 9,458,611        9,917,890        
Local grants and contracts 11,625 3,300 20,710             23,650             
Investment income (177,874)          27,677             3,687               3,437               
Interest expense on bonds 95,387             (204,466)          (243,648)          (248,612)          

Net nonoperating revenue (expenses) 36,825,025      32,953,560      32,999,589      32,487,567      

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 1,023,855$      (321,011)$        436,879$         1,770,233$      

Data Source

Morton College Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports and general ledger reports
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

4,125,936$      3,336,367$      2,965,107$      1,978,334$      2,463,462$      2,492,440$      
2,238,138        2,408,893        2,597,828        2,383,068        2,016,032        1,939,714        

6,364,074        5,745,260        5,562,935        4,361,402        4,479,494        4,432,154        

11,178,977      10,560,776      10,891,769      10,207,879      8,820,978        8,133,825        
2,146,750        1,640,870        1,657,044        728,771           1,261,197        1,557,271        
2,064,685        1,724,416        1,963,425        2,457,240        2,644,019        2,605,073        

486,255           528,209           499,903           964,727           517,128           433,838           
5,878,454        5,487,908        4,068,162        4,267,797        3,496,613        3,799,780        
4,265,754        4,363,130        3,317,143        2,915,452        2,621,437        3,007,529        
1,445,016        1,437,228        1,450,714        1,195,651        1,145,936        1,135,715        
6,203,707        4,682,950        4,160,475        2,748,859        1,935,715        2,511,346        
2,567,778        2,603,138        2,539,302        2,481,197        2,101,710        2,128,633        

36,237,376      33,028,625      30,547,937      27,967,573      24,544,733      25,313,010      

(29,873,302)     (27,283,365)     (24,985,002)     (23,606,171)     (20,065,239)     (20,880,856)     

8,215,441        7,667,168        8,945,308        8,652,341        8,366,317        8,411,056        
12,816,492      9,411,230        8,471,061        8,362,672        7,780,647        8,019,653        
10,911,286      10,159,841      9,379,397        7,308,800        4,915,014        4,707,745        

220,428           294,408           254,565           209,467           158,014           335,366           
12,691             19,317             12,394             41,859             189,444           588,697           

(356,000)          (280,849)          (304,986)          (156,168)          (165,161)          (189,258)          

31,820,338      27,271,115      26,757,739      24,418,971      21,244,275      21,873,259      

1,947,036$      (12,250)$          1,772,737$      812,800$         1,179,036$      992,403$         
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Year Academic Student Institutional
of Levy Total Instruction Support Services Support

2017 40,312$           15,728$           2,585$             3,073$             7,037$             
2016 37,523             10,518             2,767               2,553               6,589               
2015 36,658             12,568             2,365               2,553               7,023               
2014 34,300             13,684             2,300               2,463               5,602               
2013 34,794             11,179             2,147               2,065               5,879               
2012 31,591             10,561             1,641               1,724               5,488               
2011 29,096             10,892             1,657               1,963               4,068               
2010 26,772             10,208             729                  2,457               4,268               
2009 23,399             8,821               1,261               2,644               3,497               
2008 24,178             8,134               1,557               2,605               3,800               

Data Source

College records  

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 43 

Operation
and Scholarships

Maintenance and Public Auxiliary
of Plant Fellowships Service Service

4,607$             3,684$             1,135$             2,463$             
7,960               4,096               558                  2,482               
4,788               4,392               529                  2,440               
2,702               4,381               518                  2,650               
4,266               6,204               486                  2,568               
4,363               4,683               528                  2,603               
3,317               4,160               500                  2,539               
2,915               2,749               965                  2,481               
2,621               1,936               517                  2,102               
3,008               2,511               434                  2,129               

 

 



Morton College, Community College District No. 527 
Revenue Capacity (Unaudited) 

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten Levy Years 
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Residential Commercial Industrial Farm Railroad
Levy Year Property Property Property Property Property

2016 1,001,392,862$  277,468,730$     136,440,304$     -$                       26,971,080$       
2015 962,020,600       270,979,264       135,101,934       -                         25,750,151         
2014 992,167,998       276,656,708       140,550,826       -                         25,475,596         
2013 1,050,767,490    270,215,325       191,960,604       -                         25,254,915         
2012 1,132,021,942    293,820,048       190,451,096       -                         24,603,475         
2011 1,247,814,160    314,294,693       200,305,710       -                         21,293,561         
2010 1,732,327,412    335,543,279       217,994,164       -                         19,534,030         
2009 1,671,095,959    370,937,285       209,171,874       -                         16,757,916         
2008 1,635,692,667    407,701,368       220,468,300       -                         15,207,631         
2007 1,478,340,370    345,655,890       224,875,057       -                         14,744,453         

Notes

Property in the College’s district is reassessed every three years.
Cook County is on a triennial reassessment cycle.
Property estimated assessed value is at 33% of actual value.
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Total Estimated Estimated
Other Taxable Total Actual Actual

Assessed Assessed Direct Taxable Taxable
Value Value Tax Rate Value Value

-$                       1,442,272,976$  68.00% 4,326,818,928$  33.33%
-                         1,393,851,949    69.80% 4,181,555,847    33.33%
-                         1,434,851,128    67.00% 4,304,553,384    33.33%
-                         1,538,198,334    61.30% 4,614,595,002    33.33%
-                         1,640,896,561    55.60% 4,922,689,683    33.33%
-                         1,783,704,124    50.40% 5,351,112,372    33.33%
-                         2,305,398,885    39.20% 6,916,196,655    33.33%
-                         2,267,963,034    39.30% 6,803,889,102    33.33%
-                         2,279,069,966    38.90% 6,837,209,898    33.33%
-                         2,063,115,770    41.10% 6,189,347,310    33.33%
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Taxing Body 2016 2015 2014 2013

Cook County 0.533               0.552               0.568               0.560               
Cook County Forest Preserve 0.063               0.069               0.069               0.069               
Metropolitan Water Reclamation 0.406               0.426               0.430               0.417               
Consolidated Elections -                       0.034               -                       0.031               
Town of Cicero 6.382               6.315               5.760               5.183               
Town of Cicero Library Fund 0.394               0.388               0.351               0.322               
General Assistance 0.041               0.049               0.047               0.062               
Suburban T.B. Sanitarium -                       -                       -                       -                       
Clyde Park District 0.530               0.542               0.556               0.545               
Elementary School District #99 4.717               5.238               4.998               4.670               
High School District #201 3.251               3.339               3.216               2.954               
Cicero Community Mental Health 0.122               0.120               0.104               0.096               

Total overlapping rate 16.439             17.072             16.099             14.909             

Morton Community College No. 527 0.680               0.698               0.670               0.613               

Total rate 17.119             17.770             16.769             15.522             

Year is year of extension.

Data Source

Cook County Clerk’s Office 
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2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

0.531               0.462               0.423               0.394               0.415               0.446               
0.063               0.058               0.051               0.049               0.051               0.053               
0.370               0.320               0.274               0.261               0.252               0.263               

-                       0.025               -                       0.021               -                       0.012               
4.522               4.566               3.388               3.344               3.243               3.613               
0.289               0.231               0.166               0.161               0.156               0.168               
0.068               0.051               0.037               0.036               0.030               0.023               

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
0.505               0.458               0.333               0.308               0.289               0.363               
4.302               3.874               2.799               2.786               2.704               2.893               
2.732               2.454               1.858               1.848               1.835               1.960               
0.100               0.077               0.063               0.062               0.060               0.065               

13.482             12.576             9.392               9.270               9.035               9.859               

0.556               0.504               0.392               0.393               0.389               0.411               

14.038             13.080             9.784               9.663               9.424               10.270             
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2016
Equalized
Assessed

Name Type of Business or Property Valuation* Rank

MacNeal Hospital Finance General hospital and commercial 
properties 20,028,787$    1                      

Hawthorne Works Ste 316 Shopping center 11,502,914      2                      

Wal-Mart Real Estate Retail store 10,511,997      3                      

Thomas Carey Heirs Commercial property 8,584,579        4                      

Concordia Realty Management Shopping center 8,233,141        5                      

Westshire Nursing Hospital & health care, nursing homes 6,665,610        6                      

Dimucci Development Co Shopping center including one-story
stores and supermarket 6,247,158        7                      

Wirtz Beverage Illinois Divisional HQ; wholesale beer, wine
   & liquor distributor 6,108,607        8                      

Target Property Tax T732 Discount department stores 6,026,874        9                      

Cicero Market Place Supermarket, one-store stores 5,982,020        10                    

Cermak Plaza Assoc. Shopping center -                       

Property Tax Dept 201 Industrial property -                       

United States Cold Storage Industrial property -                       

Cambridge Realty Capital Limited Commercial properties -                       

89,891,687$    

*Includes only those parcels with 2016 equalized assessed valuations of approximately $100,000 and over as recorded  
   in the County Assessor’s Office.

**Includes only those parcels with 2007 equalized assessed valuations of $200,000 and over as recorded in the
    County Assessor’s Office.

Data Source

Cook County Clerk’s and Assessor’s Offices  
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Percent of 2007 Percent of
District's Equalized District's

Total Assessed Total
EAV Valuation** Rank EAV

1.39% 36,646,965$    1                      1.78%

0.80% 15,149,336      2                      0.73%

0.73% -                       -                       0.00%

0.60% 14,448,232      4                      0.67%

0.57% -                       -                       0.00%

0.46% -                       -                       0.00%

0.43% 13,825,324      5                      0.48%

0.42% -                       -                       0.00%

0.42% 9,069,052        7                      0.44%

0.41% 8,206,548        8                      0.40%

14,589,201      3                      0.71%

9,867,460        6                      0.48%

8,009,310        9                      0.39%

7,819,801        10                    0.38%

137,631,229$  
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Delinquent
Total Current Taxes Total Percent

Year Extended Year Percent Collected Taxes of Levy
of Levy Tax Levy Collections of Levy (Refunded) Collected EAV

2016 9,807,465$      4,779,749$      48.74% -$                     4,779,749$      48.74%
2015 9,729,087        9,881,110        101.56% (337,621)          9,543,489        98.09%
2014 9,613,393        9,529,080        99.12% (163,147)          9,365,933        97.43%
2013 9,428,970        9,391,600        99.60% (239,467)          9,152,133        97.06%
2012 9,123,084        9,053,905        99.24% (234,863)          8,819,042        96.67%
2011 8,989,563        8,914,223        99.16% (242,218)          8,672,005        96.47%
2010 9,036,894        8,977,670        99.34% (257,644)          8,720,026        96.49%
2009 8,912,688        8,918,889        100.07% (393,844)          8,525,045        95.65%
2008 8,805,985        8,864,914        100.67% (354,714)          8,510,200        96.64%
2007 8,478,945        8,465,204        99.84% (308,907)          8,156,297        96.19%

The 2011 delinquent tax data is the latest data available.

Data Source

County tax records
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2016 2015 2014
Levy Levy Levy

Assessed valuation 1,442,272,976$  1,393,851,949$  1,434,851,128$  

Tax rates (per $100 of assessed valuation)
Education Fund 0.4860                0.4999                0.4711                
Operations and Maintenance Fund 0.0926                0.1000                0.1000                
Bond and Interest Fund 0.0448                0.0463                0.0134                
Liability, Protection and Settlement Fund 0.0370                0.0373                0.0713                
Social Security Fund 0.0150                0.0149                0.0145                
Audit Fund 0.0046                0.0048                0.0050                

Total tax rates 0.6800                0.7032                0.6753                

Taxes extended
Education Fund 7,098,000$         6,968,000$         6,760,000$         
Operations and Maintenance Fund 1,352,000           1,393,852           1,434,851           
Bond and Interest Fund 645,502              644,592              642,824              
Audit Fund 67,600                67,600                71,743                
Liability, Protection and Settlement Fund 759,200              728,000              780,000              

Total taxes extended 9,922,302$         9,802,044$         9,689,418$         

2009 is the latest data available. 

Data Source

County tax records  
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Levy Levy Levy Levy Levy

1,538,198,334$  1,640,896,561$  1,783,704,124$  2,305,398,885$  2,282,836,100$  

0.4226                0.3866                0.3396                0.2552                0.2652                
0.1000                0.1000                0.1000                0.0887                0.0892                
0.0413                0.0273                0.0251                0.0196                0.0256                
0.0321                0.0263                0.0248                0.0173                0.0011                
0.0115                0.0105                0.0093                0.0069                0.0072                
0.0050                0.0050                0.0050                0.0036                0.0038                

0.6125                0.5557                0.5038                0.3913                0.3921                

6,500,000$         6,344,000$         6,058,000$         5,883,377$         6,014,640$         
1,538,198           1,640,897           1,783,704           2,044,888           2,023,023           

634,974              447,486              451,365              467,999              580,996              
76,910                82,045                88,400                82,994                86,182                

670,800              603,200              608,400              557,906              188,240              

9,420,882$         9,117,628$         8,989,869$         9,037,164$         8,893,081$         
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District 527
Actual Total 

General Unamortized Total Taxable Percentage Outstanding
Fiscal Obligation Bond Outstanding Property of Actual Debt 
Year Bonds Premium Debt Value  Value Population* Per Capita

2017 3,455,000$      314,910$         3,769,910$      1,442,272,976$  0.26% 157,067           24.0                 
2016 3,895,000        364,264           4,259,264        1,393,851,949    0.31% 157,067           27.1                 
2015 4,315,000        411,669           4,726,669        1,434,851,128    0.33% 157,067           30.1                 
2014 4,745,000        -                       4,745,000        1,538,198,334    0.31% 157,067           30.2                 
2013 5,580,000        -                       5,580,000        1,640,896,561    0.34% 157,067           35.5                 
2012 6,395,000        -                       6,395,000        1,783,704,124    0.36% 157,067           40.7                 
2011 7,200,000        -                       7,200,000        2,305,398,885    0.31% 157,067           45.8                 
2010 8,075,000        -                       8,075,000        2,282,836,100    0.35% 157,067           51.4                 
2009 3,375,000        -                       3,375,000        2,279,069,966    0.15% 157,067           21.5                 
2008 3,760,000        -                       3,760,000        2,063,115,770    0.18% 157,067           23.9                 

*Estimated figures used for 2008 through 2017.

Data Source

College records and Bureau of Economic Analysis
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District 527
Amounts Actual

General Unamortized Total Available Total Net Taxable
Fiscal Obligation Bond Outstanding In Debt Outstanding Property
Year Bonds Premium Debt Service Fund Debt Value

2017 3,455,000$      314,910$         3,769,910$    1,027,018$       2,742,892$     1,442,272,976$  
2016 3,895,000        364,264           4,259,264      1,011,459         3,247,805       1,393,851,949    
2015 4,315,000        411,669           4,726,669      1,154,821         3,571,848       1,434,851,128    
2014 4,745,000        -                       4,745,000      1,162,982         3,582,018       1,538,198,334    
2013 5,580,000        -                       5,580,000      1,108,691         4,471,309       1,640,896,561    
2012 6,395,000        -                       6,395,000      1,121,588         5,273,412       1,783,704,124    
2011 7,200,000        -                       7,200,000      1,218,466         5,981,534       2,305,398,885    
2010 8,075,000        -                       8,075,000      1,196,142         6,878,858       2,282,836,100    
2009 3,375,000        -                       3,375,000      1,527,297         1,847,703       2,279,069,966    
2008 3,760,000        -                       3,760,000      1,586,742         2,173,258       2,063,115,770    

*Estimated figures used for 2008 through 2017.

Data Source

College records and Bureau of Economic Analysis
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Percentage
of Net

Outstanding
Debt to Actual Total Net

Taxable Outstanding
Property Debt 

 Value Population* Per Capita

0.19% 157,067         17.5               
0.23% 157,067         20.7               
0.25% 157,067         22.7               
0.23% 157,067         22.8               
0.27% 157,067         28.5               
0.30% 157,067         33.6               
0.26% 157,067         38.1               
0.30% 157,067         43.8               
0.08% 157,067         11.8               
0.11% 157,067         13.8                
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Outstanding
Name Bonds Percentage Amount

Morton Community College District No. 527 3,455,000$      100.00% 3,455,000$      

Cook County 3,213,141,750 0.99% 31,777,972      
Cook County Forest Preserve 159,440,240    0.99% 1,576,864        
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District 2,583,922,748 (1) 1.01% 26,045,941      
Lyons Township 2,545,000        4.85% 123,509           

Municipalities
City of Berwyn 161,455,000    (2)(5) 100.00% 161,455,000    
Town of Cicero 35,600,000      (4) 100.00% 35,600,000      
Village of Forest View 1,195,000        42.62% 509,249           
Village of Lyons 4,700,000        (3)(5) 95.12% 4,470,640        
Village of McCook 37,340,000      28.35% 10,587,010      
Village of Stickney 8,050,000        100.00% 8,050,000        

Park Districts
Berwyn Park District 2,155,000        100.00% 2,155,000        
Central Stickney Park District 1,134,000        2.14% 24,245             
Clyde Park District 885,000           100.00% 885,000           
Hawthorne Park District 170,455           (3) 100.00% 170,455           
McCook Park District 511,000           28.56% 145,916           
North Berwyn Park District 516,400           (3) 100.00% 516,400           

Library District
McCook Public Library District -                       (3) 28.56% -                       
Stickney Forest View Public Library District 1,235,000        54.39% 671,729           

School District
School District #99 56,165,000      (5) 100.00% 56,165,000      
School District #100 36,665,000      100.00% 36,665,000      
School District #103 7,421,142        (2) 70.74% 5,249,864        
School District #104 27,740,000      3.20% 886,570           

High School District
#201 73,649,339      (2) 100.00% 73,649,339      

Total direct and overlapping general obligation bonded debt 460,835,703$  

*2016 Equalized Assessed Values were used for this statement.
 Outstanding bonds are as of June 30, 2017

(1)  Includes IEPA Revolving Loan Fund Bonds.
(2)  Includes original principal amounts of outstanding General Obligation Capital Appreciation Bonds.
(3)  Excludes principal amounts of outstanding General Obligation Alternate Revenue Source Bonds which 
       are expected to be paid from sources other than general taxation.
(4)  Excludes self-supporting debt.
(5)  Excludes debt certificates.

Data Source

Offices of the Cook County Clerk, Cook County Comptroller and the
   Treasurer of the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago

Applicable to District
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Debt
Applicable 

Debt Limit to Debt
(Assessed  Debt Limit as a

Value Applicable Legal Percentage
Fiscal Assessed Debt Limit Debt Limit to Debt of
Year Amount Rate Rate) Debt Limit Margin Debt Limit

2017 1,442,272,976$  2.875% 41,465,348$    3,769,910$      37,695,438$    9.09%
2016 1,393,851,949    2.875% 40,073,244      4,259,264        35,813,980      10.63%
2015 1,434,851,128    2.875% 41,251,970      4,726,669        36,525,301      11.46%
2014 1,538,198,334    2.875% 44,223,202      4,745,000        39,478,202      10.73%
2013 1,640,896,561    2.875% 47,175,776      5,580,000        41,595,776      11.83%
2012 1,783,704,124    2.875% 51,281,494      6,395,000        44,886,494      12.47%
2011 2,305,398,885    2.875% 65,521,932      7,200,000        58,321,932      10.99%
2010 2,282,836,100    2.875% 59,314,578      8,075,000        51,239,578      13.61%
2009 2,279,069,966    2.875% 56,798,257      3,375,000        53,423,257      5.94%
2008 2,063,115,770    2.875% 57,423,397      3,760,000        53,663,397      6.55%

Data Source

County tax records; College records
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Per Capital
Fiscal Population Personal Personal Unemployment
Year Employed (2) Income (2) Income Rate (1)

2017 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2016 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2015 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2014 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2013 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2012 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2011 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2010 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2009 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2008 N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A - Data Not Available

Data Source

(1)  Illinois Department of Employment Security; Illinois Labor Market Information for the County of Cook

(2)  Bureau of Economic Analysis Bearfacts Regional Economic Accounts for the County of Cook  
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Percent of
Approximate Total
Number of Data District

Employer City Employees Source* Rank Employment**

2017

MacNeal Hospital Berwyn 1,800 (2) 1 2.60%
Wirtz Beverage Illinois, LLC Cicero 1,000 (2) 2 1.44%
Morton East & West High Schools Cicero 768 (3) 3 1.11%
LBP Manufacturing, Inc. (Levin Bros. Paper) Cicero 400 (1) 4 0.58%
Morton College Cicero 399 (2) 6 0.58%
Meade Electric Co. McCook 400 (1) 6 0.58%
Terrace Paper Co., Inc. Cicero 400 (3) 5 0.58%
A&R Janitorial Services, Inc. Cicero 350 (2) 7 0.51%
USF Holland, Inc. McCook 340 (2) 8 0.49%
Walmart Supercenter Cicero 335 (4) 8 0.48%
Campagna-Turano Bakery Berwyn 300 (1) 9 0.43%
Fontanini Italian Meats McCook 270 (1) 10 0.39%
Saporito Finishing Co. Cicero 250 (1) 11 0.36%
Tru Vue, Inc. (HQ) McCook 250 (1) 11 0.36%
Estes Express Lines, Inc. McCook 245 (2) 12 0.35%

Total 7,507 10.84%

2008

MacNeal Memorial Hospital Berwyn 2,200               (5) 1 1.40%
A & R Janitorial Service Cicero 1,800               (5) 2 1.14%
USF Holland, Inc. McCook 500                  (5) 3 0.32%
LBP Manufacturing, Inc. (Levin Bros. Paper) Cicero 420                  (5) 4 0.27%
Meade Electric Co. McCook 400                  (5) 5 0.25%
Terrace Paper Co., Inc. Cicero 400                  (5) 6 0.25%
Turano Baking Company Berwyn 300                  (5) 7 0.19%
Innerpac Inc. Cicero 300                  (5) 8 0.19%
Crown Recycling & Waste Services McCook 250                  (5) 9 0.16%
Tru Vue, Inc. (HQ) McCook 250                  (5) 10 0.16%
World Marketing Chicago McCook 250                  (5) 11 0.16%
Estes Express Lines, Inc. McCook 240                  (5) 12 0.15%
Bell Fuels, Inc. Cicero 200                  (5) 13 0.13%
Burlington Northern & Santa F. Railroad Cicero 200                  (5) 14 0.13%
Chicago Park Tental McCook 200                  (5) 15 0.13%
Corey Steel Cicero 200                  (5) 16 0.13%
Iron Corp. McCook 200                  (5) 17 0.13%
Sommer & Maca Industries, Inc. Cicero 200                  (5) 18 0.13%
Waste Management McCook 200                  (5) 19 0.13%
UOP McCook 200 (5) 20 0.13%

8,910               5.68%

 *The 2008 principal employer information was obtained from the District’s 2008 Official Statement which listed the sources shown below in (5).  

**Illinois Department of Employment Security.

Data Source

(1)  2017 Illinois Manufacturers Directory
(2)  2017 Illinois Services Directory
(3)  Employer Official Website and/or Financial Reports
(4)  ReferenceUSA.com
(5)  2008 Illinois Manufacturers Director, 2008 Illinois Services Directory, 2008 Harris Illinois Industrial Directory  
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2017 2016 2015 2014

FACULTY
Full time 53                    55                    56                    54                    
Full time overload -                       -                       -                       -                       
Full time summer -                       -                       -                       -                       

53                    55                    56                    54                    
Part time 171                  171                  187                  190                  

Total Faculty FTE 224                  226                  243                  244                  

Teaching 224                  226                  243                  243                  
Non-teaching -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Faculty FTE 224                  226                  243                  243                  

LIBRARY, COUNSELORS AND OTHERS
Full time -                       3                      3                      3                      
Summer -                       -                       -                       -                       
Part time 5                      4                      3                      3                      

Total Library, Counselors and
   Others 5                      7                      6                      6                      

Library -                       -                       -                       -                       
Counselors -                       -                       -                       -                       
Others -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Library, Counselors and
   Others -                       -                       -                       -                       

ADMINISTRATORS 26                    30                    34                    31                    

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES 121                  121                  113                  114                  

Total FTE employees 376                  384                  396                  394                  

Student employee (1) 7                      15                    11                    16                    

Total FTE employees 383                  399                  407                  410                  

(1)  Student FTE are based upon 20 hours per week.

Data Source

College records
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

51                    51                    52                    53                    52                    51                    
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

51                    51                    52                    53                    52                    51                    
192                  190                  166                  159                  154                  150                  

243                  241                  218                  212                  206                  201                  

243                  241                  218                  212                  206                  201                  
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

243                  241                  218                  212                  206                  201                  

3                      3                      3                      4                      4                      3                      
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
4                      4                      4                      7                      5                      4                      

7                      7                      7                      11                    9                      7                      

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

29                    24                    15                    15                    14                    15                    

112                  108                  106                  105                  108                  105                  

391                  380                  346                  343                  337                  328                  

18                    19                    19                    5                      4                      3                      

409                  399                  365                  348                  341                  331                  
 

 



Morton College, Community College District No. 527 
Operating Information (Unaudited) 

Capital Assets Statistics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 
 

 62 

2017 2016 2015 2014

Capital asset type
Land and improvements 2,600,248$      2,600,248$      2,600,248$      2,600,248$      
Building and building improvements 35,510,495      30,648,155      30,355,520      30,083,273      
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 7,725,949        7,534,528        7,296,085        7,078,802        
Construction in progress -                       4,602,737        807,330           -                       

Total capital assets 45,836,692      45,385,668      41,059,183      39,762,323      

Less accumulated depreciation
Building and building improvements (15,372,978)     (14,118,355)     (12,606,188)     (11,350,048)     
Furniture, fixtures and equipment (4,911,611)       (4,295,895)       (3,740,020)       (3,198,741)       

Total accumulated depreciation (20,284,589)     (18,414,250)     (16,346,208)     (14,548,789)     

Total net capital assets 25,552,103$    26,971,418$    24,712,975$    25,213,534$    

Other information
Capital additions 451,024$         4,326,485$      1,296,860$      4,999,201$      

Depreciation expense 1,870,339$      2,068,042$      1,797,419$      1,761,597$      

Data Source

College records
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

2,600,248$      2,600,248$      2,600,248$      2,600,248$      2,600,248$      2,600,248$      
24,237,896      23,718,767      23,380,951      23,293,440      23,103,524      22,263,455      

6,634,673        6,126,427        5,242,349        1,832,742        1,980,273        2,052,200        
1,290,305        869,399           765,534           3,393,564        16,376             9,900               

34,763,122      33,314,841      31,989,082      31,119,994      27,700,421      26,925,803      

(10,127,758)     (8,920,731)       (8,005,858)       (7,107,072)       (6,213,233)       (5,328,129)       
(2,659,434)       (2,421,445)       (1,899,090)       (1,347,162)       (1,397,780)       (1,437,305)       

(12,787,192)     (11,342,176)     (9,904,948)       (8,454,234)       (7,611,013)       (6,765,434)       

21,975,930$    21,972,665$    22,084,134$    22,665,760$    20,089,408$    20,160,369$    

1,448,281$      1,325,759$      869,088$         3,772,003$      1,074,975$      556,089$         

1,445,016$      1,437,228$      1,450,714$      1,195,651$      1,145,936$      1,135,715$      
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The tuition rate is determined by the student’s residence.  Residence is defined as the place where a 
student lives and which a student intends to be his true permanent home.  A student who temporarily 
moves into the District for the purpose of attending the College at a reduced tuition rate will not be 
considered as having established a true residence within the District. 

The student must meet the following criteria to be considered a resident of the District:  One must have 
occupied and/or owned a dwelling in the District for 30 days immediately prior to the start of classes and 
must demonstrate proof of District residency by providing at least two of the following acceptable proof 
of residency documents:  Illinois driver’s license, state I.D., automobile registration, property tax 
statement, voter registration card, lease or purchase agreement, matricula, utility or telephone bill.  
Acceptable proof of identification documents include Illinois driver’s license, state I.D., matricula and 
passports. 

A change from out-of-district to in-district status during a semester becomes effective no earlier than the 
following semester.  Students who move in or out of the District during a semester are required to report 
their new residence to the Office of Admissions and Records. 

District Residency Verification 

1. High school transcripts are on-file for all degree-seeking in-district and in-state high school 
graduates. 

2. Two forms of identification as listed above must be provided for any student who has mail 
returned, or who has been reported to reside outside of the District.  A student’s record will be 
restricted until this is verified.  A photocopy of this documentation will be placed in the student 
file. 

Contract Training 

1. In-district companies many provide contract training for their employees at an in-district rate.  
Contract training is defined as specific coursework or enrollment in a specific degree/certificate 
program which is job-related as approved by the sponsoring in-district company.  It infers the 
company will derive direct benefits as a result of the employee’s training.  The procedures are:  

a. An authorized company representative must sign a contract training agreement form with 
Morton College for each employee to be trained verifying the courses approved as being 
related to their job. 

b. The company is directly billed for the courses at in-district tuition rates. 
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Operation
Operation and

and Maintenance Auxiliary Restricted
Education Maintenance Fund Enterprises Purposes

Fund Fund (Restricted) Fund Fund

Account balance at July 1, 2016 2,936,948$      722,722$         (239,486)$        1,198,760$      3,871$             

Revenues
Local tax revenue 6,923,933 1,449,965 -                       -                       -                       
All other local revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       11,625
ICCB grants 5,926,442 -                       -                       -                       481,353
All other state revenue 677,235 677,235           176,317 -                       10,541,740
Federal revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       8,651,665
Student tuition and fees 8,749,657 1,085,913        -                       -                       -                       
All other revenue 176,951           15,288             -                       1,559,190        -                       

Total revenues 22,454,218      3,228,401        176,317           1,559,190        19,686,383      

Expenditures
Instruction 8,911,514 -                       -                       -                       6,890,440
Academic support 1,780,531 -                       -                       -                       786,700
Student services 2,081,761 -                       -                       -                       968,732
Public service/continuing education 284,543 -                       -                       -                       844,952
Auxiliary services 684,254 -                       -                       1,531,842 242,440
Operation and maintenance of plant -                       3,176,396 596,052 -                       1,052,728
Institutional support 5,008,585 -                       -                       -                       1,475,983
Scholarships, student grants and 
   waivers 1,421,136 -                       -                       -                       7,413,756
Debt service -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Depreciation -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total expenditures 20,172,324      3,176,396        596,052           1,531,842        19,675,731      

Operation transfers in 208,000 10,650 423,428 -                       -                       
Operation transfers out 443,428           -                       -                       200,000           10,650             

Account balance at June 30, 2017 4,983,414$      785,377$         (235,793)$        1,026,108$      3,873$             
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Liability,
Protection,

Bond Working and
Retirement Cash Audit Settlement Investment

Fund Fund Fund Fund in Plant Total

1,011,459$      9,392,979$      (39,554)$          1,413,980$      22,533,800$       38,935,479$       

556,811 -                       118,851 714,340 -                         9,763,900           
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                         11,625                
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                         6,407,795           
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                         12,072,527         
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                         8,651,665           
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                         9,835,570           

11                    57,469             3                      4                      (16,847)              1,792,069           

556,822           57,469             118,854           714,344           (16,847)              48,535,151         

-                       -                       -                       134,683 (208,267)            15,728,370         
-                       -                       -                       17,983 -                         2,585,214           
-                       -                       -                       22,371 -                         3,072,864           
-                       -                       -                       5,141 -                         1,134,636           
-                       -                       -                       4,620 -                         2,463,156           
-                       -                       -                       24,959 (242,758)            4,607,377           
-                       -                       82,400 469,606 -                         7,036,574           

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                         8,834,892           
601,861 -                       -                       -                       (423,987)            177,874              

-                       -                       -                       -                       1,870,339           1,870,339           

601,861           -                       82,400             679,363           995,327              47,511,296         

-                       -                       20,000 -                       -                         662,078              
-                       8,000               -                       -                       -                         662,078              

966,420$         9,442,448$      16,900$           1,448,961$      21,521,626$       39,959,334$       
 

 



Morton College, Community College District No. 527 
Summary of Capital Assets and Debt 

Uniform Financial Statement Number 2 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

 67 

Capital Capital
Asset/Debt Asset/Debt

July 1, June 30,
2016 Additions Disposals Transfers 2017

Capital asset type
Land and improvements 2,600,248$      -$                     -$                     -$                     2,600,248$      
Building and building improvements 30,648,155      259,603           -                       4,602,737        35,510,495      
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 7,534,528        191,421           -                       -                       7,725,949        
Construction in progress 4,602,737        -                       -                       (4,602,737)       -                       

Total capital assets 45,385,668      451,024           -                       -                       45,836,692      

Less accumulated depreciation (18,414,250)     (1,870,339)       -                       -                       (20,284,589)     

Total net capital assets 26,971,418$    (1,419,315)$     -$                     -$                     25,552,103$    

Debt
Total debt 4,390,727$      16,847$           (544,189)$        -$                     3,863,385$      
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Operation
and Total

Education Maintenance Operating
Fund Fund Funds

Operating revenues, by source
Local government

Taxes 6,923,933$      1,449,965$      8,373,898$      
Chargeback revenue

Other community colleges -                       -                       -                       
Total local government 6,923,933        1,449,965        8,373,898        

State government
ICCB credit hour grants 1,950,958        -                       1,950,958        
ICCB equalization grants 3,703,131        -                       3,703,131        
ICCB vocational education -                       -                       -                       
ICCB CTE formula 272,353           -                       272,353           
Corporate personal property
   replacement taxes 677,235           677,235           1,354,470        

Total state government 6,603,677        677,235           7,280,912        

Student tuition and fees
Tuition 7,107,847        -                       7,107,847        
Fees 1,641,810        1,085,913        2,727,723        

Total student tuition and fees 8,749,657        1,085,913        9,835,570        

Other sources
Sales and service fees 95,250 -                       95,250             
Facilities rental -                       13,260 13,260             
Investment revenue 36,119 1,783 37,902             
Other sources 45,582             245                  45,827             

Total other sources 176,951           15,288             192,239           

Total revenue 22,454,218      3,228,401        25,682,619      

Less nonoperating items*
Tuition chargeback revenue -                       -                       -                       

Adjusted revenue 22,454,218$    3,228,401$      25,682,619$    

*Intercollegiate revenues that do not generate related local college credit  hours are subtracted to allow for 
  statewide comparisons.

 
 



Morton College, Community College District No. 527 
Operating Funds Revenues and Expenditures 

Uniform Financial Statement Number 3 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

 69 

Operation
and Total

Education Maintenance Operating
Fund Fund Funds

Operating expenditures
By program

Instruction 8,911,514$      -$                     8,911,514$      
Academic support 1,780,531 -                       1,780,531        
Student services 2,081,761 -                       2,081,761        
Public service/continuing education 284,543 -                       284,543           
Auxiliary services 684,254 -                       684,254           
Operation and maintenance of plant -                       3,176,396 3,176,396        
Institutional support 5,008,585 -                       5,008,585        
Scholarships, student grants and waivers 1,380,005 -                       1,380,005        

Total operating expenditures, by program 20,131,193      3,176,396        23,307,589      

Total operating items*
Tuition chargeback revenue 41,131 -                       41,131             

Adjusted expenditures 20,172,324      3,176,396        23,348,720      

By object
Salaries 13,498,095      1,700,945        15,199,040      
Employee benefits 1,513,085        208,268           1,721,353        
Contractual services 2,508,859        332,452           2,841,311        
General materials and supplies 832,434           120,544           952,978           
Conference and meeting expenses 318,801           5,093               323,894           
Fixed charges 6,587               -                       6,587               
Utilities -                       795,011           795,011           
Capital outlay 61,307             14,083             75,390             
Student grants and scholarships 1,328,338        -                       1,328,338        
Other 63,687             -                       63,687             

Total operating expenditures, by object 20,131,193      3,176,396        23,307,589      

Less operating items*
Tuition chargeback revenue 41,131 -                       41,131             

Adjusted expenditures 20,172,324$    3,176,396$      23,348,720$    

*Intercollegiate revenues that do not generate related local college credit  hours are subtracted to allow for
  statewide comparisons.

 



Morton College, Community College District No. 527 
Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues and Expenditures 

Uniform Financial Statement Number 4 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

 70 

Restricted purposes fund revenues, by source
Local government 11,625$           

Other

State government
ICCB vocational education 14,399             
ICCB adult education 466,954
Other state revenue 10,541,740      

Total state government 11,023,093      

Federal government
Department of Education 8,646,530        
Department of Agriculture 5,135               

Total federal government 8,651,665        

Total restricted purposes fund revenues, by source 19,686,383$    

Restricted purposes fund expenditures, by program
Instruction 6,890,440$      
Academic support 786,700           
Student services 968,732           
Public service/continuing education 844,952           
Auxiliary services 242,440           
Operation and maintenance of plant 1,052,728        
Institutional support 1,475,983        
Scholarships, student grants and waivers 7,413,756        

Total restricted purposes fund expenditures, by program 19,675,731$    

Restricted purposes fund expenditures, by object
Salaries 1,122,648$      
Employee benefits 10,414,369
Contractual services 466,294
General materials and supplies 190,161
Conference and meeting expenses 36,026
Capital outlay 32,477
Student grants and scholarships 7,413,756        

Total restricted purposes fund expenditures, by object 19,675,731$    
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Instruction
Instruction programs 8,911,514$      
Other 7,025,123        

Total instruction 15,936,637      

Academic support
Library center 507,693
Instructional materials center 163,733
Other 1,913,788        

Total academic support 2,585,214        

Student services support
Admissions and records 442,911
Counseling and career services 988,869
Financial aid administration 326,604
Other student services support 1,314,480        

Total student services and support 3,072,864        

Public service/continuing education
Community education 282,057
Community services 2,486
Other 850,093           

Total public service/continuing education 1,134,636        

Auxiliary services 2,463,156        

Operation and maintenance
Maintenance 467,755
Custodial services 655,609
Grounds 157,838
Campus security 930,920
Plant utilities 795,011
Administration 1,246,950        

Total operation and maintenance 4,254,083        

Institutional support
Executive management 1,053,562
Fiscal operations 624,325
Community relations 377,421
Administration support services 379,412
Board of Trustees 84,570
General institutional 1,071,429
Administrative data processing 1,951,561
Other 1,494,294        

Total institutional support 7,036,574        

Scholarship, student grants and waivers 8,834,892        

Total current funds expenditures 45,318,056$    

*Current Funds inlcude the Education, Operation and Maintenance, Auxiliary Enterprises, Restricted Purposes Audit,
  and Liability, Protection, and Settlement Funds. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Morton College, Community College 
   District No. 527 
Cicero, Illinois 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Morton College, Community College 
District No. 527 (College) State Adult Education and Family Literacy Grant Program (State Basic, 
and Performance) (Grant Programs), as of June 30, 2017, and the related statements of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in program balances for the year then ended and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Grant Programs’ financial statements, as listed 
in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the guidelines of the Illinois 
Community College Board Fiscal Management Manual.  Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
College’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.
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Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the College’s Grant Programs as of June 30, 2017, and the 
respective changes in program balances for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As described in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Grant Programs, and do not 
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the College as of June 30, 2017, and 
the changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the Grant Programs’ financial statements.  The other 
supplementary information on “Expenditure Amount and Percentages for ICCB Grant 
Funds Only” schedule is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. 

The other supplementary information on “Expenditure Amount and Percentages for ICCB 
Grant Funds Only” schedule is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  In our opinion, the supplementary information on “Expenditure 
Amount and Percentages for ICCB Grant Funds Only” schedule is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
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Report of Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated 
October 16, 2017, on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Grant Programs’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 
October 16, 2017 
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Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Grant Program Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
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We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the guidelines of the Illinois 
Community College Board Fiscal Management Manual, the financial statements of the Morton 
College, Community College District No. 527 (College) State Adult Education and Family Literacy 
Grant (State Basic, and Performance - Grant Programs) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Grant Programs’ 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon, dated October 16, 2017.  As described in 
Note 1, these financial statements present only the Grant Programs, and do not purport to, and do not, 
present fairly the financial position of the College as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in its financial 
position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) of the Grant Programs to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
College’s internal control of the Grant Programs.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the College’s internal control on the Grant Programs. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the Grant Programs’ financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph in this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether these financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control or on compliance of the Grant Programs.  
This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the College’s internal control and compliance of the Grant Programs.  
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 
October 16, 2017 
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Total
State (Memorandum
Basic Performance Only)

Assets

Receivables 92,027$           195,856$         287,883$         

92,027$           195,856$         287,883$         

Liabilities and Program Balance

Liabilities
Accrued salaries 878$                1,692$             2,570$             
Due to other funds 91,149             194,164           285,313           

Total liabilities 92,027             195,856           287,883           

Program Balance -                       -                       -                       

92,027$           195,856$         287,883$         
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Total
State (Memorandum
Basic Performance Only)

Revenues
Illinois Community College Board Grant 226,418$         240,537$         466,955$             

Expenditures
Instructional and student services

Instruction 213,165 48,015 261,180               
Social work services 1,981 650                  2,631                   
Guidance services 9,945               23,344             33,289                 
Assessment and testing 1,327               12,492             13,819                 
Student transportation services -                       -                       -                           
Literacy services -                       -                       -                           
Child care services -                       -                       -                           

Total instructional and 
   student services 226,418           84,501             310,919               

Program support
Improvement of instructional service -                       48,063             48,063                 
General administration -                       6,306 6,306                   
Data and informational service -                       101,667           101,667               

Total program support -                       156,036           156,036               

Total expenditures 226,418           240,537           466,955               

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures -                       -                       -                           

Program Balance
Beginning balance - July 1, 2016 -                       -                       -                           

Ending balance - June 30, 2017 -$                     -$                     -$                         
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Audited Actual
Financial Expenditure

State Basic Amount Percentage

Instruction (45% minimum required) 213,165$         94%

General administration (15% maximum allowed) -                       0%
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Note 1: Description of Programs 

The following grants received from the Illinois Community College Board (ICCB) are 
administered by Morton College - Community College District No. 527 (College).  The 
accompanying statements include only those transactions resulting from the State Adult Education 
and Family Literacy Grant.  These transactions have been accounted for in the College’s Restricted 
Purposes Fund.  Because the financial statements of the ICCB grant programs presents only a selected 
portion of the operations of the College, it is not intended to and does not present the financial 
position, changes in net position, or cash flows, if applicable, of the College. 

State Adult Education and Family Literacy Grant 

This grant is intended to assist adults to become literate, obtain the knowledge and skills necessary 
for employment and self-sufficiency, become full partners in the educational development of their 
children and completion of secondary school education. 

 

Note 2: Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies 

ICCB Grant Programs 

The financial statements of the ICCB grant programs have been prepared on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting.  Expenditures included all accounts payable representing liabilities for goods 
and services actually received as of June 30, 2017.  Amounts received from ICCB are recognized 
as revenues when the corresponding expenditures are incurred. 

Funds obligated for goods and services by June 30, 2017, and paid for by August 31, 2017, are 
recorded as unearned revenue.  Payments of prior year’s encumbrances for goods received prior to 
August 31, 2016, are reflected as expenditures during the current fiscal year. 

Accounts Receivable 

The College’s accounts receivable are comprised of amounts committed from the State of Illinois 
for the Adult Education program.  Management reviews all the accounts receivable as of June 30, 
and establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based on specific assessment of each account as 
necessary.  There was no allowance as of June 30, 2017. 
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Independent Accountant’s Report on 
Schedule of Enrollment Data and Other Basis 

Upon Which Claims Were Filed 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Morton College, Community College 
   District No. 527 
Cicero, Illinois 
 
 
We have examined the accompanying Schedule of Enrollment Data and Other Basis Upon Which 
Claims Were Filed (Schedule) of Morton College, Community College District No. 527 for the year 
ended June 30, 2017.  Morton College, Community College District No. 527’s management is 
responsible for the Schedule.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Schedule based upon 
our examination. 

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards applicable to attestation engagements 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
in accordance with the guidelines of the Illinois Community College Board’s Fiscal Management Manual; 
and accordingly, including examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the Schedule and performing 
such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances.  Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Schedule is in 
accordance with the criteria, in all material respects.  An examination involves performing procedures 
to obtain evidence about the Schedule.  The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected 
depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Schedule, whether due to fraud or error.  We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the accompanying Schedule of Enrollment Data and Other Basis Upon Which Claims 
Were Filed is fairly presented, in all material respects, in accordance with the provisions of the 
aforementioned guidelines for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management and the 
Illinois Community College Board and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

 

Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois 
October 16, 2017 
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Total
Reimbursable
Credit Hours

Total Certified
Reimbursable to the
Credit Hours ICCB Difference

Baccalaureate 49,112.0          49,112.0          -                       
Business occupation 3,772.0            3,772.0            -                       
Technical occupational 3,697.0            3,697.0            -                       
Health occupational 4,818.0            4,818.0            -                       
Remedial development 7,721.0            7,721.0            -                       
Adult basic education/adult
   secondary education 8,206.5            8,206.5            -                       

Total credit hours certified 77,326.5          77,326.5          -                       

Total
Attending

as Certified
Total to the

Attending ICCB Difference

Reimbursable in-District residents 68,021.5          68,021.5          -                       
Reimbursable out-of-District
   chargeback or contractual agreement 221.0               221.0               -                       

68,242.5          68,242.5          -                       

Total
Reimbursable
Credit Hours

Total Certified
Reimbursable to the
Credit Hours ICCB Difference

Baccalaureate -                       -                       -                       
Business occupation -                       -                       -                       
Technical occupational -                       -                       -                       
Health occupational -                       -                       -                       
Remedial development -                       -                       -                       
Adult basic education/adult -                       
   secondary education -                       -                       -                       

Total credit hours certified -                       -                       -                       

Certified Correctional Credit Hours
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Total
Reimbursable
Credit Hours

Total Certified
Reimbursable to the
Credit Hours ICCB Difference

Dual credit -                       -                       -                       
Dual enrollment -                       -                       -                       

Total -                       -                       -                       
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